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(Agricultural Bank of China Limited)

(Zhang Kegiu, Secretary to the Board of Directors)

100005
(No. 69, Jianguomen Nei Avenue

Dongcheng District, Beijing 100005, PRC)

2 7
(03)6888-1000
2 7
(03)6888-4027
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IFRS

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
11,677,577 13,244,342 14,562,102 15,974,152 17,791,393
(196,883,948)  (223,299,606) (245,517,040) (269,324,203) (299,962,886)
5,639,928 6,433,399 7,224,713 8,098,067 8,909,918
(95,089,186)  (108,467,107) (121,808,661) (136,533,410) (150,221,217)
3,989,570 4,427,989 4,728,857 5,147,410 5,378,404
(67,264,150)  (74,655,895)  (79,728,529)  (86,785,333)  (90,679,891)
102,545 107,601 92,823 157,349 356,992
(1,728,909)  (1,814,153)  (1,564,996)  (2,652,904)  (6,018,885)
1,430,520 1,707,323 2,093,305 2,396,639 2,727,890
(24,118,567)  (28,785,466)  (35,293,122)  (40,407,334)  (45,992,225)
117,293 190,486 309,728 396,669 446,632
(1,977,560)  (3,211,594)  (5,222,014)  (6,687,839)  (7.530,216)
229,842 279,988 322,191 358,071 403,243
(3.875,136)  (4,720,598)  (5,432,140)  (6,037,077)  (6,798,677)
5,410,086 6,153,411 6,902,522 7,739,996 8,506,675
(91,214,050)  (103,746,509) (116,376,521) (130,496,333) (143,422,541)
2,628,052 2,856,148 3,220,098 3,575,630 4,512,047
(44,308,957)  (48,154,655)  (54,290,852)  (60,285,122)  (76,073,112)
2,487,082 2,613,111 2,603,802 2,743,065 2,587,057
(41,932,203)  (44,057,051)  (43,900,102)  (46,248,076)  (43,617,781)
344,557 485,613 706,333 979,867 1,202,175
(5.809,231)  (8,187,435)  (11,908,774)  (16,520,558)  (20,268,671)
529,440 814,620 737,052 509,418 471,809
(8,926,358)  (13,734,493)  (12,426,697)  (8,588,787)  (7,954,700)
11,027,789 12,492,988 13,717,565 14,941,533 16,579,508
(185,928,523)  (210,631,778) (231,278,146) (251,914,246) (279,530,505)
9,622,026 10,862,935 11,811,411 12,533,397 13,538,360
(162,227,358)  (183,149,084) (199,140,389) (211,313,073) (228,256,750)
3,643,562 3,980,483 4,311,407 4,437,283 4,821,751
(61,430,455)  (67,110,943)  (72,690,322)  (74,812,591)  (81,294,722)
5,626,077 6,421,876 6,923,647 7,422,318 8,065,556
(94,855,658)  (108,272,829) (116,732,688) (125,140,281) (135,985,274)
352,387 460,576 576,357 673,796 651,053
(5,941,245)  (7,765,311)  (9,717,379)  (11,360,201)  (10,976,754)
724,236 934,073 903,717 1,056,064 1,537,660
(12,210,619)  (15,748,471)  (15,236,669)  (17,805,239)  (25,924,948)
92,079 7,631 26,787 131,021 88,804
(1,552,452) (128,659) (451,629)  (2,209,014)  (1,497,235)
119,390 192,639 266,261 325,167 382,742
(2,012,915)  (3,247,894)  (4,489,160)  (5,482,316)  (6,453,030)
649,601 749,815 843,108 1,031,066 1,210,091
(10,952,273)  (12,641,881)  (14,214,801) (17,383,773)  (20,402,134)
() 763,010 910,048 1,074,967 1,391,559 1,471,620
(12,864,349)  (15,343,409)  (18,123,944)  (23,461,685)  (24,811,513)
Tierl(CET1L) () N/A N/A 838,473 986,206 1,124,690
(N/A) (N/A)  (14,136,655)  (16,627,433)  (18,962,273)
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Tierl ® N/A N/A 1 39,946 79,902
(N/A) (N/A) an (673,490)  (1,347,148)
Tier2 ® N/A N/A 236,493 365,407 267,028
(N/A) (N/A)  (3.987,272)  (6.160,762)  (4,502,092)
® 6,388,375 7,216,178 9,065,631 10,852,619 10,986,302
(107,708,003)  (121,664,761) (152,846,539) (182,975,156) (185,229,052)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
379,756 424,964 465,771 524,126 540,862
(6,402,686)  (7,164,893)  (7,852,899)  (8,836,764)  (9,118,933)
307,199 341,879 376,202 429,891 436,140
(5,179,375)  (5,764,080)  (6,342,766)  (7,247,962)  (7,353,320)
68,750 74,844 83,171 80,123 82,549
(1,159,125)  (1,261,870)  (1,402,263)  (1,350,874)  (1,391,776)
157,330 182,802 198,607 223,898 225,818
(2,652,584)  (3,082,042)  (3,348,514)  (3,774,920)  (3,807,291)
64,225 54,235 52,990 67,971 84,172
(1,082,834) (914,402) (893,411)  (1,145,991)  (1,419,140)
158,201 187,927 214,174 232,257 230,857
(2,667,269)  (3,168,449)  (3,610,974)  (3,915,853)  (3,892,249)
121,956 145,131 166,211 179,510 180,774
(2,056,178)  (2,446,909)  (2,802,317)  (3,026,539)  (3,047,850)
121,927 145,004 166,315 179,461 180,582
(2,055,689)  (2,446,285)  (2,804,071)  (3,025,712)  (3,044,613)
223,004 319,058 32,879 34,615 820,348
(3,759,847)  (5,379,318) (554,340) (583,609)  (13,831,067)
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
@ 1.11 1.16 1.20 1.18 1.07
® 20.46 20.74 20.89 19.57 16.79
(O] 2.85 2.81 2.79 2.92 2.66
® 2.73 2.67 2.65 2.76 2.49
@ ©® 1.91 2.01 1.83 1.65 1.65
18.10 17.61 17.86 15.29 15.26
() 35.89 36.76 36.30 34.56 33.28
1
1 ® 0.38 0.45 0.51 0.55 0.55
(6.41) (7.59) (8.60) (9.27) (9.27)
1 ® 0.38 0.45 0.51 0.55 0.55
(6.41) (7.59) (8.60) (9.27) (9.27)
1
0.69 0.98 0.10 0.11 2.53
(11.63) (16.52) (1.69) (1.85) (42.66)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 1.55 1.33 1.22 1.54 2.39
©® 263.10 326.14 367.04 286.53 189.43
10 4.08 4.35 4.46 4.42 4.53
Tierl(CET1) N/A N/A 9.25 9.09 10.24
Tierl (€] N/A N/A 9.25 9.46 10.96
O 11.94 12.61 11.86 12.82 13.40
O 54.71 54.48 62.25 67.94 61.75
5.56 5.67 5.80 6.46 6.81
1
1 2.00 2.31 2.60 3.05 3.48
(33.72) (38.95) (43.84) (51.42) (58.67)
(1) 2013 2013
IRB
150
95 Tier2
9.52
@
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
“)
®)
(6) CBRC
(7) CAS
®)
©)
(10)
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 40.18 44.75 43.57 44.02 44.50
25 154.66 161.78 114.95 72.49 115.15
® 10 2.80 3.59 3.33 5.23 7.15
10
® 16.31 15.76 13.22 14.43 16.82
@ 2.26 2.49 2.53 3.60 4.9
2.61 4.65 4.36 4.99 18.28
14.82 21.79 37.24 42.53 86.94
5.41 4.9 8.62 10.10 10.35
(1) CBRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBRC

2015 1 2 3 4
140,643 135,666 133,835 130,718
(2,371,241) (2,287,329) (2,256,458) (2,203,905)
54,116 50,199 48,895 27,372
(912,396) (846, 355) (824,370) (461,492)
385,266 135,082 (9,171) 309,171
(6,495,585) (2,277,483) (-154,623) (5,212,623)
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1951 1970
2009 1
2010 7
1
IT
2015
17,791,393 8,909,918 13,538,360
13.40 2015 180,774
2015 3 37
362 3,513

19,698 55 23,670

9 3 9 5
14
2014 2 2015
500 36 1,000
Tierl 6
A A-1 Al P-1
A F1
44

2015 12 31 MOF 40.03 39.21
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2015 12 31
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,449 100.00
3,000,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,000 100.00
200,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
€} 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
20,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
100,000,000 51.00
@ 2,032,653,061 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
1,400,000, 000 100.00
(€] 2

(2) 2012 12 31 51

1,381 2015 12 31

2015 12 31

WMP
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23
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
- 273
2015 5 28 CFA
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour I"Afrique BSCA.
BSCA. 50
BSCA.
24
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2015 503,082 11,288 8,061
722
2015 12 31
8,105 1.6
67,966 13.5
54,566 10.9
70,477 14.0
106,729 21.2
53,297 10.6
133,159 26.5
494,299 98.3
8,061 1.6
722 0.1
503,082 100.0

MER S DFERAR EE B DM AR

@ E+8 L5 @ W 20.40% @ T 24000 @R 1. 20%

@ =+8 12805 9 0.10%4 2 45EAE 3.70% @ ZORr 29.80%
MR L @ MR 4.70% FEIbEArY 7.200%
W0 32.40% WY 3.70% Fehih 3.50%

REAEREMT 22,1005 ) b L= F o e S 8EPY 0.00%
2015 12 31

30 110,057 21.9

31 40 77,744 15.5

41 50 214,523 42.6

51 100,758 20.0

503,082 100.0
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2015
3.21
14.4
2015
2.4
CPI
1.4
4
15.4
IMF
2015
15.7
2016 1

2016

SDR

0.3
9.07
GDP 6.9
5.7 1.3
GDP
GDP 50.5
2015
1
199.3
2016
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2016 1
3.1
50 225
2.23 9.34
CRB
0.4 67.67
10.0 10.7
6.7 1.8
60
0.6 2015
PPI 5.2
M2 13.3
PBOC 5
2015
14.3 94.0
2015 3.1 3.4
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13 5
2016

®@

2015

IMA 4

IRB CBRC
CBRC
IRB
IMA

AMA
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FATCA
ISDA
(€) @
CBRC
2 (1)5 @12
12
CBRC 5

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
(@) (@)
3,939,049 48.7 4,265,801 47.9
974,469 12.0 1,198,000 13.5
1,388,288 17.1 1,349,190 15.1
1,796,261 22.2 2,096,927 23.5
8,098,067 100.0 8,909,918 100.0

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
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D) ()
90 73,139 0.9 98,465 1.1
91 360 56,457 0.7 105,098 1.2
361 3 22,821 0.3 63,251 0.7
3 14,203 0.2 12,698 0.1
166,620 2.1 279,512 3.1
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10 ()
A 105,147 1.18
B 20,380 0.23
C 17,742 0.20
D 16,857 0.19
E 16,526 0.19
F 16,355 0.18
G 14,635 0.16
H IT 13,470 0.15
| 13,267 0.15
J 13,156 0.15
247,535 2.78
5

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
(@) (@)
7,661,924 94.62 8,322,619 93.41
311,173 3.84 374,432 4.20
124,970 1.54 212,867 2.39
35,052 0.43 47,755 0.54
75,669 0.93 147,864 1.66
14,249 0.18 17,248 0.19
8,098,067 100.00 8,909,918 100.00

2015 12 31 87,897 212,867
0.85 2.39 63,259
374,432 4.20 0.36

()

()

)
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()
()
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
103,072 82.5 2.00 177,453 83.3 3.30
78,579 62.9 3.57 142,154 66.7 6.23
24,493 19.6 0.83 35,299 16.6 1.14
21,052 16.8 0.88 31,884 15.0 1.17
4,980 4.0 0.32 8,257 3.9 0.43
3,866 3.1 1.73 6,059 2.8 2.73
2,048 1.6 1.00 2,892 1.4 1.61
4,461 3.6 1.70 8,495 4.0 3.69
5,421 4.3 3.51 6,020 2.8 3.59
276 0.2 20.25 161 0.1 12.43
846 0.7 0.21 3,530 1.7 0.79
124,970 100.0 1.54 212,867 100.0 2.39
2015 12 31 74,381 177,453
1.30 3.30
10,832 31,884 0.29
1.17
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
7 - - 7 - -
26,242 21.0 1.37 41,684 19.6 2.03
16,790 13.4 1.51 29,600 13.9 2.34
26,727 21.4 1.93 40,005 18.8 2.73
18,656 14.9 1.83 28,084 13.2 2.48
5,368 4.3 1.71 6,036 2.8 1.66
30,332 24.3 1.68 63,921 30.0 3.23
848 0.7 0.21 3,530 1.7 0.79
124,970 100.0 1.54 212,867 100.0 2.39
2015 12 31 33,589

15,442
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
51,360 49.8 3.69 74,522 42.0 5.45
2,324 2.3 0.44 2,785 1.6 0.47
5,580 5.4 0.96 9,270 5.2 1.76
2,734 2.6 0.36 5,210 2.9 0.58
31,460 30.5 5.93 62,072 35.0 12.31
586 0.6 0.28 945 0.5 0.46
1,705 1.7 0.82 5,447 3.1 2.59
2,046 2.0 0.80 7,859 4.4 3.14
604 0.6 0.15 2,122 1.2 0.47
207 0.2 0.37 313 0.2 0.24
IT 145 0.1 0.86 181 0.1 0.67
4,321 4.2 1.96 6,727 3.8 3.09
103,072 100.0 2.00 177,453 100.0 3.30
2015 12 31 30,612
23,162
( )
2015 1 1 73,094 284,977 358,071
95,085 (13,188) 81,897
- 103,532 49,622 153,154
- (8,447) (62,810) (71,257)
(33,921) (7.408) (41,329)
- 805 425 1,230
- (1,302) (463) (1,765)
- 139 374 513
_ 4,626 4,626
2015 12 31 133,900 269,343 403,243
©
2015
CBRC
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2015
VaR
VaR 1 250
99
VaR
( )
2014 2015
73 69 98 50 50 76 103 50
1 32 92 247 31 82 74 151 32
36 21 36 2 18 29 53 9
VaR 88 135 289 57 82 119 183 68
[®) VaR
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2015

2015

2015 1
449,786 534,906
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1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2014 12 31 (2,304,785) 472,000 1,747,665 (85,120) (195,491) 1,237,959 (105,693)
2015 12 31 (2,968,135) 554,253 1,878,976 (534,906) 42,874 1,627,830 (134,125)
D) 49
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
100 (11,600) (23,485) (16,780) (38,949)
100 11,600 23,485 16,780 38,949
2015 12 31 100
16,780 38,949
2015
3,746 6.12 2015
7,533
1,986
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
(58,245) (9,519) (12,894) (1,986)
271,760 44,412 165,121 25,428
() 49
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
+5 1,586 (637)
-5 (1,586) 637
+5 252 206
-5 (252) (206)
5 637
@
6
CIPS
2015
PBOC
5
SLO MLF
5 MLF
PSL
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2014 12 31 31,199 (7,219,512) 93,530 (268,594) 643,121 1,356,724 3,653,251 2,561,936 851,655
2015 12 31 48,107  (8,194,380) 126,537 (263,526) 825,092 1,681,453 4,385,011 2,393,379 1,001,673
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2014
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1 | HQLA 360,185,568
2 888,136,806 76,808,166
3 240,110,292 12,005,515
4 648,026,514 64,802,651
5 570,214,425 220,280,839
6 261,018,244 64,066,038
7 305,968,529 152,987,149
8 3,227,652 3,227,652
9 6,237,267
10 107,890,788 19,769,394
11 11,479,305 11,479,305
12 24,727 24,727
13 96,386, 756 8,265,362
14 40,186,851 985,995
15 67,621,172 32,597,516
16 356,679,177
17 11,476,717 11,476,717
18 85,646,662 49,935,317
19 12,226,635 11,970,331
20 109,350,014 73,382,365
21 | HQLA 360,185,568
22 283,296,812
23 127.5
O)
2015 AMA
2015

7 5
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10
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2015
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2015
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@
(6))
2015 180,774 1,264 0.7
2014 2015
429,891 436,140 6,249 1.5
80,123 82,549 2,426 3.0
14,112 22,173 8,061 57.1
524,126 540,862 16,736 3.2
223,898 225,818 1,920 0.9
67,971 84,172 16,201 23.8
232,257 230,872 (1,385) -0.6
- (15) (15) -
232,257 230,857 (1,400) -0.6
52,747 50,083 (2,664) -5.1
179,510 180,774 1,264 0.7
179,461 180,582 1,121 0.6
49 192 143 291.8
2015 80.6 2015
436,140 6,249
49,592 43,343 2015
2.66 2.49 26
27
PBOC
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2014 2015
7,768,137 470,829 6.06 8,633,586 476,988 5.52
) 3,129,864 125,161 4.00 3,665,564 147,882 4.03
2,674,907 110,961 4.15 3,294,083 136,475 4.14
@ 454,957 14,200 3.12 371,481 11,407 3.07
2,508,561 40,018 1.60 2,517,511 39,745 1.58
® 1,290,817 63,281 4.90 1,566,387 61,178 3.91
14,697,379 699,289 4.76 16,383,048 725,793 4.43
O (342,809) (385,312)
O] 864,443 973,294
15,219,013 16,971,030
11,997,284 221,706 1.85 12,865,645 233,377 1.81
® 1,185,258 36,510 3.08 1,698,281 43,398 2.56
® 321,079 11,182 3.48 375,815 12,878 3.43
13,503,621 269,398 2.00 14,939,741 289,653 1.94
“ 902,096 1,051,534
14,405,717 15,991,275
429,891 436,140
2.76 2.49
2.92 2.66
@
@ MOF
(©)
(O]
®)
®)
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47,814 (41,655) 6,159
21,612 1,109 22,721
141 (414) 73)
10,763 (12,866) (2,103)
80,330 (53,826) 26,504
15,752 (4,081) 11,671
13,110 (6,222) 6,888
1,876 (180) 1,696
30,738 (10,483) 20,255
49,592 (43,343) 6,249
2015 725,793 26,504
1,685,669 33
6,159 1.3 476,988
865,449
2014 2015
5,001,898 314,983 6.30 5,375,881 308,531 5.74
2,213,212 135,746 6.13 2,267,447 123,082 5.43
2,788,686 179,237 6.43 3,108,434 185,449 5.97
100,021 5,786 5.78 252,083 10,765 4.27
2,281,146 138,398 6.07 2,558,245 145,036 5.67
385,072 11,662 3.03 447,377 12,656 2.83
7,768,137 470,829 6.06 8,633,586 476,988 5.52
6,452 2.0 308,531
56
6,638 4.8 145,036
277,099 40
2014 11 PBOC 6
4,979 86.1 10,765
152,062 151
994 8.5 12,656
62,305
2 2015
22,721 147,882
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535,700 3
273 39,745
2
2,103 61,178
99
20,255 289,653
1,436,120 6
11,671 233,377
868,361 4
(1)PBOC
@
2014 2015
1,783,471 60,780 3.41 1,964,384 62,730 3.19
2,922,036 21,084 0.72 3,033,507 20,848 0.69
4,705,507 81,864 1.74 4,997,891 83,578 1.67
3,822,982 127,366 3.33 4,219,163 136,561 3.24
3,468,795 12,476 0.36 3,648,591 13,238 0.36
7,291,777 139,842 1.92 7,867,754 149,799 1.90
11,997,284 221,706 1.85 12,865,645 233,377 1.81
6,888 43,398
513,023
52
1,696 12,878
54,736 PBOC
2015 2,426 3.0

82,549
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2014 2015
21,123 17,714 (3,409) (16.1)
11,031 8,892 (2,139) (19.4)
22,945 28,628 5,683 24.8
19,279 20,689 1,410 7.3
7,379 8,962 1,583 21.5
2,807 2,547 (260) (9.3)
3,114 2,857 (257) (8.3)
205 205 _ _
87,883 90,494 2,611 3.0
7,760 7,945 185 2.4
80,123 82,549 2,426 3.0
3,409 16.1 17,714
2,139 19.4 8,892
5,683 24.8 28,628
1,410 7.3 20,689
1,583 8,962
260 2,547
257 8.3 2,857
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2015 8,061 22,173
1,654 3,562
222 1,727
522 857
5,663 16,027
2014 2015
1,908 3,562
1,505 1,727
335 857
10,364 16,027
14,112 22,173
2015 1,920 225,818
1.28 33.28
1,120 1.0 110,349
734 1.5 48,461
305 1.6 19,633
4,080 104.5 7,984
2014 2015
111,469 110,349 (1,120) (1.0)
49,195 48,461 (734) (1.5)
28,880 29,075 195 0.7
19,328 19,633 305 1.6
3,904 7,984 4,080 104.5
8,898 3,084 (5.814) (65.3)
471 5,509 5,038 1,069.6
1,753 1,723 (30) a.mn
223,898 225,818 1,920 0.9

64/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2015 16,201 84,172
16,834 81,897
2015 2,664 5.1 50,083
2015
2014 2015
280,701 53.6 275,396 50.9
189,876 36.2 196,679 36.4
45,686 8.7 55,756 10.3
7,863 1.5 13,031 2.4
524,126 100.0 540,862 100.0
2014 2015
58,530 11.2 58,921 10.9
102,013 19.4 105,085 19.4
69,685 13.3 72,080 13.3
82,726 15.8 84,219 15.6
68,023 13.0 68,802 12.7
112,468 21.4 113,351 21.0
19,219 3.7 20,242 3.7
11,462 2.2 18,162 3.4
524,126 100.0 540,862 100.0
44
2014 2015
198,078 37.8 200,879 37.1
326,048 62.2 339,983 62.9
524,126 100.0 540,862 100.0
®)
2015 12 31 1,817,241 11.4 17,791,393
766,679 9.9
936,417 26.2 156,008
5.7 PBOC
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222,308 22.7
37,609 7.4
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
8,098,067 - 8,909,918 -
358,071 - 403,243 -
7,739,996 48.4 8,506,675 47.8
3,575,630 22.4 4,512,047 25.4
2,743,065 17.2 2,587,057 14.5
979,867 6.1 1,202,175 6.8
509,418 3.2 471,809 2.6
426,176 2.7 511,630 2.9
15,974,152 100.0 17,791,393 100.0
2015 12 31 8,909,918 811,851
10.0
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
7,701,398 95.1 8,463,286 95.0
5,147,410 63.6 5,378,404 60.4
157,349 1.9 356,992 4.0
2,396,639 29.6 2,727,890 30.6
396,669 4.9 446,632 5.0
8,098,067 100.0 8,909,918 100.0
230,994 4.5 5,378,404
331,251 13.8 2,727,890
199,643 126.9 356,992
49,963 12.6 446,632
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
2,203,208 42.8 2,283,318 42.5
2,944,202 57.2 3,095,086 57.5

5,147,410 100.0 5,378,404 100.0
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80,110 3.6
150,884 5.1
0.3 57.5

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
1,391,090 27.0 1,367,358 25.4
528,725 10.3 592,832 11.0
1 581,072 11.3 526,408 9.8
756,578 14.7 893,535 16.6
530,896 10.3 504,342 9.4
207,977 4.0 205,021 3.8
207,823 4.0 210,539 3.9
255,099 5.0 249,938 4.7
395,085 7.7 453,344 8.4
55,881 1.1 130,682 2.4

IT
16,785 0.3 26,929 0.5
@ 220,399 4.3 217,476 4.1
5,147,410 100.0 5,378,404 100.0
@
@
2015 12 31 5
5 72.2
1.4

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
1,550,673 64.7 1,927,018 70.7
204,044 8.5 179,453 6.6
263,085 11.0 230,223 8.4
222,865 9.3 222,206 8.1
154,609 6.4 167,695 6.1
1,363 0.1 1,295 0.1
2,396,639 100.0 2,727,890 100.0

2015 12 31 376,345 24.3 1,927,018
PBOC
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oOoOooodn
24,591 12.1 179,453
32,862 12.5 230,223
659 0.3 ) 222,206
13,086 8.5 167,695
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
147,721 1.8 215,418 2.4
1,918,523 23.7 2,048,393 23.0
1,110,104 13.7 1,263,044 14.2
1,382,065 17.1 1,463,574 16.4
1,019,212 12.6 1,132,516 12.7
314,039 3.9 364,412 4.1
1,809,734 22.3 1,975,929 22.2
396,669 4.9 446,632 5.0
8,098,067 100.0 8,909,918 100.0
2015 12 31 936,417

26.2 4,512,047
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
2,859,170 80.0 3,849,480 85.3
371,614 10.4 365,323 8.1
4,000 0.1 9,308 0.2
(&) 340,846 9.5 287,936 6.4
3,575,630 100.0 4,512,047 100.0
(€D
2015 12 31 990,310
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
693,588 24.3 1,231,289 32.0
PBOC 20,625 0.7 21,404 0.6
1,364,811 47.7 1,481,902 38.4
255,140 8.9 490,978 12.8
125,381 4.4 157,024 4.1
399,625 14.0 466,883 12.1
2,859,170 100.0 3,849,480 100.0
2015
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
1 - 1 -
3 152,080 5.3 183,959 4.8
3 12 386,888 13.5 585,009 15.2
1 5 1,471,887 51.5 1,865,430 48.4
5 848,314 29.7 1,215,081 31.6
2,859,170 100.0 3,849,480 100.0
2015
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
2,787,707 97.5 3,709,060 96.4
55,055 1.9 100,809 2.6
16,408 0.6 39,611 1.0
2,859,170 100.0 3,849,480 100.0
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
o 414,660 11.6 439,261 9.7
927,903 26.0 1,214,542 26.9
1,710,950 47.8 2,300,824 51.0
522,117 14.6 557,420 12.4
3,575,630 100.0 4,512,047 100.0
o
2015 12 31 1,972,880
1,481,902
490,978
2015 12 31 10
(D]
2014 18,710 5.44 2019 4 8 -
2015 16,700 3.97 2025 2 27 -
2014 13,600 5.61 2021 4 8 -
2014 12,350 5.67 2024 4 8 -
2015 11,860 4.21 2025 4 13 -
2013 11,200 3.98 2016 7 18 -
2015 11,160 4.02 2020 1 14 -
2015 11,090 3.99 2025 2 9 -
2013 10,475 4.17 2023 7 18 -
2014 10,240 5.75 2019 1 14 -
o
2015 12 31 1,637,975 11.0 16,579,508
1,004,963 8.0
481,596 45.6
42,217
32.2
57,575 17.7
57,950 15.6
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
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OooooOodd
12,533,397 83.9 13,538,360 81.7
1,056,064 7.0 1,537,660 9.3
131,021 0.9 88,804 0.5
325,167 2.2 382,742 2.3
372,493 2.5 430,443 2.6
523,391 3.5 601,499 3.6
14,941,533 100.0 16,579,508 100.0
2015 12 31 1,004,963 8.0 13,538,360
0.4 59.6
0.3 52.6

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
12,458,606 99.4 13,449,015 99.3
4,437,283 35.4 4,821,751 35.6
1,430,020 11.4 1,599,187 11.8
3,007,263 24.0 3,222,564 23.8
7,422,318 59.2 8,065,556 59.6
3,876,021 30.9 4,166,985 30.8
3,546,297 28.3 3,898,571 28.8
® 599,005 4.8 561,708 4.1
74,791 0.6 89,345 0.7
12,533,397 100.0 13,538,360 100.0

@

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
77,854 0.6 74,161 0.5
2,763,374 22.0 2,974,911 22.0
1,687,296 13.5 1,846,193 13.6
2,231,660 17.8 2,418,137 17.9
2,098,964 16.7 2,277,151 16.8
659,561 5.3 710,741 5.2
2,939,897 23.5 3,147,721 23.3
74,791 0.6 89,345 0.7
12,533,397 100.0 13,538,360 100.0

2014 12 31 2015 12 31
7,046,736 56.2 7,673,376 56.7
3 1,710,174 13.6 1,681,820 12.4
3 12 2,363,672 18.9 2,553,458 18.9
1 5 1,412,631 11.3 1,629,705 12.0
5 184 - 1 -
12,533,397 100.0 13,538,360 100.0
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2015 12 31 1,211,885 324,794
79,899 98,773 22,429
96,748 175,606 412,005
1 0.43 3.48
2014 12 31 2015 12 31
324,794 31.4 324,794 26.8
39,944 3.9 79,899 6.6
98,773 9.5 98,773 8.2
3,118 0.3 22,429 1.8
78,594 7.6 96,748 8.0
156,707 15.2 175,606 14.5
329,989 32.0 412,005 34.0
(853) 0.1) (163) -
1,553 0.2 1,794 0.1

1,032,619 100.0 1,211,885 100.0
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
441,058 27.9 450,433 30.4
418,937 26.4 382,255 25.8
241,171 15.2 233,376 15.7
227,337 14.4 158,905 10.7
254,222 16.1 258,745 17.4
1,582,725 100.0 1,483,714 100.0
©
IFRS CAS
IFRS CAS
@
@
2015
2015 3.64 74
2015
2015 12 31 4,821,751
384,468 8.7 2015 12 31
5,735,396 430,637
8.1
2015
2,751
1,178 238.6 102.6
2015 428.3
62.0 276.7

62.6
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2015 12 31 357,147
73,874
2015 CBRC
1
2015 1,088,228
113,308 11.6 1.6
2015 216 98
25,150.9 1 275,814
187,232 147
- 27,123
198,561
4,833
6 1
2015
4,495.7 6.5
2015 809.5
62.7 2015
2015
2015 117.88
1,000.67 10.9
31.097 2015

741424
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ooooooo
371 409,355
259 283,338
112 126,017
5,000
2015 5,092
2015
633.8
2015
®)
WeChat
2015 25 VIP 474
2015
2015 12
31 1,927,018 376,345
24.3
10
134
2015
2015
8,065,556 643,238 8.7
2015 813 88
IC 410 128
PB0OC3.0
2015
58,379.2 1,020.3
1,153,998 16.1

EMV ETC
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2014 12 31 2015 12 31
72,467.64 81,275.29 12.2
4,651.06 5,323.18 14.5
2014 2015

66,929.37 67,023.91 0.1
9,868.54 11,465.80 16.2

2015 34

69 807.7
25.7
115,531
14.3
4
2015 PBOC 5
5
MLF PSL
SLF
MLF 2015
25,626,095 20,953,237
4,672,858
105.9 522.9
2015 12 31 4,512,047
936,417 26.2

2015
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2015 12 31 140,420
96.5
©
2015 12
31 1,577,347
1,016,292 561,055
23.1 68.9
2015 10
21 2015
2015
2015
2015
7,145,110 43.9 2,379,151
23.5 2015
2,857
2015
2015
2015 318,310
20.9
2015
PC
2015

2,141.91 26,471.89

771424
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2015 811 SDR

1 2015
287,800
14,078
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140

AIP
10
15,906
2015
2015
16 4,935
543,131
1
23.09
2015
0.48
2015 10
90 10
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405,500

14 38,789
22,883 4
2015
5
2015
73,134 15.56
10.1
54.2
2015
2015
600 995
80
75
2015 2,000

2016 1
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2015 11
2
@
2015
2,000 1,000
60 14
020
2015
2015 123
766 20,940
41.2 2015 93.0
3.4
2015
2015 150 84.40
3.775
100.1 29.9 4,310
2.953

42.2
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2015
95,599
419 75.94
79.35
e
HCE
2015
0.14 75 9.6
SMS 310 16,397 SMS
2015 122,800
13.61 48,500
76 1
EMV
O)
2015
3 5
3
3
3
020
3
B2B
5
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3
3
5
3
3
2015 4
10,161 2,337.4
12.6 646
30.27 488
60,600 59.6 10.12
11,867 4,571
1.04
BYD Company Limited) Inspur Group Co., Ltd.
China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited 3
391 1,276 208
506 522
®
2015
CBRC
2015 5 28
2015 7 2
2015 14 17
2015
109,742 28.6 2015 604
16.2

DIFC
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2015

2015 780

3 CBRC

GB/T 32319-2015

362

@

2015

260

220,000
125,802
41.6
8
BoEing
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ABC
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3 60,055 32,169
4 29,117 25,374
14,449 5,648
5 270,215 174,737
9,118,933 8,836,764
6 (3.,807,291) (3,774,920)
8 (1,419,140) (1,145,991)
3,892,502 3,915,853
24 (253) -
3,892,249 3,915,853
9 (844,399) (889,314)
3,047,850 3,026,539
3,044,613 3,025,712
3,237 826
3,047,850 3,026,539
11 9 9
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12 31
2015 2014
180,774 179,510
25,831 34,587
(6.,449) (8,622)
690 152
20,072 26,117
200,846 205,627
200,583 205,503
263 124
200,846 205,627
12 31
2015 2014
3,047,850 3,026,539
435,511 583,137
(108,730) (145,367)
11,633 2,563
338,414 440,333
3,386,264 3,466,871
3,381,829 3,464,781
4,434 2,001
3,386,264 3,466,871
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2015 12 31
( )
12 31

2015 2014
12 2,587,057 2,743,065
13 697,923 572,805
40,909 20,188
14 504,252 407,062
15 79,782 58,425
16 359,479 356,235
17 16,038 7,195
18 471,809 509,418
19 8,506,675 7,739,996
20 1,214,542 927,903
21 2,300,824 1,710,950
22 557,420 522,117

24 273

25 156,178 154,950
23 1,381 1,381
26 81,548 78,640
27 215,303 163,822
17,791,393 15,974,152
28 60,599 80,121
29 1,221,901 831,141
30 315,759 224,923
31 24,036 25,211
32 406,407 347,282
17 12,192 7,240
33 88,804 131,021
34 13,538,360 12,533,397
35 382,742 325,167
26 111 43
36 528,597 435,987
16,579,508 14,941,533
37 324,794 324,794
38 79,899 39,944
39 98,773 98,773
40 22,429 3,118
41 96,748 78,594
42 175,606 156,707
412,005 329,989
(163) (853)
1,210,001 1,031,066
1,794 1,553
1,211,885 1,032,619
17,791,393 15,974,152
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( )
12 31
2015 2014

12 43,617,781 46,248,076
13 11,766,982 9,657,492
689,726 340,370
14 8,501,689 6,863,065
15 1,345,125 985,046
16 6,060,816 6,006,122
17 270,401 121,308
18 7,954,700 8,588,787
19 143,422,541 130,496,333
20 20,477,178 15,644,445
21 38,791,893 28,846,617
22 9,398,101 8,802,893

24 4,603
25 2,633,161 2,612,457
23 23,284 23,284
26 1,374,899 1,325,870
27 3,630,009 2,762,039
299,962,886 269,324,203
28 1,021,699 1,350,840
29 20,601,251 14,013,037
30 5,323,697 3,792,202
31 405,247 425,057
- 6,852,022 5,855,175
17 205,557 122,066
33 1,497,235 2,209,014
34 228,256,750 211,313,073
35 6,453,030 5,482,316
26 1,871 725
36 8,912,145 7,350,741
279,530,505 251,914,246
37 5,476,027 5,476,027
38 1,347,097 673,456
39 1,665,313 1,665,313
40 378,153 52,569
41 1,631,171 1,325,095
42 2,960,717 2,642,080
6,946,404 5,563,615
(2,748) (14,382)
20,402,134 17,383,773
30,247 26,184
20,432,381 17,409,956
299,962,886 269,324,203

2016 3 31
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2015 12 31

2015 1 1

2015 12 31

2014 1 1

2014 12 31
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324,794 39,944 98,773 3,118 78,594 156,707 329,989 (853) 1,031,066 1,553 1,032,619

- - — - - — 180,582 - 180,582 192 180,774

- - - 19,311 - - - 690 20,001 71 20,072

- - — 19,311 - - 180,582 690 200,583 263 200,846

38 - 39,955 — - - — - - 39,955 - 39,955

41 - - - - 18,154 - (18,154) - - - -

42 - - — - - 18,899 (18,899) - - - -
10 — - — - - — (59,113) - (59,113) - (59,113)
10 - — — - - — (2,400) - (2,400) - (2,400)
- — - — - — - — — (22) (22)

324,794 79,899 98,773 22,429 96,748 175,606 412,005 (163) 1,210,091 1,794 1,211,885

324,794 - 98,773  (22,772) 60,632 139,204 243,482 (1,005) 843,108 1,429 844,537

- — — - - — 179,461 — 179,461 49 179,510

- - - 25,890 - - - 152 26,042 75 26,117

- - — 25,890 - - 179,461 152 205,503 124 205,627

38 - 39,944 - - - - - - 39,944 - 39,944

41 - - — - 17,962 - (17,962) - — - -

42 - — - - - 17,503 (17,503) - - - -
10 - - — - - - (57,489) - (57,489) - (57,489)

324,794 39,944 98,773 3,118 78,594 156,707 329,989 (853) 1,031,066 1,553 1,032,619
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(
2015 1 1
5,476,027 673,456 1,665,313 52,569 1,325,095 2,642,080 5,563,615 (14,382) 17,383,773 26,184 17,409,956
_ — - - — — 3,044,613 — 3,044,613 3,237 3,047,850
— — — 325,583 — — — 11,633 337,217 1,197 338,414
- - - 325,583 — — 3,044,613 11,633 3,381,829 4,434 3,386,264
38 _ 673,641 _ _ — — - - 673,641 - 673,641
41 — — — — 306,076 — (306,076) — — - -
42 — — — — — 318,637  (318,637) - — - -
10 _ _ — — — — (996,645) - (996,645) — (996,645)
10 - — - — — — (40,464) - (40,464) — (40,464)
_ _ — — — - — — — (371) ((371)
2015 12
31 5,476,027 1,347,097 1,665,313 378,153 1,631,171 2,960,717 6,946,404 (2,748) 20,402,134 30,247 20,432,381
2014 1 1
5,476,027 — 1,665,313 (383,936) 1,022,256 2,346,979 4,105,107 (16,944) 14,214,801 24,093 14,238,894
_ — — — — — 3,025,712 — 3,025,712 826 3,026,539
_ — — 436,505 - — — 2,563 439,068 1,265 440,333
_ — - 436,505 — — 3,025,712 2,563 3,464,781 2,091 3,466,871
38 — 673,456 — — — — — - 673,456 — 673,456
41 — — - — 302,839 — (302,839) - — - -
42 — — — — — 295,101  (295,101) - - - -
10 — — - — — - (969, 265) - (969, 265) — (969, 265)
2014 12
31 5,476,027 673,456 1,665,313 52,569 1,325,095 2,642,080 5,563,615 (14,382) 17,383,773 26,184 17,409,956
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2015 12 31
(
12 31
2015 2014
230,857 232,257
84,172 67,971
16,743 16,615
2,890 2,713
(145,535) (123,053)
(1,765) (1,002)
10,988 10,179
(5,285) (1,861)
(857) (335)
15
(440) (393)
C ) (11,615) 1,107
180,168 204,198
C ) 108,639 (335,229)
(60,050) (48,818)
6,593 122,146
(824,382) (887,572)
) (19,522) 80,017
90,836 50,560
1,395,723 823,773
(119,076) (119,917)
124,032 214,283
882,961 103,441
(62,613) (68,826)
820,348 34,615
870,994 629,129
135,037 112,781
1
1,032 2,819
(1,752,782) (859,158)
(288)
(21,687) (25,997)
(767,694) (140,425)
40,000 40,000
552,851 271,873
(61,535) (57,489)
(59,113) (57,489)
(2,400)
(22)
(496,684) (213,359)
(11,306) (10,107)
(63) (38)
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(¢1)) (58)
23,246 30,822
75,900 (74,988)
738,241 813,799
7,828 (570)
43 821,969 738,241
554,629 548,718
(245, 840) (229,793)
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12 31
2015 2014
3,892,249 3,915,853
1,419,140 1,145,991
282,287 280,129
48,725 45,741
(2,453,720) (2,074,674)
(29,758) (16,894)
185,258 171,618
(89,105) (31,376)
(14,449) (5,648)
253
(7.418) (6,626)
)/ (195,829) 18,664
3,037,632 3,442,778
1,831,654 (5,651,961)
(1,012,443) (823,071)
111,158 2,059,382
(13,899,081) (14,964,464)
)/ (329,141) 1,349,087
1,531,495 852,442
23,531,890 13,888,813
(2,007,621) (2,021,801)
2,091,180 3,612,811
14,886,722 1,744,015
(1,055,655) (1,160,406)
13,831,067 583,609
14,684,959 10,607,115
2,276,724 1,901,488
17
17,400 47,528
(29,551,905) (14,485,404)
(4,856)
(365,643) (438,309)
(12,943,321) (2,367,566)
674,400 674,400
9,321,068 4,583,779
(1,037,480) (969, 265)
(996, 645) (969, 265)
(40,464)
371)
(8,374,092) (3,597,233)
(190, 619) (170,404)
(1,062) (641)
(287) (978)
391,928 519,659
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1,279,674 (1,264,298)
12,446,743 13,720,651
131,980 (9,610)
43 13,858,397 12,446,743
9,351,045 9,251,385
(4,144,862) (3,874,310)
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2015 12 31
( )
( ) ( PBOC )
1979 2 23 ( )
( ) 2009 1 15
PBOC 2010 7 15 2010 7 16
(China Banking Regulatory Commission CBRC )
BO002H111000001 100000000005472
69  (No. 69,

Jianguomen Nei Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC)

( )

( 1ASB ) ( IFRS

( 622 )

IFRS
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1.1 2015

2015 12 31

(1) 1AS 19 (2011 )

@) IFRS IFRS 2010 2012

3) IFRS IFRS 2011 2013
(1) 1AS 19 (2011 )

IAS 19 (2011 )
(2) IFRS IFRS 2010 2012

IFRS 2010 2012 IFRS IFRS 2

IFRS 3 IFRS 8 IFRS 13
IAS 24 IAS 16

IAS 38
(3) IFRS IFRS 2011 2013

IFRS 2011 2013 IFRS IFRS

IFRS 1 IFRS 3 IFRS 13

IAS 40

1471424



1.2 ( 622 )
( 622 )
1.3 2015
2015
IAS 27
IAS 27

1ASB IAS 27

2015
1.4 2015
(1) IFRS 14
(2 IFRS 11
(3) 1AS 16 IAS 38
@) 1As 16 IAS 41
(5) IFRS
(6) IFRS 10 IFRS
12 1AS 28
@ 1As
() I1AS 12
) 1As
(10) IFRS 15
(11) IFRS 9
(12) IFRS 16
(13) IFRS 10 1AS
28
(1) IFRS 14

1ASB IFRS 14

IFRS 1
IFRS

IFRS

2012

2014
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IFRS 14

2016
2017
2017
2018
2018
2019
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2016 1 1

2016 1 1
2016 1 1
2016 1 1

2016 1 1

2016 1 1
2016 1 1

e
e

2016 1 1
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(2) IFRS 11
IFRS 11
(3) IAS 16 IAS 38
I1AS 16
IAS 38
(4) IAS 16 IAS 41
( )
1AS 41 1AS 16
IAS 41
(5) IFRS IFRS 2012 2014
IFRS 2012 2014 IFRS
IFRS 5
IFRS 7 IAS 19 1AS
34
(6) IFRS 10  IFRS 12 1AS 28
IFRS 10
IFRS 10

IAS 28
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(7) 1AS 1
IAS 1

(8 IAS 12
IASB 1AS 12

(9 IAS 7
IASB 1AS 7

1ASB
(10) IFRS 15

IFRS 15 5

IFRS 15

(ADIFRS 9

IFRS 9 2014 7 IAS 39
IFRS 9
3 ( ( ocl

0Cl
oClI
IAS 39

IFRS 9
IFRS 9

(12) IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
1AS 17

(13) IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS
10 IAS 28
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IAS 36
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8.1

1AS 19

(

)
4 ( ( FVTPL )
)
FVTPL FVTPL
2
FVTPL

1 IAS 39

( ) FVTPL

FVTPL
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50 1
8.2

IAS 39 1AS
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3%
3%
3%

1.94%-19.40%
8.82%-32.33%
12.13%-19.40%

(
« D
10
11
( )
( )
5-50
3-11
5-8
18
12
13
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19
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12 31

2015 2014
476,988 470,829
321,040 326,541
145,181 138,500
10,767 5,788
83,684 66,152
41,344 35,257
39,745 40,018
25,409 22,784
21,378 27,981
20,507 21,644
14,391 12,516
1,999 1,923
348 185
725,793 699,289

(233,377) (221,706)

(37,036) (26,681)
(10,988) (10,179)
(4,731) (7,318)
(1,890) (1,003)
(1,631) (2,511)
(289, 653) (269, 398)
436,140 429,891
1,765 1,002
12 31

2015 2014
28,628 22,945
20,689 19,279
17,714 21,123
8,962 7,379
8,892 11,031
2,857 3,114
2,547 2,807
205 205
90,494 87,883
(3,401) (3,127)
(1,921) (2,283)
(1,852) (1,766)
) (584)
(7,945) (7.,760)
82,549 80,123
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3
( 12 31
2015 2014
1,370 1,179
[6h) 829 667
1,489 115
(126) (53)
3,562 1,908
@
4
( 12 31
2015 2014
1,693 1,507
)/ an 12
51 (19)
1,727 1,505
5
( 12 31
2015 2014
7,749 3,684
3,237 1,969
2,842 2,915
316 336
255 416
1,628 1,044
16,027 10,364
6
( 12 31
2015 2014
) 110,349 111,469
() 48,461 49,195
©) 29,075 28,880
19,633 19,328
7,984 3,904
3,084 8,898
5,509 471
1,723 1,753
225,818 223,898
1
( 12 31
2015 2014
67,513 66,780
8,851 8,186
4,956 4,454
4,317 3,848
352 328
287 278
3,026 2,977
9,458 12,825
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93,804 95,222
15,151 14,636
1,394 1,611
110,349 111,469
139 (2014 132 )
5%
2014 1 10 ( MOF ) ( SAT )
(  [201415 ) 19
2013 11 1 2015 12 31 3%
2015 11 MOF SAT
(  [2015167 )
2015 2015 12 31
(  [2015167 ) (  [2014]5

1% %

3% S%
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) 2015 12 31
xXi
_ 448 66 53 567
OID) - 403 66 53 522
(i) - 403 66 53 522
397 — - - 397
399 — - - 399
376 — - - 376
(iii) 292 — - - 292
(iv) — — _ _ _
™ - - - - -
™ - - - - -
i) - - - - -
OID! - - - - -
W (vii) - - _ _ _
V) (viii) — _ _ _ _
(ix) - 261 40 32 333
) - - - - -
xi) 30 — - - 30
xi) 30 — - - 30
xi) 30 — - - 30
(xii) 143 — — — 143
(xii) 143 — — — 143
- 403 66 53 522
- 403 66 53 522
- 403 66 53 522
xiii) - 202 34 28 264
(xiv) - 405 58 98 561
xv) - 448 66 53 567
(xvi) 157 - - - 157
(xvi) 164 — — — 164
V) (xvii) — _ _ _ _
V) (xvii) — _ _ _ _
V) (xvii) — _ _ _ _
(xviii) - 149 21 17 187
(xix) 25 - - - 25
xii) 138 — - - 138
(xx) - 491 40 59 590
2,324 4,419 655 605 8,003
2015
2015
2015
2015 15
2015 14
2015 2 28
2015 29
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2015
xi
X 2015 29 2015 29
X 2015
X 2015 24
X 2015 12
X 2015
X 2015 16
X 2015 28
X 2015 10 26
X 2015
xxi
2015 12 31
( ) 2014 12 31 ( )
XV
() 293 21 39 353
() 1,581 113 216 1,910
() 1,492 109 206 1,807
410 410
440 440
350 350
360 360
360 360
)
)
)
)
CHC)H
1,546 111 212 1,869
)
() 30 30
() 30 30
() 30 30
CHC)H
280 280
1,491 109 206 1,806
1,491 109 206 1,806
1,491 109 206 1,806
() 1,491 109 206 1,806
() 839 71 66 976
() 1,318 90 177 1,585
() 995 72 137 1,204
D)
( i)
(xiii)
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(xiv) 30 30
2,320 14,028 1,023 1,877 19,248
2014 12 11
2014 7 31
2014 6 23 2014
2014 12 2
2014 3 27 2014 3 27
2014 8 31
2014 9 9
xi 2014 7 28
X 2014 8 5
X 2014 4 24 2014
X 2014 12 2
XV
2014 2014 12 31
2014
11.73 2015 27 19.25
2014
2 5
5 2015
2014 12 31 5
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
10,075 7,435
8,271 7,682
1,091 867
19,437 15,984
5
12 31
2015 2014
2,500,000 3,000,000 - 1
3,000,001 3,500,000 — 3
3,500,001 4,000,000 4 1
4,000,001 4,500,000 1 —
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
5 ( )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
7.
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2014 12 31
12 31
2015 2014
81,897 65,063
925 279
841 861
78 @37
(167) 1,181
- 27
598 597
84,172 67,971
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9
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
58,661 65,291
410 386
301 222
59,372 65,899
( 26 ) (9,289) (13,152)
50,083 52,747
25%
( )
2015 2014 12 31
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
230,857 232,257
(25%) 57,714 58,064
[€)) (8,962) (7,083)
1,361 1,770
(30) O)
50,083 52,747
1
10
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
( )
2014 () 59,113
2013 ® 57,489
59,113 57,489
[O)) 2,400
1 2014
2015 6 29 ( GAAP )
2014 ( ) 2014 1 0.182 59,113
2015 12 31
2 2013
2014 6 23 GAAP 2013 (
) 2013 1 0.177 57,489
2014 12 31
3 2015 12 31 1 0.1668 54,176
4
6 2,400 2015 10 23 2015 11
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2015

2014 12 31

(

2014 12 31

2015
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12 31
2015 2014

180,582 179,461

(2,400)

178,182 179,461

324,794 324,794

0.55 0.55
2,400
2015



12
(
1
2015 3 12
[2015767
2014 12 31
20%
2
3
13
(
2015 12 31
3,240
14
(

2015
18%
20
(
2014 12 31
(

1,833

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
12 31
2015 2014
116,390 111,962
) 2,216,082 2,409,181
) 58,656 49,253
3) 195,929 172,669
2,587,057 2,743,065
PBOC 2015 12 31 15%
17% 2014 12 31
5% 2014 12 31 5%
PBOC
PBOC
PBOC
2015 8 31 PBOC PBOC
12
12 31
2015 2014
656,601 543,394
2,748 2,021
38,581 27,390
697,930 572,805
)
697,923 572,805
12 31
2015 2014
129,493 124,060
324,620 267,358
51,743 17,400
505,856 408,818
(1,604) (1,756)
504,252 407,062
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12 31
2015 2014

4,464 3,545
23,754 23,445
26,793 1,112
10,039 12,708
65,050 40,810
14,732 17,615
79,782 58,425
@ 65,050 40,632
14,732 17,793
79,782 58,425

12 31

2015 2014
17,031 11,235
55,099 25,278
22,063 2,899
12,040 6,681
106,233 46,093
@ 201,583 248,794
@ 47,714 59,876
3,949 1,472
359,479 356,235
1,871 816
0 75,656 31,963
281,952 323,456
359,479 356,235
46

176/424
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/
/
2015 2014 12 31
) 2015 12 31

/
1,307,952 13,737 (11,102)
22,704 134 92)
13,871 (11,194)
158,118 920 (961)
32,049 1,247 €
16,038 (12,192)

) 2014 12 31

/
828,028 5,746 (6.,167)
33,112 72 (79)
5,818 (6,246)
166,002 795 (936)
12,732 561 (598)

55 21

7,195 (7.240)

1771424
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CBRC

178/424

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

2013 1 1
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
50
12 31
2015 2014
19,364 12,576
12 31
2015 2014
179,068 209,160
292,741 300,258
471,809 509,418

47

oOoOooodn
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2015 12 31

2014 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2015 2014
5,818,306 5,516,854
356,995 180,229
6,175,301 5,697,083
2,734,617 2,400,984
8,909,918 8,098,067
(133,900) (73,094)
(269,343) (284,977)
(403,243) (358,071)
8,506,675 7,739,996
(&)
Q )
8,697,051 31,889 180,978 212,867 8,909,918 2.39
(247,294) (22,049)  (133,900)  (155,949)  (403,243)
8,449,757 9,840 47,078 56,918 8,506,675
7,973,097 21,063 103,907 124,970 8,098,067 1.54
(270,386) (14,591) (73,094) (87,685)  (358,071)
7,702,711 6,472 30,813 37,285 7,739,996

179/424



2015 1 1

2015 12 31

2014 1 1

2014 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd

2015 12 31
73,094 284,977 358,071
103,532 49,622 153,154
(8,447) (62,810) (71,257)
95,085 (13,188) 81,897
(33,921) (7.408) (41,329)
805 425 1,230
(1,302) (463) (1,765)
4,626 4,626
139 374 513
133,900 269,343 403,243

2014 12 31
50,127 272,064 322,191
58,579 59,031 117,610
(9,976) (42,571) (52,547)
48,603 16,460 65,063
(25,772) (3.450) (29,222)
921 220 1,141
(688) (314) (1,002)
©n (©) (100)
73,094 284,977 358,071

180/424
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1
2
3 2015 12 31

21

2014 12 31

264

46

314

181/424
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OooooOodd
12 31
2015 2014
333,537 147,513
465,630 449,232
176,548 138,698
226,882 186,574
1,202,597 922,017
@ 6,586 3,358
@ 5,359 2,528
1,214,542 927,903
41,923 19,163
) 1,148,771 892,466
11,903 10,388
396 79
7,687 4,307
3) 3,862 1,500
1,214,542 927,903
12 31
2015 2014

852,367 548,330

1,061,581 936,274

202,729 67,878

185,967 159,349

2,302,644 1,711,831

(1,820) (881)

2,300,824 1,710,950

6,221 1,381

@) 2,278,021 1,700,044

16,582 9,525

2,300,824 1,710,950




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
22
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
MOF @) 272,023 278,314
) 93,300 93,300
42,841 —
39,786 56,141
57,339 45,334
32,514 35,020
2,929 3,590
3) 18,733 11,621
559,465 523,320
(1,470) 478)
(575) (725)
(2,045) (1,203)
557,420 522,117
1 MOF [2008] 138 MOF 2008 1 1
15 1 3. 3%
2 1998 MOF 933
2028 2008 12 1 2.25%
3 46

182/424
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23
(1)2015 12 31

/ ) ®
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2000 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 3,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
(UK) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 200,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 20,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 100,000,000 51.00 51.00
( )2005 12 19 2,032,653,061 51.00 51.00
( ) 2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) 2014 12 23 1,400,000,000 100.00 100.00
2015 12 31
( 3 2
( 2012 12 31 51%
2012 12 31 1,381 2015 12 31
@) ( WMP )

183/424



24

25

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015
2015

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014

2014
2014

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

11

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
273 —
CFA XAF )
( ) 2015 5 28
BSCA
142,795 56,048 4,814 23,885 227,542
2,686 7,963 8 8,008 18,665
10,210 364 - (10,574)

(407) (1,828) (236) (486) (2,957)
155,284 62,547 4,586 20,833 243,250
(38,733)  (30,788) (2,753) - (72,274)

(8,129) (8,285) (329) - (16,743)
244 1,795 224 - 2,263
(46,618)  (37,278) (2,858) _ (86,754)

(299) () @ ® (318)

(299) ® (@) ® (318)
108,367 25,260 1,726 20,825 156,178
103,763 25,251 2,059 23,877 154,950
124,294 55,314 4,746 28,682 213,036

1,526 7,703 604 13,263 23,096
17,569 491 (18,060)

(594) (7.460) (536) (8,590)
142,795 56,048 4,814 23,885 227,542
(31,529)  (27,400) (2,947) (61,876)

(7,574) (8,723) (318) (16,615)
370 5,335 512 6,217
(38,733)  (30,788) (2,753) (72,274)
(288) (10) @ [6)) (301)
(20) ™ @n

9 1 10

(299) ® (©)) ® (318)
103,763 25,251 2,059 23,877 154,950

92,477 27,904 1,797 28,681 150,859

184/424



2015 12 31
26
( )
1
( )
2015 1 1
C )
2015 12 31
2014 1 1
C )
2014 12 31
2 /(
( )

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2015 2014

81,548 78,640

(111) (43)

81,437 78,597

)

67,514 6,248 2,235 3,476 (900) 24 78,597
9,671 193 (304) 945 (1,258) 42 9,289
(6,449) (6,449)

77,185 6,441 1,931 4,421 (8.607) 66 81,437
56,137 6,165 2,589 1,181 8,011 (16) 74,067
11,377 83 (354) 2,295 (289) 40 13,152
(8,622) (8,622)

67,514 6,248 2,235 3,476 (900) 24 178,597

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
/ / / /
) (G ) )

308,741 77,185 270,124 67,514

15,703 3,926 10,404 2,601

25,765 6,441 24,992 6,248

7,724 1,931 8,938 2,235

17,682 4,421 13,902 3,476

392 97 228 57

376,007 94,001 328,588 82,131
(50,130) (12,533) (14,006) (3,501)

(125) (31) (140) (33)

(50,255) (12,564) (14,146) (3.534)

325,752 81,437 314,442 78,597

185/424
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27
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
104,775 97,948
@ 23,036 23,524
0 44,576 16,708
27,001 13,532
3,587 3,649
2,997 2,846
2,740 2,593
1,699 487
4,892 2,535
215,303 163,822
1
2015 12 31
2
28
2015 12 31 PBOC 58,600
2014 12 31 80,000
29
( ) 12 31
2015 2014

116,519 148,043
1,091,258 666,905
9,514 13,045
4,610 3,148
1,221,901 831,141

186/424
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Ogoooood
30
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
145,255 62,537
170,504 162,386
315,759 224,923
31
32
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
406,407 347,282
2015 12 31

2014 12 31

187/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
33
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
88,333 131,021
471
88,804 131,021
47 —
34
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
3,229,703 3,012,527
3,898,806 3,546,541
1,662,658 1,485,274
4,174,684 3,882,102
@ 319,757 299,437
252,752 307,516
13,538,360 12,533,397
1
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
113,421 118,330
77,903 50,423
66,093 63,630
16,739 21,567
45,601 45,487
319,757 299,437
35
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
) 198,476 191,994
o) 165,508 113,388
3) 11,586 11,800
4) 7,172 7,985
382,742 325,167
2015 2014 12 31

188/424



2017
2018
2024
2024
2020
2026
2027
2015

10

10

10

12
11

2015 10
2015 10
2009 5

2014 8

2015 10

2011 6

2012 12

4.99%
2012 11

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOood
12 31
) 2015 2014
4_15% () 600
2.125% () 2,597
4_.0% () 25,000 25,000
5.8% Tier2 () 30,000 30,000
2.75% () 3,247
5.3% () 50,000 50,000
4._.99% () 50,000 50,000
3.2% () 1,000
() 37,164 36,125
198,608 192,125
(132) (131)
198,476 191,994
4.15% 2 2
2.125% 2 3
4.0% 1 15 2019 5 20
2019 5 20 7.0%
Tier2 5.8% 1 10
2019 8 17
2019 8 18 5.8% Tier2 Tier2
Tier2 CBRC Tier2
2.75% 2 5
5.3% 1 15 2021 6 7
2021 6 7 5. 3%
4.99% 1 15 2022 12 20
2022 12 20
3.2% 2 3 2015
) 2015 12 31
(%)
2016 1 2020 5 0.5-2.875 27,055
2016 5 2019 8 3.23-3.80 6,091
2016 9 2018 5 3 LIBOR 0.43 -1.33 2,500
2016 3 2017 3 0.31-0.48 497
2016 3 2016 6 1.0-1.15 413
2016 3 0.21 108
2016 2 - 500
37,164
) 2014 12 31
(%)
2015 1 2018 12 0.21-2.875 18,774
2015 2 2019 8 2.70-3.80 11,683
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2015 7 2015 8 0.85-1.00 1,743
2015 4 2017 3 3 LIBOR 0.88 -1.35 1,626
2015 8 2015 9 0.99-1.12 895
2015 5 2015 8 1.35-1.49 600
2015 8 2015 11 0.50-0.70 431
2015 1 - 373
36,125
2 2015 12 31
7 7 0%  4.5% 2014 12 31
9 7 0%  4.20%
3 2015 12 31
7 1 0%  1.05%
2014 12 31 7 1 0.19%  0.93%
4 2015 12 31
3 2 0%  3.32%
2014 12 31 3 1 0%  4.76%
36
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
225,383 192,876
69,589 42,789
69,419 46,433
@ 39,890 40,511
38,007 41,338
17,682 13,902
MOF 0 7,330 3,275
7,117 7,535
1,576 1,616
52,514 45,712
528,597 435,987

190/424
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OooooOodd
12 31
2015 2014
() 31,721 30,952
) 445 621
() 7,724 8,938
39,890 40,511
2015
11 12 31
©) 24,228 67,513 (67,968) 23,773
©) 183 8,851 (8,856) 178
©) 178 4,956 (5,010) 124
154 4,317 (4,364) 107
12 287 (291) 8
12 352 (355) 9
3,183 3,026 (2,228) 3,981
3,180 9,458 (8,973) 3,665
30,952 93,804 (93,035) 31,721
2014
11 12 31
©) 24,973 66,780 (67,525) 24,228
©) 245 8,186 (8,248) 183
©) 181 4,454 (4,457) 178
149 3,848 (3,843) 154
16 278 (282) 12
16 328 (332) 12
2,726 2,977 (2,520) 3,183
6,389 12,825 (16,034) 3,180
34,514 95,222 (98,784) 30,952
2015
11 12 31
541 11,150 (11,295) 396
66 721 (743) 44
14 3,280 (3,289) 5
621 15,151 (15,327) 445
2014
11 12 31
629 10,695 (10,783) 541
65 804 (803) 66
9 3,137 (3,132) 14
703 14,636 (14,718) 621

191/424
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( ) 2015
11 12 31
8,938 1,394 (2,608) 7,724
( ) 2014
11 12 31
10,356 1,611 (3,029) 8,938
12 31
2015 2014
2.57% 3.41%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2000 2003
2 MOF
MOF [2008] 138

MOF MOF MOF

192/424
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37
2015 2014
( ) 12 31
( )
A 1 1 294,055 294,055
H 1 1 30,739 30,739
324,794 324,794
A H
2015 12 31 H (2014 12 31
A 9,892 )
38
) ) ( )
5
6%
100 400 40,000
-1
5
5
5.5%
_ 9 100 400 40,000
800 1 100
2014 11 1 400 2015 12 31 (
) 39,944 1 5 6%
5 5
2.29%
2015 3 2 400 2015 12 31 (
) 39,955 2 5 5.5%
5 2.24%

193/424



A)

Tierl

39

2010

40

2015 1 1

2015 12 31

2014 1 1

2014 12 31

/(

/(

194/424
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Tier2

( [2012]56 2(3))
2.43

CBRC

2015

4,176  (1,058) 3,118

26,218  (6,542) 19,676
(487) 122 (365)

29,907 (7,478) 22,429

2014

(30,313) 7,541 (22,772)

34,722 (8,657) 26,065
(233) 58 (175)

4,176 (1,058) 3,118




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOoog
4
GAAP 10%
50%
2016 3 31 GAAP
10% 18,078 2014 17,894
25%
42
MOF [2012] 20 2012 7 1
1.5%
2015 12 31 18,899
2014 17,503 2014 12 31
18,721 2014 17,330 2015 6 29

43

3
12 31

( ) 2015 2014
116,390 111,962
90,035 76,525
128,173 68,355
234,139 197,151
253,232 284,248
821,969 738,241

44

195/424
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
(
)
2015 12 31
233,765 116,679 73,291 83,188 67,071 113,792 20,485 17,522 _ 725,793
(19,204)  (64,711)  (34,978)  (53,948)  (43,216)  (49,637) (15,026)  (8,933) - (289,653)
( (178,365) 36,616 21,233 43,284 35,342 30,231 11,223 436 - -
)
36,196 88,584 59,546 72,524 59,197 94,386 16,682 9,025 — 436,140
17,535 16,759 12,920 11,909 10,234 16,492 3,615 1,030 - 90,494
@757) (1,545) (1,443) (1,033) (1,293) (1,459) (322) (93) - (7,945)
16,778 15,214 11,477 10,876 8,941 15,033 3,293 937 - 82,549
2,196 58 121 80 88 134 71 814 - 3,562
1,483 102 4 146 - @ - 43) - 1,727
/
C )
96 _ _ — - - - 761 - 857
2,172 1,127 895 593 576 3,800 196 6,668 - 16,027
58,921 105,085 72,080 84,219 68,802 113,351 20,242 18,162 _ 540,862
9,677)  (37,801)  (26,731)  (34,694)  (34,793)  (55,435) (15,113) (11,574) - (225,818)
(2,075)  (27,785)  (12,493)  (12,113) (5,983)  (24,435) 1,875 (1,163) - (84,172)
47,169 39,499 32,856 37,412 28,026 33,481 7,004 5,425 - 230,872
(15) - - - - - - - - (15)
47,154 39,499 32,856 37,412 28,026 33,481 7,004 5,425 — 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
1,847 3,186 2,235 3,035 3,391 4,397 1,370 172 - 19,633
2,338 1,880 2,029 3,889 3,445 5,196 1,316 1,340 — 21,433
2015 12 31
4,432,038 3,696,602 2,282,608 3,255,511 2,542,695 3,586,925 838,650 782,258 (3,707,532) 17,709,845
273 - - - - - - - - 273
81,548
17,791,393
® 12,860 33,596 18,713 30,663 29,523 43,005 12,423 9,409 - 190,192

(3,299,014) (3,699,920) (2,275,314) (3,251,913) (2,530,704) (3,593,727) (835,551) (762,690) 3,707,532 (16,541,301)

(38,207)

(16,579,508)

29,972

440,928

199,864

306,640

155,778

226,098

65,815

58,619 - 1,483,714

197/424
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Ooooooog
(
)
2014 12 31
195,050 120,056 79,418 87,736 67,622 113,607 20,717 15,083 699,289
(17,947)  (59,107)  (33,242)  (50,234)  (39,903)  (46,172) (14,182)  (8,611) (269,398)
Y ( (134,867) 24,333 11,247 33,126 29,229 27,096 9,455 381
42,236 85,282 57,423 70,628 56,948 94,531 15,990 6,853 429,891
12,679 17,100 12,959 12,321 11,849 16,651 3,350 974 87,883
(517) (1,542) (1,468) (1,146) (1,269) (1,427) (346) (45) (7,760)
12,162 15,558 11,491 11,175 10,580 15,224 3,004 929 80,123
/¢ ) 3,196 133 104 77 93 256 83 (2,034) 1,908
1,383 22 54 01 @ 44) 1,505
/
C )
'Y 12) 347 335
Y ( (435) 1,018 613 755 402 2,458 142 5,411 10,364
58,530 102,013 69,685 82,726 68,023 112,468 19,219 11,462 524,126
(11,598)  (39,131)  (28,276)  (35,222)  (35,454)  (52,093) (15,371)  (6,753) (223,898)
(2,569)  (18,152)  (10,182)  (16,826) (7,285)  (12,872) 464 (549) (67,971)
44,363 44,730 31,227 30,678 25,284 47,503 4,312 4,160 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
1,639 3,171 2,289 2,921 3,374 4,362 1,428 144 19,328
1,610 3,333 2,961 3,943 3,967 7,051 1,617 1,378 25,860
2014 12 31
4,211,552 3,147,375 1,928,364 2,629,880 2,276,362 3,152,220 743,602 590,362 (2,784,205) 15,895,512
78,640
15,974,152
® 10,481 36,833 18,919 29,870 29,437 42,106 12,531 8,766 188,943
(3,254,625) (3,143,950) (1,923,067) (2,627,471) (2,267,258) (3,145,053) (745,298) (577,635) 2,784,205 (14,900,152)
(41,381)
(14,941,533)
32,555 457,653 211,896 345,025 172,803 263,993 60,369 38,431 1,582,725
1
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(
2015 12 31
349,680 145,375 226,730 4,008 725,793
(98,642)  (168,061)  (21,541) (1,409)  (289,653)
)/ (19,707) 176,040  (156,333)
231,331 153,354 48,856 2,599 436,140
43,764 45,529 1,201 90,494
(2.352) (5.528) (65) (7,945)
41,412 40,001 1,136 82,549
3,602 (40) 3,562
66 1,318 299 44 1,727
103 754 857
2,587 2,006 2,896 8,538 16,027
275,396 196,679 55,756 13,031 540,862
(92,867)  (96,439)  (25,010)  (11,502)  (225,818)
(79,500) (1,924) (1,708) (1,040)  (84,172)
103,029 98,316 29,038 489 230,872
(15) (15)
103,029 98,316 29,038 474 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
3,785 11,460 4,281 107 19,633
3,950 11,958 4,467 1,058 21,433
2015 12 31
6,086,284 3,181,175 8,300,506 141,880 17,709,845
273 273
81,548
17,791,393

(6,155,984) (9,232,539) (1,024,999)

(127,779) (16,541,301)
(38,207)

(16,579,508)

1,148,227

335,487

1,483,714
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

( )
2014 12 31
351,644 138,133 205,715 3,797 699,289
(93,897)  (152,025)  (21,908) (1,568)  (269,398)
( )/ (22,285) 166,724  (144,439)
235,462 152,832 39,368 2,229 429,891
45,921 40,857 23 1,082 87,883
(2,478) (5,240) 0 (40) (7,760)
43,443 35,617 21 1,042 80,123
1,818 90 1,908
s 1,524 (19) 1,505
« Y () 343 335
1,796 1,427 2,963 4,178 10,364
280,701 189,876 45,686 7,863 524,126
(100,065)  (97,354)  (20,086) (6,393)  (223,898)
(56,215) (9,491) (1,850) 415)  (67,971)
124,421 83,031 23,750 1,055 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
4,139 11,223 3,885 81 19,328
5,555 15,065 5,214 26 25,860
2014 12 31
5,571,140 2,826,973 7,388,768 108,631 15,895,512
78,640
15,974,152
(5.621,221) (8,214,892)  (968,350)  (95,689) (14,900,152)
(41,381)
(14,941,533)
1,252,331 330,394 1,582,725

201/424
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(
2015 12 31
166,863 558,930 725,793
(100,263)  (189,390) (289,653)
/( ) 101,332 (101,332)
167,932 268,208 436,140
31,289 59,205 90,494
(3,098) (4,847) (7,945)
28,191 54,358 82,549
210 3,352 3,562
63 1,664 1,727
857 857
4,483 11,544 16,027
200,879 339,983 540,862
(91,828)  (133,990) (225,818)
(33,649)  (50,523) (84,172)
75,402 155,470 230,872
(15) (15)
75,402 155,455 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
9,036 10,597 19,633
8,896 12,537 21,433
2015 12 31
6,379,322 11,432,038  (101,515) 17,709,845
273 273
81,548
17,791,393

(5,992,911) (10,649,905)

101,515 (16,541,301)
(38,207)

(16,579,508)

301,417

1,182,297

1,483,714

202/424
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(
2014 12 31
166,526 532,763 699,289
(93,707)  (175,691) (269, 398)
/( 94,083 (94,083)
166,902 262,989 429,891
31,348 56,535 87,883
(3.152) (4,608) (7,760)
28,196 51,927 80,123
222 1,686 1,908
39 1,466 1,505
335 335
2,719 7,645 10,364
198,078 326,048 524,126
(93,018)  (130,880) (223,898)
(28,240)  (39,731) (67,971)
76,820 155,437 232,257
(52,747)
179,510
8,865 10,463 19,328
8,210 17,650 25,860
2014 12 31

5,841,613 10,136,

691 (82,792) 15,895,512
78,640

15,974,152

(5.509,147) (9,473,

797) 82,792 (14,900,152)
(41,381)

(14,941,533)

323,296 1,259,

429 1,582,725
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
45
1 MOF
2015 12 31 MOF 39.21% 2014 12 31 39.21%
MOF
MOF
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
656,427 734,578
MOF ( 22) 272,023 278,314
7,734 9,366
MOF 25 26
3,665 272
MOF ( 36) 7,330 3,275
10,309 10,613
12 10
(VOF ) 103 105
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
41,987 38,623
(126) (82)
7,948 7,430
MOF
12 31
2015 2014
% %
MOF 1.94 - 9.00 1.85 — 9.00
0.01 - 3.06 0.01 - 3.25
47
2
2015 12 31 40.03% 2014 12 31 40.28%
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12 31
2015 2014
12,137 11,244
145 134
20,500
8,001 3,829
537
12 31
2015 2014
391 429
(956) Q77
12 31
2015 2014
% %
3.16 - 4.20 3.14 - 4.20
4.35 — 5.00
0.72 - 2.80 0.72 - 3.30
12 31
2015 2014

817,653 769,490

76,061 40,060
62,752 92,797
1,111 451

33,134 39,363
20,358 4,219
63,087 30,342
73,087 44,965
1,444 465

83,000 110,300
1,000

2,000 200

15,700 300

205/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
3
4
5
6
2015 2014 12 31
12 31
2014
( ) 2015 ( )
8.00 19.25
2015 12 31
2014 12 31 2014
2014
11.73 2015 8 27 19.25
2014
7
12 31
( ) 2015 2014
8,050 8,050
15 15

12 31
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( ) 2015 2014
490 490
12 31
2015 2014
b B
5.75 - 6.20 5.75 - 6.20
46.
€H)
( WP )
( WP ) WP
WP
WP
WP
WP
WP
2015 12 31 WP WP
1,102,201 2014 12 31 672,983 2015 12 31
WP 6,721 2014
5,070 427 2014 499 ( WP
WP 2015
2015 12 31 18,742 4.40 78,000
2014 2014 12 31 19,788
( 3.72 ) 81,300
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
WP
2015 12 31 2014 12 31 WP
WP WP
WP 2015 2014
WP WP WP
@
WP WP
2015 12 31
2015 12 31
( )
201,583 201,583

207/424
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OooooOodd
47,714 47,714
; 100 2,460 16,812 19,372
675 2,253 24 2,952
6,586 6,586
41 36 7
250,072 11,340 36 16,836 278,284
2014 12 31
( )
248,794 248,794
59,876 59,876
i 10,613 10,613
5,054 5,054
3,358 3,358
48 40 88
308, 670 8,460 40 10,613 327,783
(i) WP
€))
WP WP
WP WP WP
2015 12 31 2014 12 31 WP
47.
36
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
4,836 5,302
2015 12 31 (2014 12 31
306 )

208/424
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OoOoOooOodd
) 12 31
2015 2014
14,351 15,664
436,082 425,394
450,433 441,058
382,255 418,937
258,745 254,222
233,376 241,171
158,905 227,337
1,483,714 1,582,725
CBRC (2013 1 1 )
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
) 12 31
2015 2014

774,925 800,383

209/424
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2015
: 4,743

2015 12 31

2015 12 31
(2014 12 31

33

102,364

2014 12 31

: 35,502

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2015 2014
4,107 4,206
3,169 3,153
2,473 2,525
2,969 3,193
1,627 1,969
14,345 15,046
5,115 (2014
33,051
12 31
2015 2014
3,794 1,991
8,010 11,511
14,534 17,829
6,713 4,171
33,051 35,502
12 31
2015 2014
89,651 131,828
473
90,124 131,828
2015 12 31
88,804 (2014 12 31 131,021
12
48
2015 12 31 114,458 2014 12 31

210/424
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18
2015 12 31
2014 12 31
3,055
MOF
2015 12 31 53,697
2014 12 31 44,879 3 5
MOF
48
8.8
2015 12 31
47 5,986 (2014 12 31
9,157 )
2015 12 31
10,125 (2014 12 31 10,125 ) 2015 12 31
844 (2014 12 31 967 )

49
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49.1

2015
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CBRC

) 12 31
2015 2014
2,470,667 2,631,103
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697,923 572,805
504,252 407,062
79,762 58,404
355,530 354,763
16,038 7,195
471,809 509,418
8,506,675 7,739,996
1,202,597 922,017
2,300,824 1,710,950
557,420 522,117
176,352 128,188
17,339,849 15,564,018
1,483,714 1,582,725
18,823,563 17,146,743

214/424
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12 31
2015 2014
(@) (@)

215,317 3.5 147,614 2.6
1,355,458 22.0 1,312,497 23.0
724,691 11.7 669,532 11.8
1,062,323 17.2 1,036,523 18.2
774,559 12.5 684,153 12.0
1,346,434 21.8 1,236,514 21.7
256,614 4.2 217,926 3.8
439,905 7.1 392,324 6.9
6,175,301 100.0 5,697,083 100.0

101 107
692,935 25.4 606,026 25.2
538,353 19.7 440,572 18.3
401,251 14.7 345,542 14.4
357,957 13.1 335,059 14.0
629,495 23.0 573,220 23.9
107,798 3.9 96,113 4.0
6,727 0.2 4,345 0.2
2,734,617 100.0 2,400,984 100.0

8,909,918 8,098,067
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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12 31
2015 2014
Q) Q)
1,481,883 24.0 1,459,857 25.6
924,356 15.0 779,230 13.7
650,670 10.5 629,609 11.1
604,313 9.8 551,929 9.7
548,388 8.9 587,916 10.3
461,772 7.5 399,910 7.0
457,823 7.4 218,286 3.8
260,558 4.2 261,932 4.6
216,636 3.5 212,961 3.7
205,797 3.3 209,769 3.7
363,105 5.9 385,684 6.8
6,175,301 100.0 5,697,083 100.0
1,927,049 70.5 1,550,702 64.6
230,424 8.4 266,913 111
185,531 6.8 204,102 .5
222,206 8.1 222,865 .3
169,407 6.2 156,402 .5
2,734,617 100.0 2,400,984 100.0
8,909,918 8,098,067
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2015 12 31
1 5 5
916,995 340,169 839,763 2,096,927
692,293 263,559 393,338 1,349,190
1,127,445 649,224 2,489,132 4,265,801
623,149 71,132 503,719 1,198,000

3,359,882 1,324,084 4,225,952 8,909,918

2014 12 31
1 5 5
794,488 295,993 705,780 1,796,261
785,858 285,079 317,351 1,388,288
1,164,594 668,884 2,105,571 3,939,049
476,414 52,629 445,426 974,469

3,221,354 1,302,585 3,574,128 8,098,067

2015 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
7,311 8,522 2,190 271 18,294
21,478 26,103 18,134 4,143 69,858
67,076 63,271 37,878 6,716 174,941
2,600 7,202 5,049 1,568 16,419

98,465 105,098 63,251 12,698 279,512

2014 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
9,442 4,744 616 371 15,173
19,103 14,380 7,639 4,559 45,681
40,740 32,292 13,845 7,585 94,462
3,854 5,041 721 1,688 11,304

73,139 56,457 22,821 14,203 166,620

217/424



EDINETOOOO
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12 31
2015 2014
() 8,623,179 7,923,816
) 73,872 49,281
() 212,867 124,970
8,909,918 8,098,067
(403,243) (358,071)
8,506,675 7,739,996
2015 12 31
5,648,447 303,383 5,951,830
2,669,491 1,858 2,671,349
8,317,938 305,241 8,623,179
2014 12 31
5,303,893 265,154 5,569,047
2,352,828 1,941 2,354,769
7,656,721 267,095 7,923,816
2015 12 31
31 61 91
60 90 360
22,914 11,599 7,981 42,494 38,567
18,080 7,716 5,582 31,378 20,059
40,994 19,315 13,563 73,872 58,626
2014 12 31
31 61 91
60 90 360
15,280 3,978 3,575 1,290 24,123 23,606
15,662 5,440 4,053 3 25,158 33,285
30,942 9,418 7,628 1,293 49,281 56,891

218/424
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2015 12 31
180,978 (133,900) 47,078
31,889 (22,049) 9,840
212,867 (155,949) 56,918
2014 12 31
103,907 (73,094) 30,813
21,063 (14,591) 6,472
124,970 (87,685) 37,285
12 31
2015 2014
180,978 103,907
2.03% 1.28%
29,319 14,697
12 31
2015 2014
Q) Q)
7 7
41,684 19.6 26,242 21.0
29,600 13.9 16,790 13.4
40,005 18.8 26,727 21.4
28,084 13.2 18,656 14.9
63,921 30.0 30,332 24.3
6,036 2.8 5,368 4.3
3,530 1.7 848 0.7
212,867 100.0 124,970 100.0

219/424



2015 12 31
26,403

27
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27,919 2014 12 31
12 31
2015 2014
@ 2,858,931 2,233,960
©)) 3,178 1,101
2,862,109 2,235,151
(1,470) (478)
(2,395) (1,606)
(3,865) (2,084)
2,858,244 2,233,067




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ogoooood
1

( ) 2015 12 31
- 21,495 333,537 852,367 42,841 1,250,240
- 78,853 465,589 1,061,581 39,786 1,645,809
- 48,856 176,073 202,729 57,339 484,997
- 22,079 226,882 185,967 31,971 466,899
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,929 2,929
201,583 201,583
47,714 16,098 63,812
420,580 1,202,081 2,302,644 556,287 4,481,592

( ) 2014 12 31
- 14,780 147,513 548,330 710,623
- 48,723 449,183 936,274 56,141 1,490,321
- 4,011 137,730 67,878 45,334 254,953
- 19,389 186,574 159,349 34,475 399,787
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,590 3,590
248,794 248,794
59,876 10,975 70,851
395,573 921,000 1,711,831 522,129 3,550,533

221/424
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2014 12 31

295
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

516
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2015 12 31
543 543
2,635 2,635
3,178 3,178
(1,470) (1,470)
1,708 1,708

2014 12 31
545 545
646 646
1,191 1,191
(478) (478)
713 713

2015 12 31
2014 12 31 1,017

12 31



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
3
( ) 2015 12 31

() AAA AA A A
- 940,929 300,747 7,607 119 362 1,249,764
- 1,495,085 143,007 4,227 3,121 1,645,440
- 314,173 100,889 24,517 30,081 14,803 484,463
- () 53,854 353,589 11,833 35,404 12,203 466,883
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,929 2,929
( ) 201,583 201,583
() 65,036 65,036
3,438,912 898,232 48,184 68,725 27,368 4,481,421

( ) 2014 12 31

() AAA AA A A
- 694,230 10,297 809 5,287 710,623
- 1,372,558 110,807 3,044 3,783 1,490,192
- 170,221 48,639 15,686 13,636 6,958 255,140
_ () 51,096 289,920 11,875 42,033 4,701 399,625
93,300 93,300
MOF 278,314 278,314
3,590 3,590
() 248,794 248,794
() 71,079 71,079
2,983,182 459,663 31,414 64,739 11,659 3,550,657

MOF
51,553 2014 12 31 31,704
3
51

223/424
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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2015 12 31
3
1 12 1
5 5

175,046 31,379 3,147 2,377,485 2,587,057
62,223 67,391 106,999 460,050 1,260 697,923
228,400 60,359 206,024 9,469 504,252
20 9,188 16,872 33,146 16,580 3,976 79,782
28,991 49,415 181,918 62,543 32,663 3,949 359,479
1,512 2,047 11,164 1,224 91 16,038
275,867 127,105 68,837 471,809
46,176 436,319 758,211 2,520,971 1,764,276 2,980,722 8,506,675
30,086 40,705 214,175 608,815 308,816 11,945 1,214,542
28,330 37,773 297,731 1,109,860 827,130 2,300,824
1 72 1,537 4,568 28,219 100,398 422,625 557,420
1,930 41,439 26,254 53,739 52,574 367 49 176,352

48,107 278,800 1,165,254 1,257,793 4,077,956 3,674,792 4,576,072

2,393,379 17,472,153

(30)  (1,257) (14,510) (44,199) (603)
(654,627)  (97,631)  (71,036) (196,999) (201,608)
(148,032)  (81,136) (82,884)  (1,981) (1,726)
(11,541)  (4,165)  (5,628)  (2,702)
(99,066)  (94,230) (186,697)  (26,378) (36)
(1,055)  (1,869)  (7,915)  (1,169) (184)
(83,138) (255)  (5,411)
(7,673,376)  (549,963) (1,131,857) (2,553,458) (1,629,705) @
(38,732)  (53,909)  (98,423)  (36,746) (154,932)
(133,606)  (15,678)  (66,889)  (74,176)  (95,149) (34,182)

(60,599)

(1,221,901)
(315,759)

(24,036)

(406,407)
(12,192)

(88,804)
(13,538,360)
(382,742)
(419, 680)

(8,473,180) (1,038,717) (1,521,319) (3,252,864) (1,993,339) (191,061)

(16,470,480)

48,107 (8,194,380)

126,537

(263,526) 825,092 1,681,453 4,385,011

2,393,379 1,001,673
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EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

161,215 27,272 2,554,578 2,743,065
42,452 37,201 130,547 360,405 2,200 572,805
193,149 38,487 136,584 38,842 407,062
21 4,628 8,816 23,580 16,446 4,934 58,425
32,860 63,158 173,300 67,672 17,773 1,472 356,235
924 1,419 3,358 1,264 230 7,195
355,523 106,487 47,408 509,418
29,656 426,767 742,945 2,326,006 1,673,235 2,541,387 7,739,996
14,821 42,862 175,149 492,102 197,083 5,886 927,903
8,571 62,181 167,984 860,252 611,962 1,710,950
1 88 2,388 25,085 88,789 405,766 522,117
1,542 14,184 26,099 42,044 44,055 219 45 128,188
31,199 217,960 1,127,815 1,241,334 3,482,914 3,241,021 3,779,180 2,561,936 15,683,359

30)

(284,412)  (16,656)
(95,431)

(10,085)  (6,074)

(155,596)
(1,846)

(113,805)

(80,011)

(52,011) (189,
(72,370) (53,

(6,789) @,

(85,497) (80,
(1,150) (2,
14,229) (2,

(80)

971)
337)

263)

022)
867)

987)

(288,091)

(2,667)

(26,131)
(1,013)

(7,046,736)  (604,561) (1,105,613) (2,363,672) (1,412,631)

(21,203)
(96,209)  (19,113)

(37,911) (85,
(54,347) (58,

934)
660)

(80,168)
(73,596)

(1,118)

(36)
(364)

(184)
(99,951)
(24,276)

(80,121)

(831,141)
(224,923)

(25,211)

(347,282)
(7,240)

(131,021)
(12,533,397)
(325,167)
(326,201)

(7,437,472) (1,034,285) (1,509,928) (2,839,793) (1,884,297) (125,929)

(14,831,704)

31,199

(7.219,512) 93,530

(268,594) 643,121 1,356,724 3,653,251

2,561,936 851,655
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2015 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

175,046 31,379 1,119 3,147 2,377,485 2,588,176
62,223 68,581 109,926 475,100 1,260 717,090
228,910 61,759 211,832 9,784 512,285
20 9,551 17,411 34,679 18,282 4,259 84,202
29,554 50,581 191,501 74,777 37,021 3,949 387,383
277,186 128,996 69,936 476,118
166,750 502,630 862,665 2,884,375 2,670,681 4,395,705 11,482,806
33,422 46,435 249,273 698,678 351,672 11,945 1,391,425
35,186 53,011 369,374 1,359,459 1,020,861 2,837,891
44 72 10,760 6,084 37,651 166,206 475,672 696,489
41,390 1,749 26,911 1,479 41 7 71,577

166,794 278,751 1,228,908 1,364,898 4,528,347 4,999,168 6,285,197 2,393,379 21,245,442

(30)  (1,257) (14,760)  (44,945) (604) (61,596)
(654,628)  (98,736)  (78,983) (205,693) (226,850) (1,264,890)
(148,500)  (81,584)  (83,887)  (2,261)  (1,898) (318,130)

(11,541)  (4,183)  (5.654)  (2,722) (24,100)
(99,503)  (95,377) (193,554)  (27,487) 1) (415,962)

(83,173) (256)  (5.436) (88,865)

(7,677,719)  (563,857) (1,167,656) (2,655,301) (1,875,275) ) (13,939,809)
(38,829)  (54,443) (108,277)  (70,347) (201,846) (473,742)

(129,421) (812) (28,189)  (1,313) (388)  (34,174) (194,297)
(8,473,339) (1,038,850) (1,526,902) (3,301,128) (2,203,212)  (237,960) (16,781,391)

166,794 (8,194,588) 190,058  (162,004) 1,227,219 2,795,956 6,047,237 2,393,379 4,464,051

226/424
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Ooooooog
2014 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

161,215 27,272 1,214 2,554,578 2,744,279
42,452 38,239 136,039 375,953 2,405 595,088
193,395 41,169 143,735 39,889 418,188
21 4,969 9,157 25,016 18,631 5,382 63,176
33,893 65,871 183,564 79,102 21,326 1,472 385,228
358,139 108,674 48,451 515,264
91,690 496,444 853,270 2,695,148 2,570,241 3,875,869 10,582,662
17,235 48,402 211,037 572,898 233,973 5,886 1,089,431
13,085 75,141 217,912 1,058,738 765,378 2,130,254
45 88 50 3,744 31,868 111,405 429,642 576,842
13,993 1,530 13,198 1,512 7 30,240
91,735 217,769 1,184,251 1,355,879 3,934,196 4,453,309 5,331,577 2,561,936 19,130,652
(30) (80,711) (80) (80,821)
(284,415)  (17,993)  (60,647) (197,047) (324,822) (884,924)
(96,160)  (73,017)  (54,152)  (2,940)  (1,251) (227,520)
(10,085)  (6,100)  (6,816)  (2,279) (25,280)
(157,088)  (87,454)  (83,150)  (28,104) 44) (355,840)
(114,138)  (14,354)  (2,997) (131,489)
(7,050,998)  (620,383) (1,142,823) (2,461,528) (1,628,319) (184) (12,904,235)
(21,271)  (38,484)  (95,599) (113,036) (115,305) (383,695)
(91,631) (871)  (14,125)  (2,070) (352)  (24,276) (133,325)
(7,437,159) (1,034,004) (1,518,431) (2,898,902) (2,097,573)  (141,060) (15,127,129)

91,735 (7,219,390)

150,247

(162,552) 1,035,294 2,355,736 5,190,517 2,561,936

4,003,523

2271424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
(18) 5 49 (28) 27) (219)
2014 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
®3) 18 14 (59) (102) (132)
2015 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5
229,711 213,739 867,746 50,092 815 1,362,103
(229,673) (213,507) (863,714) (49,965) (815) (1,357,674)
38 232 4,032 127 4,429
2014 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5

270,824 174,010 400,347 62,974 2,050 910,205
(271,642) (173,741) (399,764) (62,679)  (2,050) (909,876)
(818) 269 583 295 329
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2015 12 31
1
1 5 5
56,515 134,021 259,897 450,433
382,255 382,255
258,745 258,745
102,829 97,027 33,520 233,376
151,193 7,712 158,905

951,537 238,760 293,417 1,483,714

2014 12 31
1
1 5 5
57,799 135,864 247,395 441,058
418,937 418,937
254,222 254,222
102,668 104,440 34,063 241,171
219,359 7,978 227,337

1,052,985 248,282 281,458 1,582,725
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49.3

VaR

VaR VaR
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99% 1 250
VaR
VaR
)
2015
50 76 103 50
() 82 74 151 32
18 29 53 9
VaR 82 119 183 68
)
2014
73 69 98 50
(€)) 32 92 247 31
36 21 36 2
VaR 88 135 289 57
VaR
VaR

PBOC
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2015 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,533,407 47,748 1,500 4,402 2,587,057
642,108 36,844 8,803 10,168 697,923
412,437 87,171 838 3,806 504,252

79,782 79,782
331,966 10,216 14,134 3,163 359,479

2,952 12,399 79 608 16,038
471,809 471,809

8,098,472 336,998 47,918 23,287 8,506,675

1,124,517 69,605 1,667 18,753 1,214,542

2,274,171 24,410 2,243 2,300,824
557,418 1 1 557,420
146,462 27,797 1,250 843 176,352

16,675,501 653,188 76,190 67,274 17,472,153
(58,739) (1,257) (603) (60,599)
(1,145,912) (69,892) (5.667) (430) (1,221,901)
(66,808)  (188,588) (45,674) (14,689)  (315,759)
(24,036) (24,036)
(403,328) (3,044) (35)  (406,407)
(10,074) (897) (13) (1,208) (12,192)
(83,471) (5.333) (88,804)
(13,253,507)  (220,929) (31,161) (32,763) (13,538,360)
(230,650)  (127,703) (18,287) (6,102)  (382,742)
(384,409) (32,190) (1,680) (1,401)  (419,680)
(15,660,934)  (648,576)  (103,739) (57,231) (16,470,480)
1,014,567 4,612 (27,549) 10,043 1,001,673
22,179 (5.342) 31,748 (37,060) 11,525
1,307,939 158,487 4,312 12,976 1,483,714
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2014 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,702,760 38,745 892 668 2,743,065
532,320 27,498 6,780 6,207 572,805
346,830 59,933 299 407,062

58,425 58,425
343,566 2,208 10,461 356,235

2,810 4,203 21 161 7,195
509,418 509,418

7,335,891 349,456 40,546 14,103 7,739,996
878,428 43,910 1,247 4,318 927,903

1,701,059 9,428 463 1,710,950
522,054 62 1 522,117
120,380 5,373 1,464 971 128,188

15,053,941 540,816 61,411 27,191 15,683,359
(80,121) (80,121)
(694,023)  (135,707) (703) (708)  (831,141)
(57,575)  (118,923) (36,431) (11,994)  (224,923)
(25,211) (25,211)
(347,012) (179) (91)  (347,282)
(2,924) (2,278) (45) (1,993) (7,240)
(122,632) (8,389) (131,021)
(12,296,462)  (194,887) (26,645) (15,403) (12,533,397)
(205, 846) (96,943) (15,720) (6,658)  (325,167)
(312,235) (9,392) (2,660) (1,914)  (326,201)
(14,144,041)  (566,698) (82,204) (38,761) (14,831,704)
909,900 (25.882) (20,793) (11,570) 851,655
(103,658) 60,135 25,844 16,029 (1,650)
1,412,973 153,012 7,566 9,174 1,582,725
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5%
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,753 22) (2,150) 31)
(1,753) 22 2,150 31
PBOC
2015 10
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2015 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,294,237 3,147 289,673 2,587,057
128,136 107,123 460,250 1,260 1,154 697,923
229,809 61,016 205,958 7,469 504,252
9,797 17,012 32,645 16,332 3,976 20 79,782
33,264 57,213 174,531 57,860 32,662 3,949 359,479
16,038 16,038
275,867 127,105 68,837 471,809
3,130,605 1,497,927 3,530,381 145,347 202,415 8,506,675
57,958 77,438 220,340 544,478 302,383 11,945 1,214,542
31,061 60,847 312,703 1,075,252 820,961 2,300,824
3,154 8,264 37,690 87,908 420,404 557,420
176,352 176,352
6,193,888 2,013,945 5,046,482 1,935,906 1,782,801 499,131 17,472,153
(1,257) (14,510) (44,199) (603) (30) (60,599)
(752,048) (71,036)  (196,999)  (201,598) (220)  (1,221,901)
(149,848) (83,250) (82,130) (531) (315,759)
(4,165) (5,628) (2,702) (11,541) (24,036)
(99,066) (94,230)  (186,697) (26,378) (36) (406,407)
(12,192) (12,192)
(83,138) (255) (5.411) (88,804)
(8,031,571) (1,132,862) (2,553,742) (1,630,591) (@)  (189,593) (13,538,360)
(40,930) (57,921) (95,626) (33,331)  (154,934) (382,742)

(419,680)  (419,680)

(9,162,023) (1,459,692) (3,167,506) (1,893,032)  (154,971)  (633,256) (16,470,480)

(2,968,135) 554,253 1,878,976 42,874 1,627,830 (134,125) 1,001,673
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2014 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,475,672 267,393 2,743,065
106,337 115,347 347,054 2,200 1,867 572,805
194,417 38,624 136,089 37,932 407,062
5,791 10,549 23,439 13,691 4,934 21 58,425
41,513 79,998 164,045 51,442 17,765 1,472 356,235
7,195 7,195
355,523 106,487 47,408 509,418
2,646,120 1,412,923 3,364,374 133,099 183,480 7,739,996
42,447 85,587 203,966 411,264 178,753 5,886 927,903
11,192 81,195 192,417 823,752 602,394 1,710,950
1 2,388 35,064 78,810 405,766 88 522,117
128,188 128,188
5,879,013 1,933,098 4,513,856 1,552,190 1,393,002 412,110 15,683,359
(80,011) (80) (30) (80,121)
(309,021) (50,908)  (187,588)  (283,479) (145)  (831,141)
(96,461) (73,279) (53,152) (2,031) (224,923)
(6,074) (6,789) (2.,263) (10,085) (25,211)
(155,596) (85,497) (80,022) (26,131) (36) (347,282)
(7,240) (7.240)
(113,805) (14,229) (2,987) (131,021)
(7,477,195) (1,105,613) (2,363,672) (1,412,631) (184)  (174,102) (12,533,397)
(25,646) (44,772) (76,427) (23,409)  (154,913) (325,167)

(326,201)  (326,201)

(8,183,798) (1,461,098) (2,766,191) (1,747,681)  (155,133)  (517,803) (14,831,704)

(2,304,785) 472,000 1,747,665 (195,491) 1,237,959  (105,693) 851,655
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100 12
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31
+100 (16,780) (38,949) (11,600) (23,485)
-100 16,780 38,949 11,600 23,485

49.4
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2012 CBRC ( ) (013 1 1 )
CBRC

Tierl Tierl 5% 6%
8%
Tierl 2.5%
Tierl 1%

2014 4 CBRC

CBRC 3

2015 12 31 2014 12 31

CBRC

CBRC

2015 12 31
« ) 2014 4  CBRC
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Tierl

(

Tierl

Tierl
Tierl
Tierl

Tierl

Tierl

Tier2

(@

2

(€]

(¢!

(@

(6

51

)
Tierl
« )
Tierl
C D
Tierl
( Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
)
Tier2 Tier2
(
2015 2014 12 31
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OooooOodd
2015 12 31 2014 12 31

(€D 10.24% 9.09%
(€)) 10.96% 9.46%
(€D 13.40% 12.82%
) 1,130,285 991,429
(©)) (5,595) (5,223)

1,124,690 986,206
® 79,902 39,946

1,204,592 1,026,152
©) 267,028 365,407

1,471,620 1,391,559
(6) 10,986,302 10,852,619

Tierl
« )
( )
)
( )
( Tierl
( )
Tier2 )
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51.1
2015 12 31
51.2
3
1
2
1
3
51.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2015 12 31 2014 12 31

(¢Y) 2,300,824 2,387,518 1,710,950 1,725,227
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@) 192,097 196,282 150,503 150,690
2,492,921 2,583,800 1,861,453 1,875,917
A3) 198,476 199,289 191,994 193,493
2
(1 2015 12 31 2,048 1
(2 2015 12 31 60,854 2014 12 31
11,204 3
(3 2015 12 31 9,724 2014 12 31 3,055
1
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51.4
( ) 2015 12 31
1 2 3
65,050 65,050
14,732 14,732
79,782 79,782
105,584 649 106,233
201,583 201,583
47,714 47,714
1,019 700 2,230 3,949
1,019 106,284 252,176 359,479
13,833 38 13,871
900 20 920
1,247 1,247
15,980 58 16,038
15,138 1,187,375 84 1,202,597
1,498 3,547 5,045
6,586 6,586
23,222 1,187,375 3,631 1,214,228
24,241 1,389,421 255,865 1,669,527
(24,036) (24,036)

(406,407)  (406,407)

(11,129) (65)  (11,194)
(935) (26) (961)
(37 (37
(12,101) 91)  (12,192)

(36,137) (406,498) (442,635)
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2014 12 31

1 2 3
40,810 40,810
17,615 17,615
58,425 58,425
122 45,971 46,093
248,794 248,794
59,876 59,876
3 633 836 1,472
125 46,604 309,506 356,235
5,654 164 5,818
757 38 795
561 561
21 21
6,972 223 7,195
19,098 902,804 115 922,017
919 1,325 2,244
3,358 3,358
23,375 902,804 1,440 927,619
23,500 1,014,805 311,169 1,349,474
(25,211) (25,211)

(347,282) (347,282)

(6,020) (226)  (6,246)
(866) (70) (936)
(58) (58)
(6,944) (296)  (7,240)

(32,155) (347,578) (379,733)
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2
3
3
3
1

2015 2014 12 31
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2015 1 1

2015 12 31

2014 1 1

2014 12 31

/(

)/

/(

)/
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309,506 223 1,440 (347,282) (296)
384,359 2,599
(3,007,928)
(458,126) (131) (408) 2,963,544 144
16,437 (34) 3 (14,741) 61
®3)
252,176 58 3,631 (406,407) 1)
962 Q) 9 190
211,011 347 225 (285,454) (692)
367,322 21 1,325
(3,084,325)
(285,313) an (110) 3,036,734 36
16,486 (128) 2 (14,237) 360
D)
309,506 223 1,440 (347,282) (296)
(787) (128) 439 360
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52.

52.1

2016

2016

2015

52.2

2016

52.3
2016

(

53.

121
2016 3 11

3 31

18,078

22,464

2015 12 31
54,176

12 31

121 ABC

2016 3 31

3 23 MNOF SAT

[2016]36 ) 2016

2015 12 31
2015 12 31
( 10 )
CBRC

51
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5.5% 2,200

1 0.1668
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54. « )
( )
12 31
2015 2014
2,586,843 2,742,797
690,230 562,792
40,909 20,188
511,969 412,825
79,777 58,425
355,550 355,763
15,803 6,950
470,182 509,412
8,473,314 7,700,348
1,195,554 917,381
2,293,949 1,703,508
541,252 511,174
10,660 10,564
273 -
153,184 152,374
81,213 78,368
185,575 148,290
17,686,237 15,891,159
60,489 80,030
1,226,793 834,765
290,389 197,803
24,036 25,211
406,414 347,286
11,972 7,072
88,804 126,950
13,535,613 12,530,169
379,728 323,336
453,468 389,088
16,477,706 14,861,710
37 324,794 324,794
38 79,899 39,944
39 98,574 98,574
22,258 3,043
41 96,567 78,445
42 175,021 156,145
411,401 329,133
17 (629)
1,208,531 1,029,449
17,686,237 15,891,159
2016 3 31
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55. « )
( )
2015 1 1 324,794 39,944 98,574 3,043 78,445 156,145 329,133 (629) 1,029,449
_ _ _ _ _ _ 180,779 - 180,779
- - - 19,215 - - - 646 19,861
- - - 19,215 - - 180,779 646 200,640
38 _ 39,955 _ _ - - - - 39,955
1 - - - - 18,122 - (18,122) - -
42 - - - - - 18,876 (18,876) - —
10 - - - - - - (59,113) - (59,113)
10 _ _ _ _ _ - (2,400) - (2,400)
2015 12 31 324,794 79,899 98,574 22,258 96,567 175,021 411,401 17 1,208,531
2014 1 1 324,794 _ 98,574 (22,750) 60,542 138,751 242,980 (779) 842,112
_ _ _ - _ _ 178,939 - 178,939
_ - - 25,793 - - - 150 25,943
_ _ _ 25,793 — —_ 178,939 150 204,882
38 _ 39,944 _ _ - - - - 39,944
M _ _ _ - 17,903 - (17,903) _ -
42 _ _ _ _ _ 17,394 (17,394) - -
10 — - - - - - (57,489) - (57,489)
2014 12 31 324,794 39,944 98,574 3,043 78,445 156,145 329,133 (629) 1,029,449
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Consolidated Income Statement

For thr yoar encld 31 Docacnber 2015
LA micu ts i milions of Renmmby, unisss athenwase stated

Notes Year ended 31 December
") 2015 2014
Interest incomea 1 F25, 793 690, 289
Interest expansse 1 (289.653) (269, 398)
Met interest income 1 436, 140 A2, 891
Fee and commission incame ? G0, 454 81,883
Foe and comenission exponse 2 (7,0:4%) (7, 760)
Met fee and commission income ? 82,549 80,123
Mt trading gain 3 3,562 1,908
Net gain on financial instruments designated
al fair value through profit of loss 1 1,127 1,505
Met gain on imvestrment securities 857 335
Other operating income 5 16,027 0,364
Opaerating Income S0, 862 524126
Oparaling expenes G (225,218) (223, 89E)
Impairment losses on assets 2 (B4,172) B7.971)
Operating profit 230,872 232,257
Share of result of associate 24 {1%)
Profit before tax 230,857 232,257
Incemns: tax expense 9 (50,083) 152, 747)
Profit for the year 180,774 170,510
Attributable to:
Equity hobders of the Bank 180,587 179,461
Mon-controlling interests 192 449
180,774 179,510
Earnings per shage attributable to the sguity holdors of
the Bank (expressed in RMB yuan pes shara)
— Basic and diluted 13 0.55 0.55

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

182 @)*I*tlﬁ
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Far i vl dnciid 31 Datarmnibar 2015

EArmaumts e millians of Renminki, unless athanwise stated)

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Profit for the year 180, 714 179,510
Other comprehemsive Incomafexpenses)
Iterms that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Falr value changes on available-for-sale financial assets 25831 34,587
Income tax impact for fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets {6,449} (B,6272)
Foreign currency translation differances BO0 152
Other comprehensive incoma, met of Lax 20,072 26,117
“Total comprehensive income for the year 200,846 205,627
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 200 583 206,503
Mon-controlfing interests P 24
200,846 205,627

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A1 31 D 5
LA RS S i T s of Benrmnbl uniss atheswse stated
Hotes As at 31 December
v 2015 2014
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,587,057 2,743,065
[epasits with banks and other financial instituticns 13 69 /,923 572,805
Precious metak 40,904 20,182
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 144 S, 252 407 067
Financial assets habd for irading 15 10, 18 LE425
Financial assels designated at faie value through profit or loss 16 350 479 56,235
Derwvative financial assets 17 16,038 1,185
Financial assets held under resale agreements 13 471,804 500 418
Loans and advances o customaers o S,EW,E?E 7,136,996
Awailable-for-sale financial assets 20 1,214,542 971903
Held-to-maturity investrments 21 2,300,824 1,710,950
[rabt instiuments classilied a3 recaivalbles 22 SRT.420 K217
Imvestments in associale 24 273
Property and equipment 25 156,178 154,950
Goodwill FE] 1,381 1,381
Deforred tax assols 6 21,548 72,640
Mher assets 27 215,303 163,822
Total assets 17,791,393 15,974,152
Liabilities
Bor rewings fram contral banks 22 640, 550 80121
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 1,221,801 831,141
Placernents from banks and olher financial institutons 0 315, 7540 224923
Financial lkabiilities hebd for trading 3 24,036 25211
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. 32 406,407 347,287
Deerivative financial liabilities 17 12,192 1,240
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreaments 33 22 804 131,01
Dupe (o cuSTodneers 3 13,538,360 12,533,397
Dbt secumities issued 35 382,742 325,167
Deferred tLax liabilities 6 111 43
Other Habilities E ) 528,507 435 987
“Total liabilities 16,579,508 14,941,533
184 () MR ML
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Conmsolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ar 31 December 2015
iAmaunts in millions of Renminbi, unless otherdse stated)

Notes As at 31 December

v 2015 2014

Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preference shares ig 79,899 349,944
Capital resarve 39 OB, 773 98773
investment revaluation reserve 44 22,429 3118
Surplus resenve 41 96,748 78,554
General reserve 42 175,606 156,707
Retained earnings 412,005 319,589
Foresgn currency translation reserve {163) {853)
Equity attributable to eguity holders of the Bank 1,210,091 1,031,066
Man-contrelling interests 1,794 1,553
Total equity 1,211,885 1,032,619
Total equity and liabilities 17,791,393 15,974,152

The accompanying notes form.an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directars on 31 March 2016,

Executive Direcror
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Far thr yisar ehched 31 Docdmnbar 2015

% i milons of Ranmunbi, unisss athenaise stated)

Totl sty sl v gty ks o e Ek
Fargn
Insirmnl O Lo
Him o Moo Cwibl weksie lepls  Gewal  Melsmd  isbiin oontrding

L sharey L g L REE e sy mmes Sanolal ek otal
U 1 by 5 T ] T ] T T T T
P ko B e - - - - - - {71 - {5 L) £k ]
(e TR e - - - mm - - - 2] il n e
ol coperlen e o ot e s - - - Bm - - 15 [ foalE] 16} [T
Eanny o peslentnr dhate 2 - B - - - - - - o - B
Apprgegton lo i mmene bl = = = - 1% - 1410 - - - =
Apprpsanin i vl e U] - - - - - T AL - - - -
Dkt sty wdoary Sy 1 = = - — = - - mm - @
Dicderck: gty uedesee i 0 - - = - - - L - {rami - [aa
Dkt gl el Tt - - - - - - - - - o o
B at 1 Dnter 24TH RUM. WE WM WA WML ThW b N LReT UM L
e ol | Ly 1O b ] e BT GLI s Eh ] JEAD [l HaNE 1A% Bt
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The accompanying notes foim an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Far e year el 31
(Amaumts i millions of Renminki, unless ot

it 2015

rwvise slated)

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 230,857 232257
Adjustments fog;
Impariment losses on aisels 24,172 67,91
Depreciation of proporty and equipment 16,743 16,615
Amortization of mtangible assets and other assels 2,800 2,113
Interest income arising Trom investment securities {145,535) (123,053)
Interest incame arising from impaired loans and advances 1o customesns {1, 765%) (1,002)
Inferest expense on debt securities issued 10,985 10,179
Revaluation gain on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss {5,285) {1,861)
Met gain on investment secunies (B57) (335)
share of result of associate 15 -
Met gain on disposal of property, equipment and other assets {40} {393)
Mot foreign exchange (gainyloss (11,615%) 1,107
180,168 204,198
Met change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
Mot decreasefiinerease} in balamces with central banks,
deposits with banks and other Tinancial instilutions 108,639 (335,229
Met mcrease in placernents with and loans o banks and
other inancial institutons {60,050} {48.818)
Met decrease infinancial assets held under resale agresments 6,593 122,146
Mt increase in loans and advances to customers (824, 384) (Ba7.572)
Mat (decreasalincrease in bomowings from central banks {18,52X) 20,017
Mt increase in placemeants from banks and other financial mstitutions 90,836 50,560
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
ather inancial institutEons 1,395,723 823,773
Inciease in other opeiating assets {119,076) {119,917
Increase in ofher operating liabilities 124,032 214,283
Cash from operations 882,961 103441
Income tax paid 52,613 168,826)
MET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 820,348 3 615

Annual Report 2015 187

255/424



Consofidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Notes Year ended 31 December

v 2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from dsposabredemption of investment securities B 954 629,129
Cash receved from integest income anising from

ifvestment sectnties 135,037 112,781
Cash receivad from disposal of investment in joint veniures — 1
Cash receive) from disposal of property, equipment and

othar assels 1,032 2,819
Cash paid for purchase of investment securitios (1,752,782} (850, 158)
Increase in ivestment in associale (B8} —
Cash paid for purchase of property, equipment and other assets {21,687} (25,9097
NET CASH USED IM INVESTIMG AC TIVITIES (767,604} (140,425)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contribution from preference shareholders A0, 000 40,000
Cash received from dabi securities issued L2851 21,873
Divicends pald 1o {61.535) (57,489)

Chelinary sharehalders (59,113} (57 480)

Preference shareholders. {2,400} -—

Maon-contrallirg imteredts {22}
Repayments of debt securitios ssued (496,684} (213,359)
Cash payments for interest on debt secunilies issued {11,306) (10,107}
Cash payments for transaction cost of prefarence shares fssued (63} (38)
Cash payments for transaction cost of debt securities issued (17 (58)
MNET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 23,246 30,827

" NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 75,900 (F4,982)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMTS AT 1 JANUARY 738211 813,799
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND

CASH EQLIVALENTS 1828 {5700
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 43 821,969 738,20
MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTIES INCLUIDE:
[nterest received 554679 S48, 718
Interesi pasd {245, 840} {229, 793)

The accompanying notes larm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

188 @)ﬂru*tlﬁ

256/424

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far i el endiad 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

GEMERAL INFORMATION

Agricultusal Bank of China Limited {the “Bank™) & the successor entity to the Agricullural Bank of China
{the “Predecossor Entity™) which was a wholly state-cwned commercial bank approved for setup by the
Feople's Bank of China (the “PRCC") and founded on 23 February 1979 in the Pecples Republic of
China {the "FRC"). On 15 lanuary 2009, the Bank was established after the complation of the financial
restrsctiuning of the Predecessor Entity, The Bank's establishment was autharized by the PBOC. The
Bank was listed on the Shanghai Stock Bxchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
15 July 2010 and 16 July 2010, respactively.

The Bank operates under financial sendces cerlificate No. BOOOZH 111000001 issued by the China Banking
Requlatory Commission (the “CBRC ™), and basiness lcense No, 10000000000%477 ssued by the State
Administration of Industry and Commence of the PRC. The registered office of the Bank b located at
No. 69 Jianguomen Mei Avenue, Dongchendg District, Beijing, the PRC.

The mpincipal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group®) includs Renminbi
{"RMB™) and foreign currency deposits, loans, dearing and seftlement sendces, assels custody services,
fund management, financlal leasing semnvices, surance setvices and othel sonvces a5 approved by
relevant requlators, and the provision of related services by its overseas establishments as approved by the
respective local regulators.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
are refernad to as the “Domastic Operations”. Branchies and subsidiarios registered and operating outside
of the Mainland China are reterred o as the “Overseas Operalicns”,

SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The consoldated financial statemnents have been prepared in accordance wath Intermational Financial
Reparting Standards ("IFRS"), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE"). In
adidition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Bxchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622) for this financial year and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial staterments have been prepared on the historcal cost bass excepl for
cerfain financiad instruments which are measured at fair value, & explained in the accounting policies
st oul below. Historical cost 5 genetally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange
for assets and that i received (or in some crcumstances the amount expected to be paid) with
fespect to labilitios,

The preparateon of fnanclal statements in contormity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It ako requires management to exercse its judgment in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies, The areas invalving a higher degree of judgment o
commiplexily, of areas whefe assumplions and ostimates are significant 1o the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Mote 1
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2015 and adopted
by the Group

The followdng amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the
financial year ended 31 December 2015,

{1} Amendments to WAS 19 Employes Benefits — To Plans thal Require Emplogees
(as revised in 2011) of Third Parties to Contribute Towands the Cost of
Benafits
2y Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements o IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(3 Amendments to IFRSs Apnual Improvements (o [FRSs 20701-2013 Cycle

(1) Amendment to 1AS 19 (as rewsed in 2011); Employes Benefits — To Plans
that Require Employees o Third Parties to Contribute Towards the Cost of
Harefits

The amondment to 1AS 19 (as revised in 2011) — Emplyee Bencfits applies to defined
benefit plams whete employees or third parties are required to bear some of the cost
of the plan. The amendment clarifies the accounting by entities with plans that require
contributions linked only to senice in each pericd. Entities with plans that require
contributions. that vary with service pericd will be required to recognize the benefit of
those contributions over employees’ service period

(2] Amendments to FRSs: Annual Improvernents fo IFRSs 20710-2012 Cycle

The annual improvemaents to FRSs 2010-2012 Cycde include a number of amendments
o various [FRSs, including the amendments to IFRS 2 — Share-Based Payment, the
amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the amendments to IFRS 8 — Operating
Segments, the amendments o [FRS 13 — Fair Value Measirement, the amendments (o
1A5 24 — Related Party Disclosures, the amendments o IAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equiprment, and the amendments to S 38 — Intangible Assets.

() Amendrents to FRSs: Annual mprovements o iFRSs 2071 1-2013 Cycle

The annual improvements to IFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle include a number of amendments 1o
variows [FRSs, including the amendiments to [FRS 1 — First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards, the amendments to [FRS 3 — Business Combinations,
the amendments to [FRS 13 — Fair Value Measurernent, and the amendments to
A5 40 — lovestment Property.

The adoption of these amendments does notl have a significant impact on the operating
results, comprehensive income, of financkal position of the Group.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
Far th ded 31 Dacamiber 2015

tamaunts i rmillians of et othansise 5

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Coniinued)

1.2 New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Parl & “Accounts amd Audit® of the pew Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 62F) come into operation during the financial year, as a result,

there are changes 1o presentation and disclosures of certain information in the consolidated
financial statemeants

1.2 Amendments that are not yet effective but have been early adopted in
2015

The Group has adopted the following amendments thal have been issued but are not yet
effective n 2015,

Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after

Amendments 1o A5 27 Eqquity Method in Separate 1 lanuary 2016
Finarcial Statements

Amendments to IAS 27 Fquity Method in Soparate Financial Statements

The LASE has amended 1AS 27 Sepatale Financial Statements. The amendment allows
entitics to use equity method o account for investments in subisidiarios, joint ventures and
associates in thew separate financeal statements. The Group has early adopted this amendment
in 2015 and used equity method to account for investment in associate in separate financial
statements. The adaption of this new amendment does not have a significant impact on the
Bank's fimancial statements
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

192 )

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not

EDINETOOOO
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been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards that have been isseed

but are el yet effectve.

Effective for annual

periods baginning
on or after
{1} IFRS 14 Requiatory Daferral Account 1 Ranipary 2016
{2} Amendrments o Aecuisition of Inlafetsin 1 lanicary 2016
IFRS 11 Jaint Cperations
(3} Amendments to 143 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 1-kanerary 2076
and 145 38 Depreciation and Amortization
{4} Amendmentsto BS 16 Agriculture: Boearer planis 1 fanuary 2016
and 1AS 41
{5} Amendments to IFRSs Annua Improvements to [FREs 2012- 1 Lanweary 2016
1014 ole
{8) Amendmentsto IFRS 10, mwestment Enfities: Appdingthe 1-Sanuary 2016
IFRS 12 and 145 28 Caonsclidation Exception
{7 Amendments to 1A% 1 Disclosure Initiative 1 lanerary 2016
(8} Amendmentsto 165 12 Income Taes 1:Banuary 2017
{2} Amendments to A5 7 Statement of Cash Flows 1-Banwrary 2017
{10} EFRS 15 fevenue fram Contracts with 1 Jamurary 2018
Curctogriess
{11) FR53 Fnancial Instiurnents 1-January 2018
(12} IFRS 16 Lewxses 1 Janueary 2015
{13} Amendrents to tale of Contribution of Assets The amendments wisre
IFES 10 and 1A% 78 between An Investor and ocaginally intended 1o
its Aszociate of Joint Venture b effective for annusl
pariods beginning on o
after 1 January 2016. The
eifective date has now
been deferrediremoved
o R e e o £
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Coniinued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015
(Continued)

{1} MRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Account

The 1ASE has issued IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts, an interim standard on
the accounting for cerlain balances that anse from rate-requlated activities (" requlatory
deferral accounts”), IFRS 14 is only applicable to entities that apply IFRS 1 — First-time
Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standands as ficst-lime adopters of FRS,
It permits such entities, on adoption of [FRS, to continue to apply their previous GAAP
accounting policies for the recognition; measurement, impairment and de-racognition of
regulatory deferral accounts. The interim standard alo provides guidance on selecting
and changing accounting policies {on first-time adoption or subsequently) and on
presantation and disclosure. The Group anticipates that the sdoption of this new standard
should not have any impact on the Group®s consolidated financial statements.

{2} Amendments to lFRS 171; Acquisition of Interests in foint Cperations
The amerdments to IFRS 11 — Jaint Arangements  provide specific guidance on
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation that i a business,
The amendments require an imvestor to apply the principles of business combination
accounting when it acquires an interest in a joint operation thal constitules a business,
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant
impact on the Group®s comsolidated financial statements

(3} Amendrnernts o IAS T6 and 1AS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation amd Amortization

The amemdments to S 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, clarify that deprecation of
anitem of property, plint and equipment based on revenue generated by using the assel
is not appropriate. The amendments to 1AS 38 — iIntangible Assets, establish a rebuttable
presumption that amomization of an intangible asset based on revenue generated by
using the assel B inappropriate. The presumplion may only be rebutted in certain limited
circumstances. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these amendments. shoukd not
have amy impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(e mants in milicns of Renrmmibi, unksss athenasse statedr

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015
(Continuad)

) Amendments to AS 16 and IAS 41 on Agriculiure: Bearer Planis

The amemdments change the reporting fos bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber
trees and oll palms. Bearer plants should be accounted for in the same way as property,
pamt and equipment because their operaticn is similar 10 that of manufacturing. The
amendments include them in the scope ol 1AS 16 rather than AS 41, The produce on
bezarer plants will remain in the scope of WS 41, The Group anticipates that the adoption
of thete amendments should not have any impact on the Group's consolidated firancial
staterments.

%) Amendments to FRSs: Annual improverments (o IFRSs 2001 2-2014 cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 20012-2014 Cycle include 3 number of armendments
to various IFRSs, including the amendments IFRS 5 — Mon-curtent Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations regarding methods of disposal, the amendments to [FRS
7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures regarding servicing contracts, the amendments
s 19 — Employee Benefits regarding  discount  rates, the  amendments 1o
145 3 — Interim Financial Reporting tegarding disclosure of information. The Group
anticipates that the adaption of these amendments will nol have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

{6) Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and [AS 28 Investimant Entities. Applying
the Cornsolidation Exception

The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exception from preparing consolidated
finamcial statements i available 1o intermediate parent entities which are subsicdiaries
af investment entities. The exceplion i available when the investment entity parent
measures its subsidiaries at lair value. The intermediate parent would also need to meet
the other critera lof exception listed n IFRS 10, The amendments also carify that an
investment entity shoukd consolidate 3 subsidiary which 5 nol an investment entity and
which provides sorvices in support of the investment entity’s mvestment activities, such
that it acts as an extension of the investment entity. However, the amendments also
confirm that i the subsidiary is itsell an investment entity, the investment entity parent
shaotld measure its investment in the subsidiary at Eair value through profit of loss, This
approach is required regardless of whether the subsidiary provides investment-related
services 1o the patent or to third parties.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Coniinued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015
(Continued)

6} Armendrments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28! Investment Entitfes: Applying
the Consalidation Exception (Continued)

The amemdments to AS 28 allwr an entity which is itsell nod an investment entity, but
has an intarest in-an assocdate of a joint venture which is an investmaent entity, a policy
choice 1o retain the fadr value measurement applied by the assodate o joint venlure, or
to umwvind the fair value measurement and perform a consolidation at the level of the
asociate or joint venture for their subsidiaries.

The Group antiipates that the adoplicn of these amendments will not have a significant
impact of the Grolp's consolldated financial statemaents.

7} Amendments to IAS T; Disclosure initiative

The amendments clarify quidance in 1A% 1 on materality and aggregation, the
presentation of subtotaks, the structhure of financial staternents and the disclosure of
accounting policies. Although the amendments do not require specific changes, they
clarily a4 number of presentation Bsues and highlight that prepasers are permitted to talor
the format and presentation of the financal statements o their drcumstances and the
needs of users, The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have
a significant impact on the Group’s conselidated financial statements.

(8} Armnendrnents to lAs 12: Incorne Faxes

The 1ASE has ssued amendments o [AS 12 — Income Laes, These amendmeants on the
recognition of defered tax assels for unrealized losses clarily how o account for deferred
tax assels related to debt wstiuments measured at faim value, The Group anficipates
that the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

() Amendments to WS 7 Staternent of Cash Flows

The 1ASE has issued an amendment o 1AS 7 introdudng an- additional disclosuee that
will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arksing trom
finamcing activities. The amendment 5 part of the WASE's Disclosure Initiative, which
continues to explore how financial staterment disclosure can be improved, The Group
anticipates that the adoption of the amendments wall ot have a signaficant impact on the
Group's comsolidated financial statements,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015
(Continuad)

(T IERS 15: Ravenue from Conlracts with Custoners

IFRS 1% establishes a comprehensive framework Tor determining when to recognize
revenue and howr much revenue Lo recognize through a S5-step appioach, The core
principle is that a company should recognize rovenue to depict the tansfer of promised
goods or services to the cstomer in an amount that reflects the consideration 1o
which the company expects o be entithed in exchange for those goods or services. It
moves away from a revenoe recognition model based on an ‘earmings processes’ to an
“asset-labiity’ approach based on transter of control. IFRS 15 provides specfic quidance
on capitalization of contract cost and lcense arrangements, It alio includes a cohesive set
of dnclosire feguiremeants aboutl the pature, amount, ming and unceitainty ol (ovenue
and cash flowws arsing from the entity’s contracts with customers: The Group anticipates
that the adoption of these amendments will not have a significant fmpact on the Group's
comsofidated linanclal statemenis.

{1 1) IFRS 9: Financial lostrumeants

The complete version of [FRS 9 — Fnancial Instruments was ssued n July 2014, 1t
réplaces the -t_'p.lidanl:e in WS 29 — Financial Instruments: Recogmition and Messurement
that relates 1o the dassification and measurement of financial instrurnents. IFRS 9 retains
but simplifies the miked measurement model and establishes three primary measurement
categories lor linancial assets: amortized cost, fair value thicugh olher comprehensve
income ("OC17)-and fair value through profit or bess. The basis of dassification deponds
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash llow characteristics ol the
financial assat. Investments b equity instruments are required 1o be measured at fair valoe
thretegh profit or koss with the irevocable option at inceplion to present Chandges in faie
valua im QCHin which case the accumulated fair value changes in OC1 will not b recycled
to the profit of kss in the future, There 5 mow a news expected credit losses maodel
that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in WS 39, For financial labilities
there wese no changes (o classification and measurement, oocepl for the recognition of
changes in owvn credit risk in other comprehensive income for abilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. IFRS 8 refaxes the requirerents for hedge effectiveness by
replacing the bright line hedge effectivenss tests. I requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedqing instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the
same as the one management actually use for sk management purposes, The Group is in
the process of assessing the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statemmoents from
this new standard.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el enhdiad 31 Datarnber 2015
famaunts an millions of Renminki, unless atherwisa stated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Coniinued)

1.4 Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not
been adopted before their effective dates by the Group in 2015
(Continued)

{12} IERS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 addresses the delinition of a lease, recogmition and measurement of keases and
establshes principles for reporting wselul information to wsers of financial statements
about the leasing activities. of both lessoes and lessors. A key change arsing from IFRS
16 s that most operating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for lewsees. The
standdard replaces 1AS 17 ‘Leases’, and related interpretations. The Group ks in the process
of sessing the impact on the Group's consolidated financial statemants from this new
standard,

(13} Amendments to FRS 10 and IAS Z28: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between An Investor and its Assoclate or Joint Venlture

These  amendments  addiess. an incomsistency  between  the  requiterments  in
IFRS 10 — Comsolidated Financial Statements and those in A5 28 — nvestment in
Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution of assets between ary imvestor
and its associate of joint venture, A full gain or loss i recognized when a ransaction
inwvalves a business. & partial gain or loss is recognized wihen a transaction ivolves assets
that do nol constitule a business, even If those assels are in a subsidiary. The Group
anticipates that the adoption of these amepdmoents will nat have a significant imgpact an
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
{amaunts in milions of Renmmbi, uniems athenase stated

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
2  Consolidation

Basiz of consolidation

The consolidated financial siatements include the financial statements of the Bank and the
subsichiaries as well 45 structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group confrols an entity when
the Group 15 exposed (o, of has nghts to, variable returns from its mvolement with the entity and
has the ability to atfect those returns through its power over the entity

Income aned expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated incoime statement fom the date ol acquisition o up to the date on which control
ceases, respectivedy.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiares, where appropriate, to consistently
1eflect the accounting polickes of the Group.

All intta-group ransactions, balances, and income and expense are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-contiolling intefests of consalidated subsicharnes ate presented separately from the controlling
party’s ity thenain

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests” share of subsequent changes in equity. Further, total
comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributed, based on the proportion of their respective
holdings, to the equity holders of the Bank and 1o the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interasts having a deficit balance.

In the Bank's statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less
impairment lodses, if any.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for wsing the acquisition method. The consideration
tramstorred in & business combination s measured at Tair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair value of the assets transterred by the Group, labilities incurred or assumed by
the Group, and any equity interests isswed by the Group. Acquisition related costs are recognized in
the corsolidated Income statefent a5 incured.

Al the acquisition date, imespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable assets acquired
and [Eabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values; exceplt that
deferred tax assols or Habilities, and assets or Gabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognized and measured in acoordance wath 1A% 12 — Income Taxes and 145 19 — Employes

Benefits, respectively.

Goodwill 5 measured as the excess of the difference between (i) the consideration transtened,
the fair value of any non-controfling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's
previoisly held equity interest in the acquiree (0 any) and i) the net fair value of the identifiable
asseds acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilithes incurred or assumed.

Mon-controlling Interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle their
holders o a proportionate share of the entity®s not assets in the event of liquidation are accounted
for at either fair value or the non-controlling interests” proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
tramsaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the fair value of the Group's share
of the net identifiable assets of acquired subsidiaries and associates-at the date of acguisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated staternent of
financial position. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included i investment in associates.

Foa the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units {*COU") or groups of CGLS that is expected to benelit fiom the synergies of the business

comhination,

A COU B the smalkst klentifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows trom other assets o groups of assets.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuesd)
2 Consclidation (Continued)

Goodwill (Continuesd)

A CGU o which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impaiement annually or more freguently
when there i indication that the unit may be impaired. With respect to goodwill arising during a
teporting period, the CGLU to which goodvall has been allocated s tested for impawment before
the end of that reporting period, If the recoverable amount of the CGL, which is the highes of fair
valuse loss costs 1o sell and value in ise, (s kess than its carrying amount, the deficit, reflecting an
impaiement loss, 15 allocated first o reduce the carrying: amount of any goodwill allocated (o the
COU and then to the other assets of the COU on a pro-tata basis, based on the camrying amount
of each asset in the CGUL Any goodwill impairment loss |5 recognized directly in the consolikdated
income statement. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill s nob reversed in subsequent
perods.

Investment in associate

An associate 15 an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary not an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions ol the imestee but does not comstitute contral or joint
contral over those policy deciskons.

The post-acquisition profit o loss of an associate s Incorpotated in the consolidated financial
statemnents wsing the equity method of accounting, Under the equity method, vestment in an
associale s initily recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate, When the Group's share of loss of
an associate equals or exceads its interest in thal assocate (which includes any. long-term interests
that, in substance, foom part of the Group's nel vestment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognizing its shate of further loss, Additional loss is recognized coly to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal of constructive obligations or made payments on behall of that associate.

Al the end of each reporting period, the Group considers whether there are circumstances that
indicate the possibility of impainment of the Group's Investment in an assocdale; when that s the
case, the entire carrying amount of the investment {including goodhill} i tested for impairment
in accordance with 1AS 36 — Impairment of Assets, as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (the higher of 1air value less costs to sell and value in use} with Bs carrying amount, any
impairment loss recognized forms part of the canying amount of the investment. Ay reversal ol
an. impairment boss B recognized, to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)

Investment in associate (Continued)

When an enfity in the Group transacts with the Group's associate, profits and losses resulting from
the transaction are recognized in the Group™s consclidated financial statements only o the extent of
mterest in the assoclate that are not related o the Group.

3  Interest income and expense

Interost income and expense for all interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial
liabdlities are recognitéd within Interest Income and Interest Expense, respectively, in the
consolidated income statement using the effective interest method

The effective interest method s a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or
Iiuhilit!lr and of allocating the interest income or expense over the penicd, The effective interest rate
is the fate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash foceipts of payiments through the axpascted
life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shogber pericd, o the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. When caloulating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial msirement, but does not consider fulure credit
bosses, The calculation incledes all fees and interest paid or received that are an integral part of the
elffective iterest rate, tramsaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Interast income on an impaited financial assel or a group of impaired similar financial assets 5
recognized using the adginal interest rate wiich was used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairmaent loss,

4 Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its
customers, For those services that are provided over a specified perlod of time, fee and commission
incodree s acorued over that period as the services are provided. For other somvices, fee amnd
Comimission income are recognized at the tlime the services are completed,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations & BMB, The presentation currency of the Group
and the Bank is RME.

In prepaning the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in cumencies
ather than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency {le. the curfency of the primary economic enwvitonment in which the omntity
operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
teporting period, monetary llems denominated in loreign cutrencies are retranslated al the rates
presatling at that date. Mon-monetary lems carmed at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies ane retranslated at the rates provailing at the date whon the fair value was determined,
Mon-rmonetary items that are measured at historical cost in a fotelgn cutrency are not reteanslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary ilems, -and on the retranslation o
monetary items, are recognized in the consolidated income statement in the pediod in which they
arise, except for the following:

M excharge differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment
i the Cverseas Operations,

() changes in the fair value of monetary assels denominated in foreign currency classified as
available tor sale are analyzed betwean translation differences resulting from changes in the
amoifized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the canying amount. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortized cost are recognized in the consolidated income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
incomse

Exchange differences arsing on the retranslation of non-monetary items carmed - at fair value are
included in the consolidated income statement for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the fetranslation ol pon-monetany ilenms in fespect of which gains and lodses are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognized
ditectly in other comprehansive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and labilities o
the Group's Cverseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and thelr income anrd expenses
are translated at exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approsimates the
exchange rates of the date of the ransaction. Exchange differences: atising, it any, are recognized
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve amd Mon-contralling Interests, as appropriate. The accumulated foregn curmemdy
tramslation reserve related to the Overseas Oporations will be reclassified from equity to the
consolidated income statement an disposal of all o part of the Overseas Operations.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (€ ontinued)

& Taxation
Income L expense represents the sum of the Lo currently payalile and deferred Lax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable 5 based on taxable profit tor the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reparted in the consolidated income statement because it sxcludes items of income or expense that
are taxable of deductible in other years and terms that are never taxable of deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is caloulated using tax rates that have been enacted of substantively enacted
by the and of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deterred tax 5 recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels
andd liahilities in the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding tax base used in
the computation of tacable profit. Defermed tax [abilities are gonerally recognized for Jll taxalble
temporary differences: Dederred tax assels are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it 5 probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which
these deductible temporary ditferences can be ulilized. Deferred fax assets and Habilities are not
recognized for temporary difforence rolated (o goodwill or the nitial recognition (other than in a
Busineess combinationd of other assets and liabilities ina transaction that aftects neither taxable profit
e accol ting profit.

Deterred tax labilities are recogmized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsichiaries and associates, excapt where the Group s able 10 contiol the reversal of the
temporary  difference and it is probable that the lemporary ditference will not reverse in the
foresecalde future. Deforred tax assets ansing from deductible tempotary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
subficient taxabde profits against which to utilize the benelits of the temparary differences and they
are expectad 1o roverse in the foresceable future,

The catrying amount of deferred lax assets s reviewed al the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits wall be avaitable to
allows all o part of the asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assels and labilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the

pencd in which the liabifity 5 settled or the aset realized, based on tax rate (amd tax Laws) that have
been enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
& Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax {Continued)

The measwarment of deferred tax Nabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
fodlews from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, (o recover
of setile the canying amotnt of its assets amd labilities, Cumrent amd deferted tax is recognized in
the consclidated income statement, except when it relates 1o items that are recognived in other
comprehensve income of directly in equity, In which case the cument and deferred tax s ako
recognized in other comprehensive income of dinectly in equity, respactively

Deforred tax assets and Rabilities are offsel when there is a begally entorceable right to set off current
L assets against current La liabilities; when they refate to income tages levied by the same taation
auithority and the Group intends to setthe its current tax assets and labilities on a net basis

7  Employees benefits

Employoe benefits are all forms of conskderation. gven and other relevant expendituses incurmed by
the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or tor termination of the employment
confracts. These benefits include short-tarm employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early
retiremar bersfits,

Shaort-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an emploges has rendered services, the Group recognizes the
short-term employes benofits payable for those services a5 3 liability with a comresponding Incroase
in the expenses in the consolidated income statement, Short-term employes benefits include salares,
bonuses, allowance and subsidies, stafl welfare, medical insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity inswrance, housing Tunds as woll as labor union fees and staff education expenses.

Post-employment benefits

The Group’s post-employment benafits -are primarily the  payments for basic pemsions and
unemployment insurance related to government mandated social wellare programs, as well as the
anmuity scheme established. All these post-employment benefits are defined coptribution plans,
unider which, the Group makes ficed contributions inte a separate fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to make further contrsbutions if the fund does not hold sufficient Fssels to
pay all employes benefits relating 1o employes services in the current and prior periods.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
7  Employee benefits (Continued)

Post-employment benefits (Continuaed)

Contributions: o the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the
consolidated income statement for the period in which the related payment obligation & inourred.

The employees of the Bank's heat office and domestic branches {“Domestic Institutions ) participate
i an anpuity schome established by the Bank (the “Annulty Scheime"). The Bank pays annully
contributions with reference to employees” salaries, amd such contributions are expensed in the
comsolidated income statement when incurred. The Bank has no turthes obligation of the Annuity
Scheme does not have sutficient assets tor the payment of any retirement benefits to employess.
funded by the Annuity Scheme.

Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid 1o those emphoyees wha accepl voluntany ietirement befors
the normal retirement date, as approved by management. The rolated benofit payments ame madse
from the date of early retirement to the normal retirement date.

The accounting treatment of the Group®s carly retirement bonefits is i accordance with teemination
benefits as determined in A4S 19, The liability i recognized for the early retitement benedit payments
from the date of early retiremnent to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition
as lermination benefit is met with 3 corresponding charge in the comolidated income statement
Differences arising from changes in assumpions and estimates of the present value of the labilithes
are recognized in the consolidated income statement when incurred,

& Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of finandial position and
classified into one of the categories presented below. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognized and deecognized on a tade date basis. Regular way purchases of sabed ane
purchases or sales of tinancial assets that require delivery of assets within the time: frame established
by requlation or comvention in the mar ket place,

Financial assets and financial labidities are initially measused at fair valoe. Tramsaction costs that are
directly attributable to the aoquisition or issue of financial assets and Rabilities (other than financial
assels of financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added 1o or deducied from the
fair value of the financial assets or liabilities, respectivaly, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets o liabilities at fair value through profit or
lews are tecogniged mmediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
8 Financial instruments (Contineed)

8.1 Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into four categories — financial assefs at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPLTY, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sake firancial
assels and, loans and recevables. The classification depends on the natwe and purpose of the
financial assets and & determined at the time of initial recognition,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assots at FVTPL have tvio subcategories — linancial assets held for trading and those
designated at FVTPL on Initial recognition,

A financial assel 5 dassified as held tor trading if;
*  iUhas been acquited principally for the purpose of sabe in the near futie, of

* it torms part of an identified portfolio of finandal instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattemn of shori-term profit-laking; o

= ilis a derivalive instrument that is not designated and effective as a hedging instiument,

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated at FYTPL upon
witial recognition if;

- such designation eliminates or signiﬁcan.lr!,r reduces a measurement of recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arse; of

+  dhe financial asset forms part of a group ol financial assets or financial labilities or both,
which is managed and its performance s svaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management o investment strateqy, and inffosmation
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; o

* il forms part of 3 confract containing one of more embedded  dervatives,  and
185 39 — Financial stiuments: Recognition and  Measwement  permits the entire
combined contract (asset or Rability) to be designated at FVTPL,

Financial assets at FWTPL are staled at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from

re-meastrernent recognized directly in the comolidated ncome statement in the period In
which they atise.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continuad)

Held-to-maturity investrmonis

Held-tomatuiity Investments are non-doflvatve financisl assets, quated in an active markel,
with fied or daterminable payments and lixed maturities that the Group has the positive
intention and ahility to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recogaition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amostized cost ising the effective interest method, bess any
impairment lossos,

Loans and receivablos

Loans and recaivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or deterrminable payments
that are ol quoted inan active matket. Subsaquent to initial recognition, loans and recenablos
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impaliment losses,

Financial assets. classified 33 loans and receivables primarnily include deposits with central banks,
depasits with banks and other fingncial institutions, placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions, financial assets hebd under resale agreements, loans and atvances
toy customers, and specified delst securities.

Available-for-sale financial assels

Awailable-far-sale financial assets are non-derivatives thal are either designated as such or are
et classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables o hald-to-maturity investmants.

Awallable-Tor-sale financial assets are measuzed at fair value at the end of the reporting perlod,
Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprebensive income and accumulated in the
imvestrment revaluation reserve, until the tinancial asset is disposed of o is determined 1o be
impaired, at wiich time, the cumulative gain of foss previowsly accumulated in the investment
revaluation resemve is reclassified to the consolidated income statement,

Eqquaty investrments classified as avalable-for-sale that do not have a qucted prce in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are measured at cost, less any
impaitment losses, at the end of each reporting period.

Interest income related 1o financial assets classiied as available-for-sale debt instruments is
caloulated using the effective interest method and recorded as an element of Interest Income
in the consolidated income statement, Dividends on - available-for-sale aquity instruments are
recognized in the consolidated income statement when the Group’s fight 1o receive such
payments is established
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuesd)
8 Financial instruments (Contineed)
8.1 Financial assets (Conlinued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assats, ather than those classitied as FVTPL, are assessed o indicators of impaliment
Al the end of each reparting pediod, Financial assets are impaired when there is objsctive
evidence thal, as a resull of one or more events that occurred afler initial recognition, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been adversely affecied,

A ugnificant o prodonged decline in the fair value of an equity investment classified as
avallabbe-lor-sale below its cost is considerad to be objective evidence of impalmment.

For all other financial assets, the objective evidence of impaiment could include:
= sgnificant financial ditficulty of the issier of obligo,
* abreach of contract, sich as a defaull or delinguency in inferest of principal payments;

= thoe bender, for economic of legal reasons relating to thie borrower's financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not othersise consider;

+ il becomes probable that the borrowser will enter bankmuptcy or other firancial
recrganization;

- the dis.app-mranm of an active market far that financial assel becawse ol financial
difficulties; o

+  observable data indicating that there s a measurable deciease in the estimated fulure
cash flows from a portfolio of finandal assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
aftributed to individual financial assets in the portfolio,

— adverse changes in the payment status of borowers in the portfolio; and

—  national or kcal economic conditions that comelate with defaults on the assels in
the portiolio,

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individoally significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists tor an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similan credit risk characteristics and
collectively assossos themm for impaitment. Financial assets that are ndividually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment Boss is of continues to be recognized are not included
b1 coflective assessment of impaiiment.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continuad)

frnpafrrrant of financial assets carried at amaortized cost

For financial assets catried at amoilized cosl, an impaliment boss 8 recognized in the
comsolidated income statement when there & objective evidence that the assets are impainad.
The impairment loss s measured as the difference between the assel’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding Tuture credit losses that have not
beren incurred) discountad at the financial asset’s onginal effective interest rate. For financial
assals with variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
curtent effective Interest rate determined wunder the contract .

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collatenzed financial
asset teflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less the cost of
chitainiieg and selling the collateral,

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, Changes in the carying amount of the allewance sccount are recognized in the
comsolidated income statement. When a financial asset is considired uncollectibbe, it & written
off against the alloweance account. Subsetuent recoveries of amounts previously waitten off are
credited to the comsolidated income statemaent

I, in a subsequent peniod, the amount of the impaioment loss decreases amd the decrease can
be related objectively 10 an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, such as an
improvernent in the deblor™s credit rating, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement to the extent that the catrying amount of the assel
at the date the impatrment s reversed does not esceed what the amortized cost would have
besen had the impatiment not bean recogrized.

Impairment of financlal asseis classified as avallable-for-sale

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant o prodonged decline in fair value belowr
cosl is considered 1o be objective evidence of impairment. In determining whelher a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged, the Group considess if the far valee of an
available-for-sale equity instrument as at the balance sheet date is loveer than S0% (inchuding
509 of its initial cost of investment or loveer than its initial cost of investment for mose than
one year (ncuding cne year) together with other relevant considerations.

When a decline i the fair value of a financial assel classified as avallable-for-sale has been
recognized disectly In other comprebensive Income and  accumulated in the investrnent
revaluation reserve, and there is olijective evidence that asset is impaired, the cumulative losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified o the consclidated
income statemnant in the pericd in which the impainment takes place.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuesd)
8 Financial instruments (Contineed)
8.1 Financial assets (Conlinued)

Impairment of financial assets classiffed as availablo-for-sato (Continued)

Al Impaiiment boss ono an equily investment  classified as available-for-sale, and camied at
fair value, is not reversed through the consolidated income statement in-subsequent periods.
Any increase in faic value subsequent o impairment foss B orecognized ditectly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated i the wwvestment revaluation reserve. An impairment
koss on an equity investment classificd as available-for-sale equity investment, and caried at
cost, s pot reversed, An impairment loss on a debt investrnent dassified as avalable-for -sale
is subsequently reversed through the consolidated income statement i an increase i the fair
value of the investmeant can be objectvely related 10 an event occuring after the recognition of
the impalrment loss,

8.2 Financial Nabilities

Financial Rabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are dassified as sither financial
liabdlities or as equity in acoordance with the substance of the confractual amangements
amd the definitions of a finandal liability and an equity instrument In IAS 39 and 1AS 32,

respedtivedy.

The Group's financial Habilities are generally classified into financial labilties at FVTPL and
ather financial iabilities, carred at amortized cost.

Financial Kabilitios at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL have two subcategories, including financial Rabilities held for
trading and those designated at FUTPL on initial recognition,

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired of incurred principally for the
purpase of selling o repurchasing it in the near term or i it & part of a portfolio of identilied
financial instruments that are managed together amd for which there s evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Dervatives are abo categonzed as held for trading
urdess they are designated and effective as hedging instruments,

The criteria for a financial liability designated at FYTPL is the same as those for a financial asset
designated at FVTPL,

Financial Rabilities a1 FYTPL are stated at fair vahue, with changes in fair value arising on

re-maasitement recognized directly in the consolidated income statement In the period In
which they arise.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (¢ ontinued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.2 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Cther financial Nabilities
Othed financlal labilities afe measutod at amomized cost, using the elfective interest method,

8.2 Equity instruments

An equity instiument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting Al of its labilities.

A fimancial instrument s an equity Instrument if, and only if, both conditions () and (i) belowr
ang mel!

(i The financial mstrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
fimancial assel o another entity, or (o exchange linancial assets or financial labilities with
another entity under conditions. that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; and

{iy W the financial instrament will o may be settled im the Group®s own equity iInstruments,
itis a non-dervative instrument that includes no contractual obligations for the Group to
deliver a variable number of 165 ownequity instruments; or a derivative that will be settled
only by the Group exchandgeng a fised amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed nuimber of its own equily instruments,

Equity instruments ssued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds recelved, net
of direct issuance expanses

8.4 Derivative financial instruments

Drervatives are initially recognized at faie value at the date a detivathee contract is entered inlo
and are subsequently re-measured al their fair value al the end of the reporting period, The
resulting gain o loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement,

Dartvativis ermbeddad in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derfvatives wehen
thelr characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the host contracts
andd the host contracts are not measured at fair valie with changes in fair value recognized in
the comsolidated income statement. These embedded derlvatives are separately accounted for
al FYTPL.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuesd)
8 Financial instruments (Contineed)

8.5 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price thal would be received 1o sell an assel or paid to transler a liability in an
orderly transaction i the principal (or most advantagecus) market at the measurement date
under current market conditeons (e, an exit priced regardbess of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated wsing another valuation technique,

For financial instruments Waded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial
assats and financial Habilities is based on queded market prices. This inchedes listed ecuity
securities and quoled debt instruments on major exchanges.

A financial instnement 15 regarded as quoted inan active market H quoted prices are readily ancd
peqularly availabde from an exchange, industry group, pricing setvice or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurting market transactions on an arm’s length
basis, If the abowve criteria are not met, the market s regarded as being inactive. Indications
that & market is inactive are when there is a wide bid-otfer spread or significant increase in the
bid-affer spread of there are few fecail ransactions,

For financial instruments. et traded in active markets, fair value s determined wsing
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation technigques include the use of recent transaction
prices, discounted cash flow anaksk, option pricing models and others commonly  used
by markel participants. These valuation lechnigues include the wse of observable andfor
unobservable inputs.

8.6 De-recognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset cnly when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assel expire, of when it transters the inanclal asset and substantially all the risks and
revwards of ownarship of the asset to anothor entity, If the Group neither transters nor relains
substantially all the risks and reweards of ownership and continues to controd the transtered
asset, the Group continues to recognize the assel to the extent of its continuing imobement
and recognizes an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a ransterred financial asset, the Group conlinues 1o recognize tha fimancial
assel and abko recognizes a collateralized batrowdng for the procesds recened

On de-recoqnition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s cairying
amount and the sum of the conskleration received and receivable and, where applicable,
the cumidative gain of loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated im equity is recognized in the consolidated income statement,

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related obligation s discharged, Is cancelled o

axpires. The difference betwoon the canyving amount of the financial liability defecognized and
the comsideration paid and payable is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (€ ontinusd)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)

8.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consclidated
statemant of financial position when both ol the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the
Group has a legal right o set off the recogmized amounts and the legal right s currently
entorceabde; and (il the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financal
asset and setthe the financial labity simultanecisly . The leqgally enforcoable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of defaull, insolvency of bankruptcy of the Growp or the counterparty

£.8 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets transterred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, invalving
fixed repurchase dates and prices, are not demfngnu:ed. They continue 1o be recorded as
imvestiments clissifiod a0 held-to-matusity investments, svailable-Tor-sale financkal assets of dabt
instruments classified as receivables as appropriate. The corresponding liability is included in
financial assets sokl under repurchase agreements. The items which are nol derecognized are
dischosed in Mote IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.

Consideration paid tor financial assets held under agreements o resell are recorded as Fnancial
assels held under resale agreements

The difference betwieen purchase and sale price is recogmzed a5 inferest expense of Income in
the conselidated income statement over the term of the agreements using the effective interest
method,

9  Insurance contracts

Insurance contract classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has aoceplpd 5igniﬁ|:.1|1l imsurance
risk, relative o an insured event or ocourtence. The Group issues primarily lile nsurance contracts,
which insure events associated wath mortality over a long duration. The Group also issues non-life
insurance confracts, which cover shori-term casualty and health insurance risk. When necessary,
the Group enters inlo reinsurance contracts 1o transfes insutance reks to reinsurer. A significant
nsurance rsk test 5 performed at inception of the insurance contracts,

Sofme insurance contracts contain both an insurance componant and a deposit component. The
Group unbundles those components, il the msurance. component and the deposil component
are separately measurable. The unbundled insurance component s accounted for according 1o
IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts and the unbundied deposit component is accounted for as a financial
Rability under investment contract liabilities,

Annual Report 2015 2413

281/424



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
{amaunts in milions of Renmmbi, uniems athenase stated

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)
9 Insurance contracts (Confinued)

Insurance income recognition

Fremiums from !um}-ierrn lite inswrance contracts are recugrﬁ'.red as revenue when due from
policyhodders. Premiums related to short-lerm non-life. insurance contracts are recognized when
received at the nception of the policy, as unearned msurance premitms in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and are amortized on a 1.l|aighl-iine basis imto the consolidated
incoime staternent over the teiim of the policy.

When the Group has transterred imwance risk through reinsurance contracts, the Group Calculates
the amount of premium ceded and the reinsurers' share of expenses and recognizes them through
the consciidated income statement in accondance with the terms of the reinsurance contracls,

Insurance contract labilities

Irsurance contract lBabilites are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount  of
payments that the Group will be required to make to fulfill its obligations under the inswance
confracts, which represents the difference between expected future cash outflows and inflows
related to such confracts, A reasonable estimate of axpecied fulure pet cash flows s determined
based on information corrently available 35 at the end of the reporting period. The Group: has
considered the impact of time value in the Bability calculation lor long-term life insurance.

The Group performes lability adequacy tests based on information currently available, as at the
reporting date, Additional insurance contract liabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exasts

10 Precious metals
Precious metaks comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.

Precious metals that are not related 1o the Group's trading activities are initially measured  at
acepuisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Precious
metaks that are related to the Group’s trading activities are initially recognized at fair valee, with
changes in fair value arising from ne-measurement recognized directly in the comsolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (€ ontinued)

11 Property and equipment

Froperly and equipment including buildings held for uvse in the supply of senices, o for
administrative purpose fother than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement
ol financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaitment
losses, it any, When the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be relably measured and
separated from that of the building al inception, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and
recarded in Property ard Equipment.

Depreciation s recognized as a component of Operating Expenses in the comolidated Income
statemment <0 a5 1o fecognize the comsumption of the economic value ol propeity and squipiment
{other than construction in progress), kess their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful
[ves, using the straghit-line method. The estimated uselul lives, residual values and depreciation
rates ate reviewed at the emd of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes In estimate
accounted Tor on a prospective basis.

The useful lives, estimated ressdual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each class of
property and equipment are as follows:

Annual

Estimated residual Depreciation

Classes Useful lives Value rates rates
Buldinys G-50 years 3% 1.594%-1940%
Electionk eduiprment, fuinituie and lixtures 3-11 years 1% B&2%-3233%
Motar vehicles 58 years 3%  12.13%=-1940%

Proparties i the course of construction for supply of services or administrative purposes are carmed
al cost, as constiuction in progress, less any impaiment loss, Consfruction in progress i reclassified
1o the appropriate calegory of propetly and equipment when completed and ready for intended wse
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commaences when
the assets are ready lor their intended wse.

Anitem of property and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no futine eoonamic
benefits are expected to arse from s continued use. Any gain of koss arsing on the disposal or
retirement of an itern of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and i recognized in Otker Operating income in the
consalidated income statement, The accounting policies of impairment of property and equipment
are included in Note Il 18 Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classified In other assets and amortized over a straight-line basis over their
authorized usetul lives.

13 Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fai value and subsequently measured a1 the lower o
their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reporting period. When the
Tair value, less comts to sell, is lower than a foreclosed asset’s canying amownt, an impairment oss 5
tecognized in the consolidated income statement

Any gain of boss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed assel is included in the consolidated income
statemnent in the period in which the item i disposed.

A foreckosed asset used by the Group is tramsferred to property and equipment at its net carrying
amount.

14 Investment property
Investoent property is property beld 1o earm rental income o for capital appreciation, or both

Investient property B initially measured al ity acepuisition cost. Subsequent expenditunes incurred
for the imvestment property are included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that
economic benefits assocated with the asset will flowr to the Group and the subsequent expenditures
can be measured reliably, Other subsequent expenditures are recognized in the consalidated income
statemnent in the period in which they are incured.

fwestment properties are measwed using the cost model. Depreciation and  amodtization s
recognized the same way as property and equipment and Land wse rights.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the canying amounts of s investment
properties to determine whethar there B any indication that the assets have sulterad an impaigment
loss. M any such indicatson exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of fair value less costs (o sall
and value in use) of the property is estimated in oader 1o determine the extent of the impaliment
loms, if any, If the fecoverable amount of a properly is estiimated 1o be less than its carmying amount,
the carrying amount of the property is reduced (o its recoverable amount, An impairment loss
it recognized in the consolidated income statement. The accounting policies of impairment of
investmeent property are included in Mote Il 18 Impairment of Tangible and Intamgible. Assets: other
than Goodwill,

Whete an impairment koss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the investment property s
increased bo the revised estimate of IS recoverable amont, to the extent that the incraased cainying
amount does not excead the canying amount had no impairment boss been recognized. A reversal of
an impaitment boss is recognized in the consolidated income statement .

When an investment property i sold, transferred, relired or damaged, the Group recognizes the

amount of any procesds on disposal, nel of the canying amount and related expenses, in the
consolidated income statement,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (€ ontinued)

15 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whensver the terms of the lease transter substantially all the
risks and reveards of cwnership to the kessee. All other leases are dassified as operating leases,

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, an amount representing the minimum lease
payment fecenables and undguarantesd residisal value, nel of initial direct costs, all discounted at the
implicit lease rate (the "net lease investmont ™) is recorded in the consolidated staternent of finandal
posilion a3 Loans and advances to astomers, The difference between the net lease investrment ard
the undiscounted amount is recorded as uneamed finance income, amostizing over the term of the
lease wsireg the effective interest method and recognized in the consolidated income staternant,

When the Group b the lessor in an operating kease, the assels subject to the operating lease
continue to be recognized as the Group's property and eguipment. Rental income from operating
beases s recognized as Other. Operating Income i the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the related lease,

The Group as lessee

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized initially at the fair
value of the asset or, if bower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding
fability to the bessor is included in Other Liabilities. Finance charges are charged over the tarm of the
hease usimg the etfective intedest method and recognized in the comsolidated income statement. The
depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with that for depreciable assets that
ane onned,

When the Group is the lessee in an operating lease, operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense and charged to Operating Expenses in the consolidated income statement on a straighi-line
basis ovor the lease lerm. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. n the avent that lease incentives are received
1o enter Info operating keases, siech incentives are considered in determining the amount 1o be
recognized over the lease term.

16 Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liquid assets, which are readily convertible
inta knowen amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents include Cash and assets with onginal maturity of three months or less under Balances
with Central Banks, Deposits with Banks and Other Financial Institutions, Placements with and Loamns
to Banks and Other Financial Institutions and Financial Assets Held undor Resale Agreements.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separataly and with finite tseful lives are canried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortization for intangible assets with finite
useful lives i tecognized on a straighi-line basis over their estimated wsetul lives which generally
range from 5 to 20 years,

Intargible assets with indefinite useful Bves are not amortized, but are subject to annual impaigment
As3essment

Gaims of losses anksing fiom de-recognition of an intangible assel are measured a5 the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset amd are recognized in the
comnsolidated income statement,

18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

Al the end of each reporting penod, the Group reviews the carmnying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets 1o determine whether there B any indication that those assets have sutfered an
impatement boss, I8 any such indication exists, the recovedable amount of the asot 5 estimated in
ofcher to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, The recoverable amount is the higher of
thee assel’s Tain value less conts to sell and vabue in use,

I the recoverable amount of an assel & estimated to be less than its canying amount, the carnying
amount of the asset is reduced o its recoverable amount. An impaitment loss is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

Whese an impairment boss subsequently teverses, the canying amount of the assel |5 increased to
the revised estimate of ils recoverable amount, 1o the extent that the increased carrying amount
does ol excead the carrying amount had no impatiment loss been recogqnized, A reversal of an
impaiement hoss is recognized in the consolidated income statemeant.

19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Bank's ordinary shareholders s recognized a5 a Bability in the Group's
and the Bank's financtal statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
shareholders” annual general meeting of the Bank,

As authotized by the sharsholders' annual genesal mesting, the Board of Directors has the sole
discretion to dechare and distbute dividends on preference shares. Freterence share dividend
distribufion is recognized as a Bability in the Group’s and the Bank’s financal statements in the
pericd in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Disectors of the Bank,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (€ ontinued)

20 Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a resull of a past event, and
it 5 probable that the Group will be required o settle that obligation and a refiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the abligation.

Provisions are measured al the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the erd of the reporting penod, taking into account the risks and uncedtainties
surrounding the obligation, Where a provision 5 measured using the cash flows estimated to seftle
the present abligation, its caryimg amount is the present value of those cash flows.

21 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, tustee and inother fiduciary capacities to sateguard assets for
customers in accordance with cstody . agreements between the Group and securities Investment
funcls, social security funds, insurance companies, trust companies, gualified foreign institutional
mvestors, annuity schemes and other institutsons and ndividuals. The Group receives fees in return
for its services provided under the custody agreements and does not have any interest in the
econafmic risks and fevands related to assots under cistody. Therelole, assets under custody are not
recognized in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Thie Group conducts eninsted lending amangements for its customers. Under the lerms of
ontrustad loan arrangements, the Group grants loans o borrowoers, a5 an intermediary, according
o the instruction of ifs customers who are the lenders providing the entrusted Ioans. The Group is
responsible for the amangement and collection of the entrusted loans and recefves a commission
for the services rendered. As the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the
entrsted koans and the funding tor the corresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as
assits and liabilities of the Group,

22 Financial guarantee contracts

A linancial guarantes contract s a contract that reguires the pssuer o make specified payments (o
reimburse the halder for a loss it Incurs because a specified debior fails tomake payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fail value on the date the guarantes was given
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guaraniees are measured al the
higher of the inttial amownt, less amortization of guarantes Tees recognized in accordance with
the revenue recognition policy, and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
guarantes. These estimates. are determined based on experience of similar transactions, historical
forsses and supplementad by the jedgment of management. Amy increase in the liability relating 1o
guaranteas i taken to the consolidated income statement,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent Fability is a possible obligation that arises from past events amd whose existence vall
only be confirmed by the occumence or ron-occurmence of one of more uncertain fulure events not
wholly within the contiol of the Group, It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is nat recognized because it is ot probable that an outllow of economic resources. will be
repuired or the amaount of obligation cannot be measured relably.

A contingent liability s not recognized, but disclosed, unless. the possibility of an cutllow  of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable. The Group's contingent Rabilities are disclosed
in Mote IV 47 Contingent Liahilities and Comrmitmants,

A provision is recognized when it meets the criteria as <ot forth in Mete 1|20 Provision.

Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

In the application of the Group's accouniing policies, which are described in Note I, management s
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the canrying amounts of assets and
liabilities. The estimates and related assumptions are based on hstorical experionce and other relevant
factors including on the basis of reasonable expectations for futule events

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to aocounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised i the revision affects only that
pegiod or in the pericd of the revision and future pericds il the revision atfects both current and future
petiods.

The following are the critical judgments and key estimates that the management has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have a significant risk of causing a matesial
adpstment to the carrying amounts of assets and Rabilities within the next twelve months,

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loan portfolio (o assess impairment on a perodic basis during the' year.
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognized in the consofidated income
statement, the Gioup makes estimates and judgments as 1o whether there is any obsendable data
indicating that thete s objective evidence of impairment and the extent, it any, to which it will have
a meastrable decrease in the estimated future cash flows elated o incivedually significant loams or
pooks of loans wath similar sk charactenstics, as describad in Note Il 2.1 npaitment of Financial
Assels Carried at Amoized Const,

Significant udgments are made in the determination of whether objecive avidence of impaitment
oxfsts in individially significant boans of pools ol smaller-balance  koans with  similar sk
chatacteristics. Among other things, objective ewidence of impairment includes deterioration in
the financial condition of specific borrowers (or specific pools of bamowiers) alfecting their ability
to meel their loan payment obligations, as well a5 increasing industry sector over-capacily o
obsolescence, o deterioration in naticnal or regicnal economic conditions that are correlated to
increasing loan defaults. These judgments are made both during management's reqular assessments
of koan quality and when other croumstances indicate the possibility that objective evidence of
impairment imay exst,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continuad)

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customars (Conlinued)

Where it s deterrined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments and
eslimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows related o individually
significant impaired loans. The methodobogy and assumpteons used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed teqularly to reduce any differences between loss
ostimatos and actual loss experience. Factors affecting these estimates include the: availability and
granularity of infcrmation related to specific borroveers and the clarity of the correlation between
qualitative factors, such as industry sector performance of changes in regional economic conditions
and lean defaulls of related borrowers.

When the decrease may not have been identified individwally or the individual loan B not significant,
management mwes estimates based on histarical loss experience on a collective basis on loans with
similar credit risk characteristics to assess the impairment loss. Significant judgments are also applied
1o the calculation of collectively assessed impaimment. Critical factors atffecting these judgments
include modeling assumplions (e.g., loss emergence period and foss given default) and levels ol
correlation between qualitative factors and loan defaull. The Group comsiders the impact aof the
changes and uncertainty in the macre-economic environment, in which the Group operates when
assessing the methodology and assumptions used for loss esfimation, as well as management’s
capability in managing lean portfolio, and makes. adjustrments where appropriate.

2  Fair value of financial instrumants

The Group wses valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of financial instruments which are
mot quoted in an active market, These valuation technigues include the use of recent lransaction
prices of the same of simdlar instruments, discounted cash flowy analysis and option pricing modeks,
To the extent practical market observable mputs andd data, such as interest rate yield curves,
foreign currency rates and implied option volatilities, are wsed when estimating fair valoe through
a valuation technigue, Where market observable inpuls are mot available, they are estimated using
assumpticns that are calibrated as closely as possible to market observable data, However, areas
such i the credil risk of the Gioup and the counterpaily, volatilities and correlations fequire
management to make ostimates. Changes in assumptions about these factons could atfect the
estimated fair value of finandal instruments,

With respact 1o PRC government obligations related 1o large-scale policy directed financing
tramsactions, lai value is determined wsing the stated ferms of the related instrument and with
reference to terms determined by the PRC governiment in similar transactions engaged in or directed
by the PRC government. In this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or yields reflacting
arm’s kength framsactions of a comparable size and tenor,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (C ontinuesd)

3  Held-to-maturity investmaents

The Group classifies non-dervative financial assefs, quoted in an active market, with fized or
determinable payments and fied maturities: that the Group's management has the positive intention
and ability o hold to matunty as held-to-maturity investments. In assessing the Group®s intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity, management primarily considers the business
purpose for acquiting a security, as well as the Group's lkquidity needs. This is a significant judgment
becawse if the Group fails (o hold these investments to maturity, other than for specific and limited
circumstances (e.g., sale ol an insignificant amount close o matarity, it waill be required to reclassify
the entife portfolo of held-to-maturity investments as available-fod-sale financial assets and be
precluded from classifying investments as hobd-to-rmaturity imvestmaents for b years.

4  Impairment of other financial assets

For  held-lo-maturity  imvestments  and  financial  instruments  classified 35 receivables, the
determination of whether such an iwestment is impaired requires significant judgment. Cjective
evidence thal a financial assel or group of financial assets is impaired includes a breach of contract,
such a5 a default or delinguency in interest of principal payments of the disappearance of an aclive
market for that financial asset bacause of significant financial difficulty of the issuer, e1c In making
such judgment, the inpact of objective evidence of impairment on expected future cash flows of the
investment i taken into account

For availabie-forsale investments, the detemmination of whether such an imvestment 5 impained
teuires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Growp considess the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investmant is less than its cost; or whether other objective evidence of
impaioment exsts based on the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the mvestee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance, credit ratings, delinquency rates and
coninterparly fisk.

5 Taxaes

There are certain transactions and activities In the ordinary course of the Group®s business for which
the ultimate ta effect is uncertain. The Group made certain estimation and judgement for items
of uncertainty in the application of tax legilations, taking into account existing la kegislation and
past practice of tax authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially estimated, based on management’s assessment, such differences will
affect the current income tax, deferred income tax, and business tax during the penod in which such
4 determination 5 made
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continuad)

& Employes sarly retirement beanefits obligations

The Group recogmizes liabilities in connection with early refirement benefits for employees in
Domestic Institutions using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method based on various
assumptions, including the discount rate, average medical expenses growth rate, pension benedit
groweth rate for early retirements and other lactors, The present value of the liability is determined
through discounting the estimated futsre cash outflows using interest rates of RME reasury boneds
wehich hawve terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related lability. Any difference arising
from the actual result o changes In assumptions may affect the amount of expense recognized in
the comsalidated income statemnent in the pencd dunng which such changes take place amd the
codresponding Rability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial positicn.

7 Control over structured antity

Whare the Groop acts as ssel manager of structured entities, the Group makes judgment on
whether it s the principal of an agent to assess whether the Group controls the structured entities
amdl should consolidate them, When perfoiming this assessment, the Group considers several factors
including, among other things, the scope of its dedsion-making authodity aver the stiuciured
entities, the rights hebd by other parties, the remuneration to which it-is entithed in accondance with
the related agreements for the assets management. services, the Group's exposure (o variability
of retuins from other interests that it holds in the structured entities. The Group performs
fe-assossment periodically,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 MET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Interest incomie
Loans and advances o customears 476,988 470,829
Including: Corporate loans and advances 321,040 356,541
Personal boans and advances 145,181 138,500
Discounted bilks 10, 167 5, 782
Held-to-maturity imestments 83 684 &6, 152
Awallable-for-sale financial assets A1,344 35257
Batances with central banks 39,7145 40,018
Daposts wath banks and other financial institutions 25,409 22,184
Financial assets held under resale agreements 21,378 27,981
Debl instruments classified as receivables 20,507 21,544
Placements with and lnans 1o banks and
other financial institutions 14,391 12,516
Financial assets held tor rading 1,595 1,923
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or boss 348 185
Subiotal 125193 690,289
Interest expenss
Due 1o customers (233,371 {221, 706)
Daposits from banks and other financial institutions (37,036} (26,681}
Dbl securities issued {10, 988) (10,179
Placemenits from banks and other financial institutions 4,731} {7,318)
Barowings from central bank {1,850 (1,003
Financial assets sold under repurchase agresments {1,631} {2,511)
Substolal {280 653} {269, 398)
Met interest income 436,140 429,891
Interadl bcome acciued on impared financial assets
{included within interest incomss) 1,765 1.002
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 MNET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Fee and commission incomse
Agency wervices JB.62E 22,945
Bank card 20,689 19,275
Settbernent and clearimg services 17,714 21,123
Electronic banking services 8,962 1,379
Consultancy amd advisory semvices B 802 11,031
Custodian and other tiduciary 2,857 3,114
Credit commitment 2547 2,807
Others 205 205
Subtotal O, 494 #7883

Fee and commission expense
Bank card {3.401) {3,127
Settbernent and clearing services {1,921) {2,283)
Electronic banking services {1,852} {1,766}
Others (741 (L84)
Subtotal (. 5a%) (7, 160)
Het fee and commission income 82,549 80,123

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Mal gain on held-Tor-trading debt securities 1,370 1,179

Mol gain on precious melals ) 229 i)

Met gain on foreign exchange rate dervatives 14839 115

Mot loss on interest rate detivatives {126) (53)

Total 3,562 1,908
i Med gaen on precices metals consists of Nel e o precos melaly ang precos mata melded denvalive prodicts

4 MNET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR WVALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Mt gain on principal guarantesd vaealth
managemaent products 1.693 1,507
Met {lessigain an debit securities (17 12
Othars 51 {14}
Total 1,727 1,505
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Insurance premium 1,149 1,684
Gowarnment grant 3,237 1,965
Mot gain on foreign exchange 2,842 2,915
Rental incormae 5l 136
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 55 416
Others 1,628 1,044
Total 16,027 10,364

OPERATING EXPEMSES

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Statl costs {1} 1140, 349 111,469
Genetal operating and admimstratve expenses {2} A48 461 49,195
Bmsiness tax and surcharges (3 20,075 28, BR0
Deprociation and amoiization 19,633 19,328
Inaurance benefits and claims 7984 3.4904
Proviskon lod guarantees and commitments 3,084 0,898
Prowiston loa risk incidents and legal proceadings 5 500 471
Oithers 1,723 1,753
“Total 225,818 223,898

{1) Staff costs

Year ended 31 December

294/424

2015 2014

Short-term employee benefits
Salaties, bonuses, allewance and subsidies 67,513 66, 180
Housing furds 8,851 8,186
Social insurance A 956 4,454
lincluding: Modical insue ance 4,317 3,842
Matarnity insurance 352 318
Employmant inpury insurance 287 218
Labor umion fees and stafl education expenses 1,026 29717
hars O 4h8 12,825
Sublotal 93,804 Q5,222
Dsfined contribution benedits 15,151 14,636
Early retirement benefils 1,304 1,611
Total 110,349 111,469

o [E A o L



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

& OPERATIMG EXPENSES (Confinued)

(2) Included in general operating and  administrative expenses is awditor’s remunetation of
RMET 39 million for the year (2014: RME1 32 million),

(3) Business tax for the Group's Domestic Operations s generally caloulated as 5% of taxable
income, which was declared and paid 1o the local tax department by Domestic Cperations.

In accordance wath the “Cicular regarding the Business Taxes Freferential Policies on
Aguiculture-related Loans Granted by the County Area Banking Division of Agricultural Bank of
China Lisnited™ {Cai Shui [2014] No, 5), jolntly Bsued by the Ministry of Finance (the "MOF=)
and the State Administration of Taxation (the “SAT") on 10 lanuary 2014, business tax of
the Group's county-level sub-branches in the 19 provinces for the pilof program would be
levied at 3% on interes! income from agriculture-related loans from 1 Movember 2013 1o
31 December 2015,

In accordance with the “Circular regarding the Business Taxes Preferential Policies on
Agriculture-relsted  Loans Granted by the County Area Banking Division of Agreculiural
Bank of China Limited” (Cai Shui [2015] Mo, 67), jointly ssued by the MOF and the SAT on
11 June 2015, the Group's county-level sub-branches in all the provinces for the pilsl program
wiould bepefit from the above blsiness Laxes preferential policles from | May 2015 1o
3 December 2015, From the effective date of this new circular (Cai Shai [2015] No. 67), the
then existing circular (Cai Shul [2014] Mo, S) was superseded.

City constriction and maintenance tax is calculated at 1%=7% of business tax tor the Group’s
Dovmestic Crperations.

Education surcharge is calculated at 3%-5%% of business tax foa the Grogp’s Domestic
Operations.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

(1) Detafls of the Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior managements’
emoluments are as follows (in thousands of RMB):

Year ended 31 December 2015

[4
Bisic 10 Other
salaries  relirement  benefits
and benefit  Inkind
Item Fees  allowance  schemes [nxi) Total
Exacutie Diecton
Liu Shiyu - 448 =] 53 56T
Cal Hugang (i) = 403 i L3 )
Low Wenkong i} - a3 3 53 Fird
Indepandant Non-Exeaive
Ciracton
Frederick Ma Si-hang =7 - - - 397
Wen Tiajin 395 - - - 339
France Yoen Tin-fan 176 = = e iTo
Hiat Xing {iif} pitrd - - - 292
L hanpang ik -_— - -_ - -
Won-Executive Dareaion
Zhao Chao (v} - - - - -
Zhew K il - - - - -
Zhang Dinglong i} = = e = =
Chen lianto WHviy — — — — —
Hi Kiachii wilviil - - _ —_ -
Xy lizndong Aulwiil) - - - - —
Supenisons
Yuan Chargging 1o} - 261 40 EF] 33
Wang Xingthun 1) - - - - -
Ihaeng xin el 30 - - - 0
X Tongyu i) 30 - — - 30
i3 Taili &) 30 — — - £
Li Wang (i} 143 - - - 143
Lv Shugin [k 143 - - - 143
Seniod Managermenis
Gong Chao - 403 &0 53 502
Wang We - 403 66 53 527
Li Tharpisng - 403 b6 53 522
Lin Miamnaan (il - 202 4 ki3 64
Thiang Keqh {xiv] — A05 LE GE E51
Executhve Director resigned
Zhang Yun (v - a5 56 53 R
Independent Hon-Executive
Direcaoes resigned
Anthony Wu Ting=yuk vl 157 - - - 157
Ciiu Bang [ewi) 164 - - - 164
o eniecutive Direcions resigned
Shan Bongo {viCoilp — —_ — — —
Cheng Fengrhan {wiawih — — — — -
Xiao Shusheng {wiewil) - - - - —
Supevisors resigned
Che Yingaan Liowiid] — 144 | 17 187
liit ¥aangsen (e} 2 - - - 25
Dai Gepyou [iih 138 —_ —_ — 138
Sieniod bManagemenl reshgned
ahll Lot [k — Aat ig €4 £}
Total 2304 4419 655 605 8003
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

{1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors® and Senior Managements”
emoluments are as follows (in thousands of RMB) (Continued):

i
fii}

il
il
]

vl
fa)

fvar)

e

Ll

)
e}

)
i)
)
fn)

Ciw Huasrang was elected Evacutve Direcror effectve 7 September 2015

Cav Huawang and Lon Wenlong are aiso the Servar Managements of tfe Group ang thert emalimends okscfosed
abewe el thide for sensces rendemed by tham ai the Senior Manapaments

Hra Xirsg wis elected Indapendent Moa-Erscuiive Dvector sffecine & ah 2015
Lo Janiwmy war efecied indepandent Non-Esscutes Diecor effectve 5 e 2015

These Non-Evecutnw Derectovs of the Bank ofdf not recesde any fees from the Bank Ther emoluments wens borne
by the nq,anqv.ur.r Haldeis of the Bank

Fhang Dengiongr and Chen fanba wers elected Non-Eequieg Drrectons effoctve 15 iy 2015
e Mo vt e fed Mon -Execltive Drector effectve 14 fasuan 2005

M franalong wead electsd Non-Executee Director effectve 28 Febrigey 2075

Yuan Chanppng was efected Charman of the Bosvd of Supenors mffectave I8 fune 2015

Wang Xingohun i’ nob recese any emoluments for b part-time poetion a5 thaneholder representato
supanasor from the ank n 20015

For Emplayes Repretentatee Supenssors of the Rank, e emounds ser forrh above only incuded fees for ther
LONACEE 3F SADeSOrT

L Wang and Lv Shien were aelocied Eternal Supentsors effectve 20 June 2015 and Da Génpou ceased fa be
Extornal Supsnazor effechve 29 ine 2015

Lin Xaapceuan was alechint Exocutove Vide Frgsdent affectve T Sopdomber 2075

Fhing Facpir wai sletied Sednetady 16 the Sodrd of Ditectorr affectne 24 whe 2015

Thing Yun cadsed o be Brecitas Director and Preodent sffecte 4 December 2015

Anthany Wi Ting-sui and Qo Deng cearad fo be ingemandent Mon-Exscutae Directon affectae 5 une 2015
Shan Ringed, Cheng fengchao and Xao Shicheng ceaped' to be Mon-Eseautnve Directors effectv 16 January 2015
Che Yingen ceaped o be Chanman of the Board of Supentsons effectve 2§ Apnl 2075

Sy Mrangsen ceaied o be Sopenasor Sepresenling Emplorees effactiwe 26 Cotober 2005

Zhy Gaormung coased fo ke Secnetary to the Bouwrd of Derecions effectas 5 May 2015

Gt bersefits i bind indiude the Bank’s confabutons fe medial fond, housng fund and ather sooal marandes
which are payabde: to dsbour ang securily suthonties based on the lower of certaln perceniage of the sianes

andf allowesnce or the praccnbed’ ppoer kurs a7 requined by the ralsvnt regralitien ritdnedl By Ehe Soeernment
it hoirhns

The total compensation packages for the above Executive Directors, Supetvisors amd Senior
fanagemments for the year ended 31 December 2015 have not yet beon finahzed in accordance
with regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC at the date of this repont, The final
compansation will be disclosed in a separate announcement when determined,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

{1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior managements”’
emoluments are as follows (in thousands of RMB) (Contlinwed).

Year ended 21 December 2014 (Restated)

Contribution
] Other
Baslc  retirement  benefits
salaries and benefit ini kiind

Item Fees  allowance schames (v} Total
Execute Deecton

L Shiyu 1} 291 Fa ] *3

Thang Yun {1} = 1,581 113 216 1910

Low Wenlong fhiy - 1,452 108 206 1,807
Independent Nom-Execuths

Carectoes

Anthany Wu Tyt 410 - - - 410

Qlu L:I:ll'.lJ 440 - - 440

Frederici; Ba Si-hang 350 - - - 350

Wen Tigjen 300 - - - EL ]

Francts Yuen Tin-fan 60 - - - 360
o Executve Direcion

Shen Benge (i}

C ey Fenachan L{1in

Xia0 Shusheng {iny - — - - -

Than Chaso i} - - —_ — -—

Zhowl ke LT L - - - - -
SUpEVILON

{he 'ingpein - 1,545 111 2 1,660

Wang Xingchun v - - - - -

Jia: Xiangoen [A) 0 - - - 30

Thens Xin 1] 30 —_ — — 0

Xix Zongyu fii) 30 . - - 30

¥a Taill [l = = - - -

[al Germpou B0 — - = 250
Senor Mansgements

Cai Huaxiang - 1451 108 206 1,806

Geng Chao - 1491 102 L2068 1,806

W Wes - 481 109 206 1.806

LI Mhenjiang Ty - 1,451 105 206 1,806

Zhu Gagring {viif) - a3 n ] a76
Exeoutive Direcions resignid

liang Chatlsng [sd - 1,318 a0 177 1,585

Glso Haoda b " 955 12 137 1,204
Mon-gxecutive Direcions nesignad

L1 Yefin LI K] — _— —_ — —

Lin Daran [y - - - -— —
Supenvisons resigned

Li H(‘r:'J {kil}] = x = - -

Thang Banzhang e} 3 - E
Total 1,310 14,028 1,023 1877 19,248
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

{1) Details of the Directors’, Supervisors® and Senior Managements”
emoluments are as follows {in thousands of RMB) (Continued):
i lw Show was eleched Chavrman of the Boavd of Denectors effectve 11 Decembar 2014

ful  Thang Yun and lou Wenlong ane o the Sendor Managements of the Group dnd thelr emoluments dizdfoned
above rciugle those for armaces mngered by them a3 the Senior Mana gemenls

fuf Thee Mon-Evecutie Derectovs of the Bank obdf not feciwe sny feas fram the Bank Thert emoluments were Barne
by the magar Botnty Holters aff the Bink

fnd  Zhow K was eecied Mon-Emcutne Direcror effecive 31 July 2014

Ml Wand Mnpthin Wl alscied Sharakalder Repridentsfne Supenisar affsctve 27 June 2014 Warg Mingehin gt
nol recave any emolluments for fvs parr-time poshion a: shanshpider represenfalive sugenor fram the Bank an
2074

fw)  For Employes Represendatve Supenssons af the Rank. the amounfs 5ef forth above only induded fees for ther
SANICES i HADEMIOe

fus) i Ta wals eecnad! SUpention seresenting smployess of the Sand affecive 2 December 2014 af-the Empioyes
Reprezentatives Meating

fvar) L Shenpang ceased to be Secrefary to the Board off Dvrechors effectve 27 March 2014, Thy Gaoming ives elected
Socrotany io-the. Soand o Demctors effechive 27 March 2014

(el Aang Chaolhang ceasd (o Be Thaurman of the Losa of Divecion effectne 31 Augent 2014

(i oo Haods opagod 1o be Evecufnar Cirector offctne 3 Septomber 2004 0 fus toncee, I i a0 the Senior
Managamesnt of the Group and hiy emedsment disclased above racude thal for mnnce fendered by him as the
Sonioy Management

(e} L Yo ceased 1o be Non-Evecutnve Dvecror effectve 28 July 2014
(o] Lin Damao ceased fo ba Mon-Erecine Doictor effécive 5 August 2014

(et} L Hong ceated foobe Sharstolder Representaive Sugenisor effecine 24 Apnf 2014, Liw Hong ol not recenve
any emoiuments for his parf-tirme position a3 Sharehoddar Reprenantative Supenssor from the #ank in 2014

() hang Aanmhong ceased 1o be Empiojee Representatee Supenasor affectae ) December 2014

(o) Crtfver bensefits oo kg inciode the Rank's contabutions to mediaal fund, houking fung and obher sooal ingandes
which ame payible fo laboir sng securdy sithontes baied on tho fower of cortin pevcantage of the tWknef
and alloveance o the prestnbed’ uoper lmuls a5 required by the refevant regulbbions msued by the power ot
authombes

Asoof the anncuncement date of 2014 comnsolidated finandial statements,  the  abiove
compensation package for the Directors, Supervisors and Senor Managements for the
years ended 31 Decernber 2014 have not been finalized and the amount of remuneration
of Directors, Supenisors and Seniw Managerments recognized in the comsolidated income
statement for the year of 2014 was RME1 1,73 million, Supplementary announcement on
final compensation of AMETS 25 milion was rebeased by the Bank on 27 August 2015, The
campatatie Tigures fof the year of 2014 have been iestatad accordingly,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 BEMNEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (Continued)

{2) Five individuals with the highest emofuments in the Group

(i CH the five indwiduals with the highest emoluments, none of them are directors or
supervisors whose emoluments are disclosed  above. The emoluments of the  five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 31 Decenber 2014 were as follovs (i thousands of RME)

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Basic salaries and allovance 10,075 1435
Discretionary bonuses BN TGE2
Contribution to retirement banafit schemes and other 1,001 Ba7
Total 19,437 15,984

(i The number of these five individyals whose emoluments fell within the following bands
are as lollovs:

Yoar ended 31 Decomber

2015 2014
RME2, 500,000 to RMB 3,000,000 yuan - 1
RMEZ 000,007 to RMEZ 500,000 yuan - 3
RMEZ, 500,001 to RIMBA, 000,000 yuan 4 1
RMBA, 000,001 1o RMBA, 500,000 yoan 1 —

(2) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to
the New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

Fou the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, no emolument was pald by
the Group o any of the Direclors, Supervisors, Sentor Managements or the five highest paid
mdividuals as an inducement 1o join of upon joining 1he Group of a3 a compensation lor loss of
office. Except for the Annuity Scheme ared Pension Scheme (Mote 1| 7 Employee Benefits), therae
were no other retirement benefits for Directors o Supervisors, of consideration provided 1o
thind parties foi making available directors’ of supendsons’ seivices; and pone of the Direclors
of Supervisors veaived any emolument, or had material interests, whether directly or indigectly,
I any material transactions, arrangements or conlracts In relation to the Growp's business for
the yoar ended 31 Decomber 2015 and 31 Dacemnber 2014

The Group enters inte credit transactions with the Directors, Supervisors of  certain
controlled body corporates amd connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at anm's
lemggth i the ordinary course of business. For the ywear ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014, the balance of loans and advances from the Group to Directors,
Supenisons of cerfain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or
Supervisors was nol significant; the Group did not provide any guarantee of security to the
Directoss, Supervisors or certain controlled body cotporates amd connected entities of the
Directors or Supervisors in respect of their loans, quasi-loans o credit transactions.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far 1R v arioal 2015

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
8 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OMN ASSETS

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Loans and advances o customers 21,897 65,063
Hald-to-maturity investments G925 279
Debt mstraments classified a5 recerables &4 61
Available-lor-sale financial assets 78 {37)
Macements with and ksans to banks and
other financial institutions (167} 1,181
Property and equipment — A
Other 508 507
Total 84,172 67.971

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Cument incoms tax

— PRC Enterpiise Income Fax 5B 661 65 291

— Hong Kong Profits Tax 410 336

— Other jurisdictions 301 222

Subtotal 56 372 65, Bo0
Deterred Lax (Note IV 26) {9,284) {13,152
“Total 50,083 52,747

FRC Enterprise Income Tax s calculated at 25% of the estimated faxable profit for both years, ard
abo includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Operations as determined inaccordance with the
relevant PRC income tax rubes and reguiateons. Taxation arising in other jursdictions {(including Hong
Komg) is calculated at the sates provailing in the rebsvant jurisdictions. Pro-1ax deduction items of
enterprise income tax are governed by the relevant tax requlations in the PRC
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Confinued)
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The ta charges Tor the years ended 31 Decemnber 2015 and 31 December 2014 can be reconciled 1o

the profit per the consolidated Income statement as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014

Profit before tax 230,857 232,257
Tax calculated at applicable PRC statutory

tax rate-of 25% 57,714 58,064
Tax effect of income not tagable 1or Lax purpose (8,962} (7.083)
Tax effect of items such as exponses nol

deductible for lax puipose 1,361 1,770
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions (30} (4}
Income tax expense 50,083 52,747

in Nan-tarabla income pemaniy includas interest incame from FAC ey bonds and mennopal povernment bongs

10 DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid
Cash dividend related to 2014 n 50,113 =
Cash dividend related to 2013 4] — 51489
50,113 7,489
Dividends on preference shares declared and paid
Cash dividend related to the first tranche of
preference shares ) 2,400 -

1) Desrdbwtion of final ghedend for 2074

A cah divigeng of RAMBD T par omimary share refateg fo JOT4 amounéing fo AMESS 113 melan wn total was
approved, affer e reglied appralratiant 1od he StEufory el reseove and the general fdene for 2004 ad
chetermened’ i accordance Wweth tha relevant acoouning mier and financial reguwdahions appicable 1o PR endevpnses (e

"PRE GAAFT. af the annind geieral meehng held én 2 kine X015

The above dradend was recognied as dindition and chafnbuted gunng the year ended 31 Deoember 2015

] Exdrdgtion of findd ghedend for 20153

A cagh dhwdend of RMBED 177 por orginary sham refafed’ fo J073 amounting fo RMEST4583 mlvon mn todal was
approvet affer the reguited approprations e the stalufary sk rossne and the general haene for X003 a1

dehwrrined in stcovgance wiily the PR GAAPR, at the annu genersl monslfiig hedd'on 29 Jone 2014

T sty clvaend wad recoqnaid af dimbtion and drbfabured’ qunmag thi yiar ended 31 Decamber 2074
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el enhdiad 31 Datarnber 2015
(Amounts i rmallions of Benminki, unless othenwice stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 DIVIDEMNDS (Continued)

G A fnad andond of RMBD 1868 pev ordinay shave i respect of the mead ondbd’ 21 Decermber 201S fotafing
RMBSE 1 76 milion fag been pvoposed Dy the oiedion and is subyec! [0 aporoval by the ondliny. shersholgers in the
annuai genens meeling

[} Bzt ribiatran of dradend o0 preforends fhams
A cash gvdend af the dhwdend fate of 6% por anmurm relted (0 the firs! ranche of preference dhares Enounng o

RAGEZ 400 mubions in botal s anorowved B0 the Bodrd of Direchors” Adedmgr held on 23 Ocrober 2075 and' distnbutedon
5 Meniinber X015

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year ended 21 December

2015 2014
Earmings:
Prodit for the year attributabde o equity holders of the Bank 180,582 179461
Less: profit for the year atiributable to
preference shareholders of the Bank {2 A00) —
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary sharehodders _
af thi Bank 178,182 179,461
Mumber af shares:
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares in issuse (million) 324,704 324,794
Basic and diluted earmings per share (RMB yuan) .55 0.55

The Bank issued non-cumulative preterence shares during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
31 Decembir 014, rﬂﬁpeql:iuelﬁr, umcher the terms and conditions as detailed in Note IV 38 Preference
Shares.

Foi the purpose of calculating basic eamings per share, a cash dividend of RMB2,400 million on
non-cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 2015 was deducted from the
amounts attributable to ordinary sharehobders of the Bank.

The conversion feature of preference shares 5 considered 1o fall within contingently issuable
ordinary shares. The trigoering events of conversion did not occur as at 31 December 2015 and

31 December 2014, therefore the conversion feature of preference shares has no effect on the basic
and diluted aarmngs per share calculation,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Cash 116,300 111,062

Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks {1 2,216,082 2,409 181

Surplus reserve deposits with central banks ] 58 656 49,253

Crthor deposits with central banks {3) 195,979 172,660
“Total 2,587,057 2,783,065

in Thetr GroGs pleced mandifofy nesen'd depodi s weth the PEOC and cveriear fegedanary bodies. Theas inciuok RME reiene
depomls and fotegn furmency resenid dwpoarts. These mandatony resmne dapomts ans nol svidalble for the Group's dsly
Laat 1T o

Effectare 12 March 2015, for Domemic Qpevanions of the Sank winch méer i mdlversars of Todits on Dfferanig!
Mandaicey Ressnm Deposts for the Saanang Banking Cperation: of Agncuftival Benk af Ching Limited’ far 2015
witsed by the People's Bank of Chine®™ (Yinbanta [XFI5T Mo, &7) & o0 31 Decamber J015 RME mdndsfovy reserve
deposis wath the PROC were barsd on 15% of gualied’ RME deponts (31 Decernber 2014 168%) For the remuning
Damenie Gperkiiong of the Sank, AME mandatery, resen'e depadfs were bited an 17%: of quallied AME deposts
(37 December 2014 20%) Forespn dumensgy mantllony feiene deporits were Based on 5% (31 December 2014
5%) of qualihed foreign anmency deposty from cusfomens. Mandatory refenve deponils placed by the Bank's Overseas
Operatiang wese deramened Bared on rerpeciive GvBrmesr reguiiiony seguirements  The fovedgn alimendy repsve deposts
pfaced with the FEOC are nonsnferes baanng

i Sapiul resane depapfs prmandy represent ceponity mantaned wath Hha BAOE in poifiton fo fhe mandioey mesend
dnposts and maindy for the puvpose of deasng

ey Qpher dagosrs with contrad banics pirmaniy rageesont fizcal depcats and fonsgn whanoe esanvg placed walh the FAOC
that we nob avadable for yse i the Groun's daly operations, them fadl doposts and' fonegn dnchange mesane am
rmon«nies? beading The fomwgn eschange resons i3 mantaingd with the PEOC a0 actordance with the related Note
wied by it FROC o0 31 Aogust 2015 The fedenoe i frabde o0 & monthly Digs-of 20% of the tolal Contradt amounl
of cestomecs ofmen forwaed fransachons in the prewods mondl  Such foreign avchangs risene wall be mpapabde m
12 manths Stooning to thé Mot

13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AMND OTHER FINAMCIAL INSTITUTIONS
As at 31 December

2015 2014

Deposits with:
Domestic anks 656,601 543,394
Other domestic financial institutions 2,748 204
Orverseas banks 18,581 37,340
Oross arnourt 697,930 572,805
Allowrance for impairment losses — collectively assessed {7} -
Deposits with Banks and other financial institutions, net 697,923 572,805

As at 31 Decernber 2015, the carrying amount of depasits with banks and other financial institutions
which have been pledged as security was RMB3, 240 million (31 Decomber 20014 RMET, 233 million).
Thiese deposits were mainly securnily deposits pledged with exchamges.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
Fae i i n R 201S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Placements with and koans to:
Domestic banks 129 4493 124,060
Crthaer domestic financial institutions T2 B0 267358
Owersess banks 51,743 17,400
Gross amatnt 515, 856 40EEB1B
Allowance for impairment losses — coflectively assessed {1,604) {1,756}
Placements with and leans to banks and
other financial institutions. net 504,252 407.062

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING

As at 31 Decembar

2015 2014

Debt securities issued by
Governments 4,464 1.545
Pubdic sector and quasi-governments 23,754 23,445
Firancial insttutions 26,793 1,112
Cofporates 10,039 12,708
Subtotal H5, 050 40,810
Frecious metal contracts 14,732 17,615
Total 75,782 58,425

Analyzed as;

Listed outskle Hong Kong {1y 65,060 40,632
Unilisted 14,732 17,193
“Total 79,782 58,425

(4] Dbt mecuretees fracieg’ on the China Domestic inder-hand Bong Market are inchwied o “Lisfed outsde Hong Kong®
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For thr yoar enckec 31 Do 015
LA micu ts i milions of Renmmby, unisss athenwase stated

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 FINAMNCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
As at 31 December

2015 2014
Dbt securilies sswed by
Governments 17,031 11,235
Fublic sector and quas-governments 55 05949 25,278
Financial institutions. 22,063 2,800
Corpod ales 12,040 6,681
Subtotal 106,233 46,093
Interests in trust products {n 201,583 248,794
Other debi instruments {3 47,114 Lo AT6
Ecquily mstrumants 3,940 1,472
“Total 359,479 356,235
Analyzed as:
Listed in Hong Kong 1,81 816
Listed outside Hong Kong 2 75,656 31,963
Unlisted 781,957 323456
Total 359,479 356,235
n 5 hedd By the G fy michade cincll ddisdd

n4 and dlebd securbes The ey e T L

2 Dabf tecimnfied iraded-on the Ching Domertic Inder-hank Bond' Mankst are anoludead’ in Tasted outns Hang Kang ™
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 DERIVATIVE FINAMCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group primarily enfers into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and preciows metal denivative
confracts related to Wading, asset and liability management, and customer initiated fransactions

Thie contractualnotional amounts and fair values of the dervative financial instruments entered into
by the Group are set out in the Tollowing lables. The contractuabnotional amounts of derivative
financial instiuments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of Instruments recognized
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do not necessanly indicate the amounts
ol future cash flows invobved or the current lalr values of the instruments and, therelore, do not
indicate the Group's exposure to credit of market fisks. The faif value of detivative instiuments
bocome favorable (assets) or unfavorable (Nabilitiesh as a result of fluctuations in market interes]
rates, foreign exchange rafes of preciows metal prices relative to their terms, The aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilitles can Huctuate segnificantly

Certaln financial assets and financial labilities of the Group are subject to enforceable master nelting
arrangements of sirnilar agresments. The agreement between the Group and the counterparty
generally allows Tor net settlement of the refevant financial assets and financial labilites when
both elect to setthe on a net bass. In the absence of such an election, financal assets and financial
labilities will be settled on a gross basis, However, each party 1o the master petting arrangements
of similai agiesments will have the option to setthe all such amodints on a net bask in the event af
default of the other party. As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December. 2014, the amount of the
financial assets and financial labilities subject to enlorceable master netting arrangements of sirmilar
agreements are not material to the Group. The Group did not elect to settle these financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis, The Group does not hobd any other financial instruments, other
than dervatives, that are subpect to master netting arrangements of similar agreements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

240 (1)

17 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
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31 December 2015

Contractual/
notional Falr value
amount Aszets Liabilities
Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps, and
Croms-currency intarest tale swaps 1,207 952 13,737 {11,102}
Currency oplions 22,704 134 {92)
Subtotal 13,871 (11,154
Interast rate dervatives
Interest rate swaps 158,118 920 {961)
Precious mestal contracts 32,0449 1,247 (37)
Total derivative financial assets and
liabilities 16,038 {12,192)
31 December 2014
Contractual/
notional Fair walue
amount Assets Liabilities
Exchange rale derivalives
Currency forwards and swaps, and
Cross-curmency interest tate swaps B/B 078 5. 16 6, 167)
Currency oplions 33,112 FF {749y
Subtatal LB18 (6, 246)
Interest rate derivalives
Interest rate swaps 166, 002 795 (5 36)
Precious metal contracts 12,732 L6 (58
Orthesrs 55 21
Total derivatives financial assets and
liabilities 7,195 {7.240)

oOoOooodn

Credit risk weighted amount for dervative transaction counterparties represents the counterparty
credit risk assoclated with derbative transactions and B caloulated In accordance with the
"Capital Rules for Commarcial Banks (Provisional}” issued by the CBRC which was eHective
1 lanuary 2013 and »odependent on, among other factors, credibvorthiness of cstomeds and
maturity characteristics of each type of contract. As at 31 Decemnber 2015 and 31 December 2014,
the credit risk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparty was measured under the

Internal Ratings — Based approach as disclosed im Mote IV 50 Capital Management.

o R

308/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 DERIVATIVE FINAMNCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Credil risk weighted amount for counterparty 149, 364 12.576

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Analyzed by collateral type:
[ebl securities 179,068 209,160
Bills 292,741 300,258
Total 471,809 508,418

The collateral recoived in conpmection wath financial assets undor resale agreement is disclosed in
HNote B 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral

19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Analysis af loans and advances 10 customers.,

Az at 31 Decambaer

2015 2014
Corporate loans and advances
Loans and advances 5,818,306 5,516,854
Discounted bills 356,905 180,279
Subtotal B, 175, 301 607,083
Parsonal loans and advances 2,734,617 2,404,984
Gross loans and advances 8905 918 8,098,067
Allewvance Tor impalrment losses
Incividually assessod {133,900} {73 00d)
Collectively assessed (269, 343) (284.977)
Tatal allcwance for impairment losses (403, 243) {358,071)
Loans and advances lo customers, net 2506675 FNET R
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s gthenaase stated!

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Analysis of leans and advances 1o customers by collective and individual assessments,

entified
imnpaired
Loans and  Identified imgaired loans and advances {2} gress loans
advances and advances
Tor vaich For which For which asa %ol
dlovasce b allwance 5 allowance 15 total gross
willectively  collectively  individually exans amd
assessed (1 s el Subtecrtal Tatal advanoes
31 December 2015
(aross boans and advanges REOT.061 1] TROA7E KPR 2209018 ]
Efcvance Tor mmpaimient bgses (247,204 (Rl 133,900 (155 S5 (803,283
Loans and advances to
CaIstomers, et 8449757 9580 A7,078 S ES66TS
11 December 2014
(Geoes boang and-advanoes 1573067 71,063 103,507 124570 £ (a8, 067 154
Alcwsance Lo Enpalment ke (270, 3563 (14,591 13,054 [T 685 {358.071)
Loans and advances to
cushomers, met 1702 bAT2 30813 S 7730895

in Eodns ang aoviances for Wil allcsvancs [ cafeciney artatied coniel of bant and sdvances wihech have not been
dnacically identified 31 Ampaired.

(21 Kentdfied impaired foeng and sovances inclutis foand for wiich olecive ewdence of impavment anits ang whch have

been wientified’as beanng tmparment dogmes, which are meaaimd afther inchicually fomovate loans and advances) or
codleviny {pevsanal Mand and svancei]
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Conlinued)

bdovernents of the alloweance for impairment losses on loans and advances (o custormers;

Year ended 31 December 2015

Individually  Collectively
assessed assessed
allowance allowance Total
1 January 2015 73,004 284,977 58071
Impainment alloweance on loans charged 103,532 459 622 153154
Reversal of impairment allowance (BA47) (62, B10) {71,257
Met additions 495,085 {13,188) 21,897
Wirite-offs and transter cut (33,921} {7, 408) 141,329
Recovery of loans and
advances written off in previous years 805 425 1,230
Unwrinding of discount on allwiance {1,302) (163) (1, 765)
Transter in — i 626 4,626
Exchange difference 139 374 513
31 December 2015 133,900 269,343 403,243
Year ended 31 December 2014
Individually  Collectively
assessed assessed
allowance allowance Total
I Januwary 2014 50,127 212,064 322,19
Impairment allowance on loans charged L8579 50,031 117610
Reversal of impairment allowance {9,597 6) (42.571) {52, 54 7)
Met additions 48,603 16,460 65,063
Write-olfs and transter oul {25,072 {3450} 129,222}
Recovery of loams and
advances wrilten off In previous years o921 220 1,141
Unwrinding of discount on allowance (BRE) (214 {1,002)
Exchange diffelence {97) {3 {10:0)
31 December 2014 73.094 284,977 358,071
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Debt securities ssued by

Govermments 333537 147,513

Public sector and quasi-governments 465,630 449,232

Financial institutions 176,548 138,698

Corporates 226 882 186,574

Subtatal 1,202,597 922,017
Fund imvestments {1} 6,586 3,358
Equily nstiuments (1} 2. 304 24,528
Total 1,214,542 027,903
Aralyzed as;
Dbl sacurities

Listed in Homg Kong 41,923 19,163

Listed autside Hong Kong {2 1,148,711 Bag A66

Unlisted 11,903 10,388
Equity instruments and. fund investrents and others

Listed in Homg Kong 356 79

Listed outside Hong Kong 7BET 4,307

Unlssted (3 1,862 1,500
Total 1.214,542 927,903

in The oup aadsbieforgale fund investments and cerfarn aquely. msfwments haw Bboon deciomeg in Mobe: IV 6
Structiareg Enfatnes

f Debd pecunfies traded on the Chvne Domenat infer-bank Sond Manted ang indludind i Tisted ol adhe Hong Kong ™

31 Asar ¥ Dedombey 2015, wicded sotiily insdiments of thé Gaoud sancoiled to RWEF TS milion wad mesdnied’ ot coil
Bocatese ey favr value cannod be defiably measuned (31 Detember 20 14 RE254 malvon),
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Dbt secumitios ssued Dy

Governimenis 852 367 548,330

Public sector and gquasi-governments 1,061,581 936,274

Fimancial institutions 202,729 Gl BIE

Corpotates 185,967 154,349
alans amouni FRETRICE T 1701 831
Alloveance tor impainment losses-collectively assessed {1,820) {B21)
‘Held-to-maturity investments, nel PRI 1,770,550
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kaong 6221 1,381

Listed outside Homg Kong (n 2,278,021 1,100,044

Unlisted 16,582 49,525
Total . i B

(4] Dafst syt traded’ on the Chwna Domestic Inder-hand Bong Warke? are inclmiad i “Leshed cuilsidle Hong Eang®

22 DEET INSTRUMENTS CLASSIFIED AS RECEIVAEBLES

As at 31 December

015 FOEED
“Fecenabke Trom the MOT i) FEFITE] 278,314
Special government bond {2} 93 300 43,300
Gevernment bornds 42841 —
Public sector and quasi-government bonds 34 78h 56,141
Firancial institution bonds 57,339 45,334
Corpotate honeds 32,514 5,020
Cartificate treasury bonds and savings treasury bonds 2,829 3,50
Others (3 18,733 11,621
Gross amolnt, wnbsted 559465 PRI

Allcavance tor impaltment losses

Individually assessed {1,470) {478}
Collectively assossed (S75) (725)
Tatal alloweance 1od impairmeent [osses 12,045 {1,204}
Debt instruments classified as receivables, net S57.420 B12,117

{1 Furisant o the “Nobice gn Relevand izbes Concerning the Deiposal of Mon-performng Assets of Agogultual fank of

Chine” (Capn [A008] No 138 issied by the MOF mcenvabie from the MOF & to be seftled annually ower a tendatie
penced af 15 vears daning from 1ianuary J008 and bears inberast at the rate of 3 3% perannum

e} Ipoci s government bond refan To the manstransforahle bond ioiuied by the MOF an TRS8 in the :ogregsts panspad
amopal af RMES3 7 bivon 16 the Frededesior Endity for capatal replanithnent. The: bond will madinee #2028 ang! bears
entenest af & foed rate of 2 25% par annwm, farfiog from | Dicember 2008

(3 Other gaby anstriments olassifed s recenvables are primany redahed fo mestment in Lnconsoidaed st gntiies
Fefl By e Group a3 gclosed in Mote iV 46 Sruciuned’ Enfined
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
(1} The tollowing are the princpal subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 Decomber 2015

Tt of Face ol Freomugeal  Paccentage ol

icrperationd  Incorporation’ Awthorizedl  equity interest  woting ights Principal
Hame of etity wibsblihment  evtablishment  paidin capital % %} Actites
Thna Apabu d e T Hiovercher T30, Rt Rone, e TSR, ERL oy T T, Rweitrest Tokdog
(o 1d
B Wemand 11 Moverber 2008 Hong Kong, PRE KDL 17.200.645 156100 N0 | Inemtrent holding
Pt [mated
BB Firaredid Leaing B Geptembr M50 Thangha, FRC FMER 000,000,000 k] 00 Fearedd baong
(a.1d
Agriadbws Rk of 19 Nowerrber 2041 Rondan, LS D0000,000 am 10005 Banding
China (1] limited Urized Klepdars
A Fnd EMach 208 Thanghd, PR RMEON 000,000 i) SUET  Fand maagement
Marugerreni o, (4.
g T ITAcpi 008 bmerMoogoln,  RMBISSIRO00 910 s Eing
Lisabed Lttty Coopury 8
MChbaHadum ] TRAcguidiE HbelFRC RNE3NO0NDN wm =T Sariing
Rural Bk Lisated
Liabity £ ey
KT, ol k. 5 Moy 2040 Mo, PRC EMEZZA00D e S FBanding
Lisaed Lidbdday Coompury
REC Ao Rl Rk MMach 030 Shaoed PRC  RMEO000000 Mm 5 Banding
Limaied Ludddy Compuny
K Dy Ymgharn Al Dhging PRC  RMET10,000.000 §1.00 5100 kg
Burd Bk Lisataed
Lty € egny
BAC Viatoen Tog'an MMy R RO RMEI00000000 B 5100 Sariing
Burd Bk imitesl
Liskiity Commpany
AOC e bumangz Co, (60 & 159 Bwcember 2005 g, PRC RO 050,550 06 .0 S Lbenurance
Agrcuitars Bk of Mloverber 04 Loemborg,  EUESOG00 i} 1000 Eaniing
{hina {Lsaembourg) Lenembioury
Limied
Agriculbaal Bk of 23 Dacomber 2008 Mocow, Burisia - RUBY 400,000,000 1.0 0 Hanlsg
Chirua (Mhcs o) Lirited
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES {Continued)
(1} The loliowing are the principal subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December 2015 (Continued);

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no changes in the propartion of equity
integest of voting rights the Bank held in its subsidiaries.
] Twee of the thres dirscrors on the board of ARC Hube Hanchuan Rurs! fand Lunied Liabdty Company wens

appoanied by the Fank The Fank concluded’ that o has effectve condrol over thes entity and’ has rooduded 1t in ids
ConFolca rman soope

ful On 31 Decambar 2012 the Bank siowied 515 of the msudd thatd capefal of Jiahe Life Passiance Lo, L and
renamed it s ABC Life Inurance Do, L, and the Group recogremed goodell of AMET 281 mition &g a rewult of
s soquiatran For the yoar ended’ 21 Decomber 2015 thete was no obyective owidience nofed fior any goodivl
Mnpament

{2} In addition, the Group also comsolidated structured entities, principally consist of Wealth
faragement Product {TWP) Vehicles sponsored and distributed by the Group whereby the
Group has guarantesd principal investments and special porpose trusts founded by third party
frust companies for assel backed securities ssued by the Group (Mote W 46 Structured Enfities),
The Group comntrols these entities because the Group is exposed 1o, or has rights Lo, variable
returns from its involvement with these entities and bas the ability to attect returmns through its
pover over these entities

24 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Carrying amount 273 —

On 28 May 2015, the Sino-Congolese Bank of Africa {La Bangue Sino-Congolaise pour 1"Afrigue,
herain referfed o as BSCA Bank), establiched by the Bank and other investors with authorized
capital denominated in Central African CRA franc ("XAF), was granted the required banking loense
by the kocal regulatory authority, The Bank holds 50% equity interest and voting rights in BSCA,
Bank, and has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy deckions of BSCA Bank,
but does not constitute control or joint contied over those podicy decisions
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Faat ther yaar eenchd 31 e 2015
(e mants in milicns of Renrmmibi, unksss athenasse statedr

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
25 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Flexirome
equipment, :
furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings fixtures vehides  in progress. Total

8 |
1 Januany 2015 142,785 55,048 4514 23,885 227,542
Additiord 2,685 T.863 2 2008 1B 55
Tramsfers 10,210 o4 - V05T -_
Ditgjpecale (407) 1828 {236) {4BE) 12.957)
37 Dexember g0l ToeaEd PRI LT FLEEE] LRI
Aoommilaled depreciaton
1 Jatary 2015 (38,733 {30,788 =753 - (12274
Charge for the year {8.129) 18,285) (328 — {16.743)
Eliminated on disposals 244 1,795 224 — 1.263
31 Dacembar J015 (LI ET [N I 14 B5E] - (e ]
AIREENROE 1o IMPEIment odsis
1 January 2015 [Zas) {4 ) # (31E]
Impanment |oss _ e = e ou)
Eliminaled ¢n disposals - - — - —
T December 2015 #32)) ] [Fi] i ETE)
Camnng value
31 December 215 108,367 25,260 17246 20,825 156,178
T Tannay 2015 [ERL FirL) Il FEE L TS0
Ll
1 lanuary 2014 124,254 55,314 4,745 28681 213.03%
Addition 1526 .03 B0 13,263 23086
Tranghars 17,569 49t {18,060 .
Disposals [S54) (74600 {536 - 1B, 5a0)
41 December JUT4 14, 155 46,048 &84 £ 3,885 230548
Accumulated depraciahon
| Rivuary 2014 {31,529 (27 400) (2.947) - {51.876)

aqe for the year 5 (2.723) 1318) - {16.5615]
Ebrninated on disposals B335 512 - 6217
A1 Deespbid S04 ELREED 120, 1 d) 0530 - {12214
Alovwancs [OF Imparmenl 10
1 lanay 2014 [ZRE) (1) ) (1 (301)
Imparrrent loss (20 - - " 127)
Ehrninated on deposals i 1 - - 10
31 December 1074 [ [] ] £ [ERE]
Carmyneg vals
I December 2014 103,763 25,251 2058 131877 154,550
1 Ianuaty 2014 Ay 20304 1,797 FETH 150,555

According to the elevant laws and requlations, subsequent to the Bank's transtormation into a
joint stock company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Entity are to
be transferrad 1o the Bank. As al 31 December 2015, the registration transler process of ceflain
propertios has not been completed, Management belioves that the incomplele registration transfor
process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor o those assets
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26 DEFERRED TAMATION

Fou the purpose of presentation in the consolidated staternent of financial positeon, certain deferred
tax assets and labilities have boen offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current
tax assets against cumrent tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate 1o the same fiscal
authority, The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Dieferred tax assels 81,548 78,640
Dalerred tax labilities {111} {43
Hat 81,437 78,597

{1y The followang are the movements and major deferred tax assets and labilities recognized:

Fair value
Allowance  Acorued changes of
for buit nat Early finandal
impaimment  paid staff  retirement instruments,
losses st benefits  Provision il Chers Tatal
T lanuary 20715 T ] FIFEL] ER i ] M BT
Credilfcharge) 1o
ted
St rmaen] 9671 143 (£l w5 11358 42 6,280
Change 4o otivar
compretenitg
Intame - - — - 6.44%) - (6,449
31 December 2015 185 &M 81 ARl (B 5 BIA3
Fair value
Allowance  Accrued changes of
fos buit nat Early finandal
impaimment  paid stalf  retirement nstruments,
losses cost  benefits  Provision net Ohers Total
1 lanuary 2014 55137 R PR 1,181 BT {16} 74067
Creditfcharge) o
the consoldated
O 5Lk menl 1031 e (354} i (283 A0 13,152
Cradil 10 ogher
Compiehardin
incame = - — - (8522 = (8527
1 December 2014 A1.514 [FIT] 2,135 1478 (300} M 8,507
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far e viaar ehclisd 31 Do

{amaants i milions of Ranrmunbi, unbsss athessise stated

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

{2} Delerred income lax asselsiliabdlites) and related lemporary differences, belore offselling
qualifying amounts, are attributable 1o the following items:

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Deductiblar Deductible/
(taxable)  Deferred  (taxable) Deferred
temporary tax assets/ temporary tax assets/
differance  ({liabilities) difference  (liabilitias)

Deferrad tax assets

Allervance for impairment losses 08, 741 11,185 210124 67,514
Fair valus changes of financial

instriments 15,703 3,526 104044 2601
Accrued but not paid stafl cost 25,765 B, A4 24,997 6,248
Early retirement benefits 1,784 1,931 8,938 2,235
Prowision 17,682 4,421 13,5902 3476
Othets 392 97 228 57
Subtotal 376,007 9,001 328,588 2131

Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of

financial instrumsents {50, 130) {12,533) {14, 006) (3,501)
Nhers {125) (31} {140} {33)
Sublotal {50,255) {12,564) {14,146) {3,534)
MNet 325,752 81,437 314,442 78,597
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

R i v

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
27 OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Interest receivable 104, 775 097.948
Land wse mights n 23,035 23524
Accounts receivable and temporary payments {2) 44,576 16, 108
Premiums receivable and reinsurance assets 27,001 13,532
Long-term deferred axpenses 3,587 1,649
Investment property 2907 2,846
Intangible assets 2,740 2.593
Foreclosed assets 1,694 427
Others 4,897 2,535
Total 215303 163,822

{1) Land use rights

According 1o the rebevant laves and regulations, subsequent to the Bank’s transfosmation inlo
a joint stock company, land wse rights previously held by the Predecessor Enfity are 1o be
tramsforred to the Bank. As at 31 December 2015, the registration Wansfer process of cortain
land wse rights has not been compleled. Management believes that the incomplete registration
tramsler process does nol affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor to those Lardd use
rights.

{2} Accounts receivable and temporary payments primarily include items in the process of dearing
aml settlement.

28 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANEK

As at 31 December 2015, bomovdangs from central bank mainly inchode Medium-term  Lending
Faalitios Trom PROC amounting to RMBESE 00 million 31 December 2004: RMBBO, 000 million).

Annual Report 2015 251

319/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For thr year ehchic 31 D 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
As at 31 December

2015 2014

Deposits from:
Domestic banks 116519 148,043
Other domestic financial institutions 1,091,258 666,905
Ovierseas hanks 4,514 13,045
Other overseas financial institutions 4,610 3,148
Total 1,221,901 831141

30 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINAMNCIAL INSTITUTIONS
As at 31 December

2015 2014

Flacements from
Domestic banks and other financial instifutions 145,255 [P
Owerseas banks and other inancial institutions 170, 504 162,386
“Total 315,759 224,923

31 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
The financial labilities hebd for trading are labilitles related to precious melal contracts,

32 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
As at 31 December
2015 2014
Principal guarantesd wealth management products 406407 347,282

Thie Group  desknates wealth management products with principal guaranteed by the Group
a5 financial liabiliies at faic valiee theough profit o koss, The comesponding  investments  are
designated as finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss, As at 31 December 2015 and
31 Descammber 2014, the difference betweon the fair value of these picducts ssued by the Group amd
the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon maturity was not material,

Far the current and prior year, there were no signilicant changes in the fair value of the Group's

financial liabilities designated at 13 value through profit or loss attributable (o the changes in the
Group’s oven credit risk

252 @)ﬂruatlﬁ
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
Faf thi ysar anded 31 015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33 FINAMNCIAL ASSETS SOLD UMDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
As at 31 December

2015 2014
Analyzed by lype of collateral:
Dabt socuritios HE 333 131,021
Bifls 41
“Total 8,804 131,021

The collateral pledged wnder repurchase agreement s disclosed in Nete IV 47 Contingent Liabilities
and Commitments — Collateral,

34 DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Demand deposits
Copotate customers 3,239 703 3012537
Inedividual customers 1,808 806 3,546,541

Tiime deposits

Corporate customers 1,662,658 1,485,274
Indiviclual customers A4,1 74,684 3. B82, 102
Medged depasits (ny 314,757 250437
Cthers 252,152 307,516
“Total 13,538,360 12,533,397

{1) Analyzed by activity to which pledged deposits are related to:
As at 31 December

2015 2014
Bank acceptance 113,421 118,330
Trade finance 17,903 50,423
Guarantes and letters of guarantee 06,053 63,630
Letters of credit 16, /39 21,567
Otheis A5, 601 45,487
Total 318,757 299,437
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Bonds issued {1} 162476 191,094

Cortificates of deposil issued () 165 508 113,388

Commercial papers issued (3 11,586 11,800

Interbank cenificates of deposit issued {4} L1712 71,985
“Total 382,742 325,167

Asal 31 December 2015 and 31 Decemmber 2074, there was i default redated to any dabil securities
Bssued.

(1) The carrying value of the Group’'s bonds issued are as follows:

As at 31 December

2015 2014

4.15% RMB fixed rate Green Bonds

matisring in October 2017 (i} GO0
2.125% USD fixed rate Green Bonds

maturing in October 2018 il 2557 -
4.0% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in May 2024 i} 25,000 25,000
5.8% Tier-two capital lixed rate bonds

rmatiring in August 2024 () 0. 000 30,000
2759 USD figed rate Green Boncds

maturing in Cctober 2020 ) 3,247 =
5.3% suboadinated fixed rate bomds

maturing in fune 2026 v 50,000 50,000
A 499%, subordinated fixed rate bhonds

matwring in December 2027 {wiik 503, D0 50,000
3.2 % led rate RME bonds

matisring in November 2015 (i _ 1,000
hedium term notes Bsued (i} 37164 36,125
Tatal nowminal value 198,608 192,125
Less: Uinameod tized ssuance cost and discounts (132} {131)
Carrying value 198,476 191,994

254 @*I*!Iﬁ
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far thie year inied 31 Decamber 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1) The carrying value of the Group's bonds issued are as follows (Continued):

Pursuant 1o the approval by relevant requlatory authorities, the bonds ssued by the Group are
sal ol as below:

it} The RME grean bonds issuved in London m October 2015 have & tenor aff 2 vears with & fied toupon’ rame
i 18%, payable seri-annuadly

) The U5 green bands issued wr London wn OCtober X015 huwe a fenoe of 2 years wath a fisd coupon rete
& T25%, payabla semi-anmually

fip mmmwwumm;ﬁyﬁmwmm:wdISmP;.mrhaﬁ-qrtwrlmnl"
4 0%, payable annualy The Bank has an oplion fo edeem alf of the Bonds af face valie on X0 May 2013
i the Bank did nat aeertise thd colan, the coupon rafe of ihe Bandt wall acrease fo 7.0% pev sanum from
20 May 2018 amvards

. The Ter-nve capdfal bonds isared m dugesr 2004 have a renar of 10 pears with & feed coupon eafe af
58% pavable apnuilly The Bank ha: sn option o redesm pat of o of the bandt af fiee walie on
17 August: 2009 i spectfied redempbon conaltions o mipalared m the offering documents were mel sobpecr
o recalefony approval i the Bant ohd ot ecercee thi oplon, the coupon rate of the Bandt wolld remain sf
5.8% per annum from 18 August 2019 onwaeds Thess Tier-wia capitad bomnds Fave the wiite-down. featne
of @ Trer-hwo caprtal inetrvment, which afows the Bank fo_ wite gdown the enfine. prnoal of the bondy when
reguiatory Bgoenng events & ypulshed i the afferng documents coour and any accumivaied unpand snfenedt
wedld becorme nof payable, andl they e qualiied & Trev-iwo Caprtal dnstruments i acoovclance wath ithe CHRC
FEQUBTRALS

ful The LD grean bond rsued n Londan an Octaber 20 15 bave b tanar of § vears, welh & e coupon rate 2 75%,
Dayabie smi-annraly’

fil  The subordinaled fived rate bonds isseed an dume 2071 Rive 3 tenor of 15 vears with 2 fired cotpon fafe of
5.3%, perilde anavally: The Bank hic an option to rededm o of the boods of face value on 7 Jooe 2021 IF
the Bank ohd ot emercie this opfion, the colpdn mte of the bonds woldd remain af £ 7% per snnum fom
7 iune 33T onwards

] The sebcrdinatid fved rabe bondt rared 10 Decambar 2012 have & fenod of 15 peavs, weth a fixed colypon fate of
o 9o, payable annuady. The Bank has an option o nedeem o of the Bonds af face value on 20 Decermber 20122
I the Bank ohd nol exercie ihis aphon, the coupon rafe of the bongs wonld romain af 4 36% per annum from
A0 Decémber 2027 snwarnds

fva]  The RAE bonds tiived i Mong Kong in November 3072 heve 4 fence of = paars, wwith & fed coupon rihe
3 2%, pavable eme-annually. These bongs martured in 2005
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Fat

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 DEEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)

{1) The carrying value of the Group’'s bonds issued are as follows (Continued):

m Ferm petes [TMINTD wene ifned by e Overagy Cpeanons of the Group and Jre meaiursa s
amortized oot The getads of meaym farm nodes amed were a2 folows

[l

Ad @t 31 Decomber 2015
{%) badance
Fomd rale LSO MTH: laniiang 201610
My 2030 052875 27055
Fooed rate ARAE NETRLE Moy 2016 1
August 2019 323380, B.0a1
Floatang radg LSO BTN Soplember 2016 10 Fegmcnidhy S0 LIBOH
May 2018 plus 043 to 1 33 2,500
Fioosdd rate ELIR MATH: Masch 2016 80
March 2017 O 3-0088 aa
Fizd rate HED MTHe Mharch 2016 1o
Jsna 2016 10=1.15 412
Foed rate PV MTN March 206 Bz 108
Dero ooupon REEE MATH Febaary 3016 — SO0
Tetal 37,764

Maturity dates Coupon rates Outtstanding
ranging from {%) balwes

Fooed rate USE MTHY lanuary 2015 to
Cecember 2014 0.21-2 875 124

Foumdl rate RS MTRE Fabryany 2015 (o
D19 2/ M3 20 11,683

Fooad rate CHF BATME haly 2015 10
HAugust 2015 0g5=1 00 1,743

Floatmg rate LSD kA THs Aprd 2015 o Fumicnih USD LIBOR

Mlanch 2017 phus O B to 135 1826

Fowd rate ELIR AETNE Al 2015 b
Ceplember 2015 0 e=1 12 ERs

Foed rate HED MTH4 My 2015 b
fugusl 2015 B 351 &0 ]

Foosd ratie Y MATH Mgt 2015 to
Nowemiber 2015 (3 S0=-0, T 431
Lo doupan ELR BTH Wfusiry 2015 — 73
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Confinued)

{2) As at 31 December 2015, the certificates of deposit were issued by the Overseas Operations
of the Group and were measured at amorfized cost. The terms of the certificates of deposit
range from seven days to seven years, with interest rates ranging from 0% to 4.5%. As al
31 December 2014, the terms range from mine days (o seven years with interest rates ranging
from 0% 1o 4,209,

{3) As at 31 December 2015, the commercial papers weere issued by the Overseas Operations
of the Group and were measured al amortized cost, The terms of the commercial papers
range from seven days 1o one year, with interest tates ranging fiom 0% 1o 1.05 % As at
1 December 2014, the terms range from seven days to one year, with interest rates ranging
from 0.19% 10 0.93%.

{@#) A= at 31 December 2015, the interbank certificatos af deposit were issued by the Bank's Head
Office and Shanghas Branch in the free trade area. The terms of the interbank certificates of
depasit range from three months to two years, with interest rales ranging from 09 to 3,32 %,
As st 31 December 2004, the terms ranging from three months (o one year with interest ratoes
ranging from % to 4. 765

36 OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Interest payable 225 383 192,876
Insurance labilities 64 589 42,185
Clearing and settlement 60,419 46,433
Staff costs payable iy 34,890 40,511
Income taxes payable 38,007 41,338
Prowiskon 17,682 13,902
Amount payvable to the MOF {2) 7,330 3,275
Business and other taxes payable 1117 1.535
Dormant accounts 1,576 1.616
Othars 52.514 45,712
“Total 518,597 435,987
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)

(1) Staff costs payable (Continuod)

As at 31 Decamber

2015 2014
Shoat-lerm employes bonalits {iy 31,71 30,952
Drefined contribution benatits i} 445 61
Early retirement benefits (i} 124 2038
Total 38,890 40,511
{0 Short-term employes benefits
2015
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Sealanet. baoniees, SCRWaTCE
and subsidies (a) 24,228 67513 BT 968y 13,713
Hongireg Tnds [} 183 2851 (&855) 172
Socil insurance nduding {a} 178 4,955 (5,000} 124
— Madical ilsurance 54 317 {4.364) a7
— Employrment injuny
insLrance 12 187 (281} E
— Matarity insurance 12 357 [355) ]
Labior union fees and skaff
educalion sxpenses 218 3026 (&228 3,581
Ohars 3,150 §.458 (8,373 3,665
Total 30,852 93,504 193,035) .
1014
1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December
Salaris, bomses, allowance
and subsidies {a} 24573 &6, T80 [B7,525) M e
Hosirg lunds {a} 245 8,186 {8,248 183
Social ingisance noluding [a} 12l hakd [4,457) 17g
— Mhadical irsurancs 14% 3,843 (3.843) 154
— Emipioymend mjury
insUrancs 16 278 282} 12
— Malémily mswrance 16 18 (330 12
Labor umion fees and stafl
aducaton experss 2,176 zan (2,520 3,183
Oibers B, 350 12,825 16,034 3080
Total 3514 95,12 (98,784) 30,952
[al Sadana, bonumes afowancg and’ submckes, housing funds and o0 inmirance ane frmely . gsfnbuted ad

Do i scocvdancs with the relevand L and redulstions and the Grotie’s palisy
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(Armaunts i millians of B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (€ ontinued)
36 OTHER LIABILITIES {Continued)
{1) Staff costs payable (Conlinued)

fi}  Dofined contribution benofits

2015
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Basic pensions 541 11,150 (11,295) 356
Unemployment irsurance [ Fira | (T43) 44
Aniuity Scheme 14 3,280 {3,289) 5
Total 621 15,151 (15,327} 445
014
1 January Accrued Paid 31 December
Basic pemsions [ 10,695 {10,783) 541
Linemployment insurance 65 204 (203) b6
Annily Schafmse 9 3137 (3,132} 14
Total 703 14,636 (14,718) 621

The defined contribution benefits are timaly distributed and paid in accordance with the
rebevant laves and regulations and the Group's policy

fi) Earfy retirernent benefits

2015

1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 Decembaer

Early retirement benefits 84938 1,394 {2 6OE) 7.124
014

1 lanuary Accrued Paid 31 December

Early retirement benafits 10,356 1,611 {3,029) 8,938
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuead)
36 OTHER LIABILITIES (Confinued)
{1) Staff costs payable (Continued)

(i) Early retirernont benefits (Continued)

The principal assumptions wed foi the puipose of the actuanial valuations wefe as

follovys:
As at 31 December

2015 2014
Discount rate 2.57% 341 %
Annual average medical expense growth ate 500 % B8.00%
Annual subsidies groweth rate & .06 % 8.00%

Mewmal retirement age
— hdaks 1] e
— Female 55 55

Assumplions regarding future mortality expenience are based on the China Lile Insurance
Meortality Table (year 2000-2003) (published historical statistics in China).

Any difference arising from the actual esult or changes In assumplions may affect the
amount of expense recognized in the consolidated income statement,

{2) Amount payable to the MOF

Pursuant to the “Motice on Relevant Bsues Concerning the Disposal of Non-performing
Assets of Agricultural Bank of China® {Caijin [20:08] No. 138) issued by the MOF, the MOF
commissioned the Bank 10 manage and dispose of non-perlorming assels transferred,  The
amount payable o the MOF represents proceeds collected by the Bank from the disposal of
these non-performing assets on behall of the MOF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuedy

37 ORDINARY SHARES
Foi the current and prior year, there was no change in the Bank's ordinary share capital,

Az at 31 Decomber 2015

and 2014
Number
of shares Noeminal
(millions) value
Registered, isswed and fully paid:
A shares of RMBT each 204,055 204,055
H shares of RMET oach 30,739 0,730
Taotal 324,794 324,794

A share pefers (o the ordinary shares Bsted in the Maintand China, They are offered and raded in
FrB. H share reters to the cadinary shares listed in Hong Komg, Their par value s denominated in
RMB when they were initially offered and are currently traded in HKI.

As at 31 December 2015, all of the Bank™s A Shares and H Shares were not subject to lock-up

restriction {31 December 20140 9,892 million A Shares and none of the H Shares were subject 10
lock-up festiiction).

38 PREFERENCE SHARES

lssued bssued
numbar  nesminal
Financial instraments in bsued price  of shares valwe  Maturity
s Dividend rate (RMB ywan]  (millions}  (millions) date Conversions
Prefence shares B% per annum Tor (he first
— fed tanche [ ity 61eT Gsuance, N comeetiios
and re-priced every e yean Mo el iy deiing
i Wated below 1 50 000 e the et
Pl meaece nhares 5.5% pet-anndirmlo the fird
second trsche [ e afler mouance, he coneenon
and 1e-priced eveTy fiwe years Mo meat ity dreg
i At below 1] 4 S0000 ifale fhe yeat

The Bank was authorized to issue 200 million preterence shares of RMBI100 sach, pursuant to the
approval by its ordinary shareholders and televant requlatory authorities.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38 PREFEREMNCE SHARES (Continued)

The first tranche of 400 million prelerence shares wete ssued at par in Novernber 2014, The cairying
amount, net of diect Bsuance expenses, was RME 39,944 million as at 31 December 2015, The first
tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 6% per annum, dividends are non-cumulative
and where payable, &5 paid annially, for the first five years from issiance. The dividend rate will be
repriced every five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC treasary bonds yield plus a
fiweel prermium of 2 29%.

The second wanche of 400 million preference shares were lssused at par in March 2015, The
cafiying amount, net of difect ssuance expenses, wwas RMBIS OS5 million & ot 31 Decembaer
2015, The second tranche preference shares bear a dwidend rate of 5.5% per annum, dividends
ate non-cumulative and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from isuance. The
divicend rate will be re-priced every five years thereatter with reference to the five-year PRC treasuny
londs yield plus a fived premium of 2. 34%.

There were na changes in the carrying amounts ol the pref:-lem:ﬁ- shares since issuance,

As authonized by the shareholders’ annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the. sole
discration to declare and distribute dividends on preterence shares, The Bank shall not distribute any
dividends to 5 ordinary shateholdods before it declares such dividends 1o pieference sharsholders
for the relevant poriod. The distribution of preference shares dividend is at the Bank's discretion
and is non-cumulative, Freference shareholders are not entitbed 1o participate in the distribution of
retained profits except for the dividends stated above.

Thie Bank has sedemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering documents
are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to require
the Bank toredecm the preference shares.

Upon hgquedation, the claims of preference shareholdess have pricrity over ordinary shareholders
o the fewdial asets of the Bank, bil are subordinated 1o those of depositors, general eraditons,
Ther-Tweo Capital Instruments hotders or any other subordinated debt holders with equivalent rights.

Upon ocourrence of the iggering events as stipulated in paragraph 2(3) of the Guidance of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks® Innovation on Capital Instruments
(CBRC Mo, 56 [2012]) and subject to regulatory approvad, preference shares shall be mandatoriy
canverted info ardinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price of RMB2 43 yuan per share,
partially or entirely, The conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted where certain
events ocour including bonus issues, rights: ssue, capitahzation of feserves and new Bssuances of
ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulas provided for in the offering documents, to maintain
The relative interests belween prefarence sharehalders and ardinary shareholders.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38

39

40

PREFERENCE SHARES (Continued)

of T Y@ denciind 31 Dol
of Renminki, unless othar

These preference shares are classified as equity instruments, and presented as equily in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and; are qualified as Additional Tier-one Capital
Instraments in accordance with the CBRC requisements,

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital resemve fepiesents the premium felatod to ordinary shares Baged by the Bank in 20140,
Share premium: was: recorded in the capital reserve atter deducting direct ssue expenses, which
consisted primarnly of undesaiting fees and professional Tees

INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE
2015
Gross amount Tax effect Met affect
1 Januwary 2015 4,176 {1,058) 3118
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
financial Fssels
— Ameint of gamsAlosses) recognized
directly in other comprehensive income 26,218 {6,542) 19,676
— Amount removed from other
comprahensive income and
recognized in profit o loss {487) 122 {365)
31 December 2015 29,907 (7.478) 22,429
2014
Gross amount Tax effect Het effect
I lanuary 2014 (30,13 7.541 (22,772}
Fair value chamges on available-for-sake
financial assols
— Amaunt of gainsfilosses) recognized
directly in ather comprehensive incoms 34,722 {8,65T) 26,065
— Amount removed from other
comprehensive income and
recognized in profit o loss {233 L& {175}
31 December 2014 4,176 {1,058} 3,118
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

41 SURPLUS RESERVE

Umnier PRC Law, the Bank i required to transter 10% of its net profit determined under the PRC
GAAP 1o a non-distributable statutory swiplus reserve. Appropriation to the  statulory surplus
teserve may cease whon the balance of this resemve has reached 50% of share capital. Pursuant
1o the resclution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 31 March 2016, an appropriation
of 10% of the profit Tor the cumrent year, determined under the generally accepted accounting
prnciples af the PRC, 10 the statutory surplus reserve, in the amount of RMB12,072 million (2014:
RMBY 7,89 million) was approved. I sddition, certain subsidianies and oveisess branches ako
appropriate surplus reserves m accondance with local regquarements

Subject to the approval of the equity holders, the statutory surplus. reserves can be wsed for
ieplenishing accumulated losses or increasing the Bank®s ardinary share capital, The statutory surphus
reserves amount wed to increase the ordinary share capital is imited to a kevel where the balance
ol the statulesy surplus resendes alter such capitalization B nol kess than 25% of the oadinaiy share
capital,

42 GEMNERAL RESERVE

Pursuant fo Caijin [2012] No. 20 "Requirements on kmpairment Allowiance for Financial Institutions™
{the “Requirement ") issued by the MOF, effective 1 July 20132, in addition to impairment allowance,
the Bank establishes 4 general reserve within equity holders” equity through the appropriation of
profit 1o address unidentified potential impaitment risks. The general reserve should not be less than
1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by the Requirement. The general reseme
includes requlatory reserve appropriated by the Bank's overseas branches ("Owerseas Institutions”)
pursisant 1o bocal regulatony requirements

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulatory requirernents, some domestic subsicdiaries of the Bank are
required o appropriate certain-amaounts of their net profit as general resenaes,

During the year emded 31 Doecember 2015, the Group transferted RMBIE 299 million
(2014; RMBTY,503 million) to the General Reserve pursuant (o the requlatory reguirements in the
FRC and overseas jurisdictions. ©Of this amount, RME1E 721 million (2014: RMB17F, 230 million)
related 1o the appropriation proposad lor the vear ended 31 December 2004 which was approved in
the annwal general mesting held on 29 June 2015

43 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the puipose of the consolidated statement of cash Hows, cashand cash equivalents inchude the
Tollewsing balances with an coiginal maturity of thise moenths o lass:

Az at 31 Decamber

FLgH
Cash 116, 350 111,596
Balance with central banks 90,035 76,525
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 128,173 68,355
Placemments with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 234130 197,151
Fimancial assets held under resale agreements 253,232 284748
Total 621,969 T38.287
264 (D wERERE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Cperating segments ate identified on the bass of internal management reports with respect 1o
the components of the Group that are regularly revieveed by the Board and relevant management
committess, which constitute the chiel operating decision makers, for the purposes of allocating
resouirces oo segments and assessing thew peflosmance. The Group's chief operating decision makers
reviews three different sets of finandial mtormation based on () geographical locations, (i) business
activities and (i) County Area and Urban Area banking busimess.

The measurement of segment assets and labilites, as well as segment revenue, expense and results
is based on the Group*s accounting policies, There is no difference betwisen the sccounting paollcies
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements ‘and those used in peparing the
opetating segment information.

Tramsactions between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions,
Internal charges and transter pricing are determined vath reference to market rates and have been
reflected in the performance of each segment.

Segrment revene, results, assets and liabilites include items directly attnbutable to a segment as
wizll as those that can be allocated on a ressonable basis,

Geographical operating segments
The details of the geographical operating segrments are as follows:

Head (Mfice

Yangtze Rivel Delta: Shanghal, Handgsu, Zhejiang, Mingbo

Pearl Rivar Delta: Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujian, Xiarmen

Bohai Rim: Bedjing, Tianjin, Hebed, Shandong, Cingdao

Central China: Shanxi, Hubed, Henan, Hunan, langei, Hainan, Anhul

Western China: Chongging, Sichuan, Guizhouw, Yunnan, Shaansi, Gansu, Cinghai,
Miregeia, Xingiang {including Xinjiang Bingtuan), Tibet, Inner Mongolia,
Cusanegxi

Mortheastern China: Lizoning, Heilondgjiang, lilin, Dalian

Owerseas and Others: Subsicharies and overseas branches
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conlinued)
Geographical operating segments {Continued)
For the year ended 321 December 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conbinued)
Geographical operating segments (Continued)

For the yoar ended 31 Decembaor 20014
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conlinued)

Business operating segments
The details of the business operating segments are as foblows:

Cewparate banking

The comporate banking segment provides financial products and services to corporations,
government agencies and financial Institutbons. The range of producis and sendces includes
codporate loans and advances, Irade finance, deposit products, corporate vaealth managaement
sanvices and other types of corporate intermediany services.

Persanal hanking

Thee parsonal banking segment provides financial products and semvices 1o individual custonmerns.
The range of products and services inchudes personal loans, deposit products, card business,
personal wealth management services and other types of personal intermediary senvices,

Treasury operations

The Group's treasury opedations conduct money market and repurchase Wansactions, debt
mstruments investments, precious melal tansactions and dervative transactions Tor its own
accounts of an behall of custormaers.

Others

Others comprise components of the Group thal are not attributable to any of the above
sagments, along with certain assets, liabilities, income of expenses of the Head Odfice that
could not be allocated on a reasonable basis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conbinued)
Business operating segments (Continuad)

For the yoar ended 321 December 2015

banking banking sperations. Others tatal
Extermal inferest moome 345 680 145,375 6,130 4008 T5, 143
Extioirail infafert expona {98,542 {168.061) {21541} {14058 [289653)
Intér-seqment inlerist farpere)

Boame (18,707) 176040 (156,333} = =
et intessst mooene FETELT] 153,354 48555 259 436,140
Fee and comenesion ncome 43,764 45 539 - 1,301 090 494
Fise 2 Cormersiion srpends 12,352} {5,528} - [65) (7,945
M. fee and comipessaa income A1.412 40,00 - 1136 B2545
Ml tradinn gainfis) - - 3600 (4 3562
Met gain on Enancial instenents

designated al b valiss

{hoegh profit o¢ ks [ 1318 Fot < 44 1,727
Mt gain on investment securities - - 103 154 57
Daher cpetating income 28] 2.0 285 8538 16027
Cpailing inoome 215 396 e oLl 5575 13,031 LTI
Dpeating expess {92,567 196, 434) (25010} {18,502 (25818
Impairnent lrsses on assels 1755000 {1524} 11,70 18,0404 184,172
Dparating pioi 103,029 ]S 79,038 49 BOETL
Share of Tesuls of associates = - - (15} {15)
Profit befare 1ax ([ 02316 FEEES 474 FETH]
Incoime L expanss {50,083)
Prafit Bor ke eat 180,774
Dupeociation and amaizaton

inclded in operating expenses 3.785 11,460 4,281 a7 19533
Capstal sxpendiura 3850 11,658 4467 153 21433
At 31 December 2075
Seqment a5l £,086,284 3,181,175 8,300,505 141,550 17,708,545
Inckading. iewestment in

asndile - = = 73 213
Unaliocated assets B1548
Total asseds 17,791,353
Segmant fabikties [, 155,584) (51,242,535} [1024,02a) (122,779} {H.541300)
Unaliocated ialalies (38,100
Tots! Babliies {16,579 508)
Credi commiiments 1, 148227 335,481 = - 1,883,714
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conlinued)
Business operating segments (Conlinuad)

For the year ended 321 December 2014

Cosporate Pessonal Treasury Consolidated
banking banking operations Othars total
Extemal inenest incoms 351,644 138,133 FEH ERLT] 699,739
Entamal irlenest expenta {93,551 152,025} 21,508 {1,568) {265, 354)
Intes-ségment interest [Empensalf
inCome (12.185) 166,724 (144430 = =
Mt inbefest inome 235, 462 152,832 30368 2459 425,891
Fe and commsasn Nooms 45921 43857 i} 1 2 BT 483
Pt il comasisien sapessh A7) [5,240) 2 (L] (7,760
Mt fie and comanission incofms 43443 EIT 7 T2 FTRFE]
Net lrading gain - - 1818 a 1508
Mot qainfkoss) oo financial
inslsumenls desiqnated ab faa
vale theowsgh puodt o boss - = 1524 (19 1,565
et {lessigam o imsestment
segilies - - (8 ELE] 335
Orlber operaling income 1,756 14247 2863 4,178 10,364
Diperating income 280,701 183,875 45,580 1,863 h24 106
Dipetating expenses | 100, 065) {7,354} (20,085 353 [723,852)
Irnpirment losses on gty (56,2 15) (3,451} (18504 [415) B7.871)
Profit before 1ax 134,821 3031 23,750 1,055 238,857
Inciome i eapanss {52,747)
Prafit B e fiar 179,550
Depreciation and amorlization
inclgded in oparating expenses 4139 R rE] 3285 il 19328
Capital expendiure 5,555 15,065 5214 26 15,860
At 21 December 2014
St ety 5571140 2805913 7,358 7ok 108631 15805512
Unaliocited asety 18640
Total #sets 15974157
Seqment babilties (S521.221) [8.214,897) (68, 3500 (A5 BE5 14,900,152}
Unallodated Rabifies {41,381)
Total labaliiees (14,341,533
Ceadil commilments 1252331 330,354 - - 1,582,780
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments organized by County Area and Urban Area banking business are set
ot 3% folloness:

County Area banking business

The Group’s Countly Area banking business provides a broad range of financial products
and services Lo customers in designated County Area, through its operating branches in the
courties of county-level cities throughout the FRC, The products and services mainly comprise
loans, deposits, bank cards, and other types of intermediary services:

Urbran Area banking business

The Growp’s Liiban Amea banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the
County Area banking business, overseas branches and subsidiaries.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuead)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conlinued)
County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

County Area Wrban Area
banking banking Consolidated
business business Eliminations total
External inberest ingome 165,863 CE8.930 - TI5793
External interest expanie (100.263) {188, 350) — (288,653)
Inter-segment interest noome’

{expanie) 104,332 101,330 — —
Helinteres! income 167,932 268,208 - 436,140
P and codramizinon income 31,188 58,205 - S0a5d
Fiee and comemesiion mgonae {3,008 {4,847} - {7,945
it fee and correnisseon income 28,151 t4 358 — H22.540
Het tracling gain 210 $A57 - 3562
Het gin an financial

Insibramenls designated at tair

vahue through profit or loss B3 1,664 — 1187
Wt 'gan on irwestroent

PRI - 857 - R5T
Cither: oparating Inoome &5 11,544 — 16027
Opralieg inoome 200,879 339,883 — L&D 862
Cipasating axpenises 81,828 {133,590) - 254818
Imgpairmant dpsses o assats 133, i) {50523 — LE:T 8 el
Dipssrativg ool 75,400 155,470 - 130872
Shate of mesults of agsociates - (15) - {15)
Profit befose @ 15,402 155,455 — 230857
Inceirs L miphiide {50,083
Profit for the yaar TeO.TT4
Drepreciaton and amortization

Ircluded in operating

P 5,055 10,557 - 19533
Capital expenditure 880 12,537 - 11,433
At 31 Decernber 2015
Sagmen? assels 6,379,312 11,432,038 {101,515 17700845
Incliding Inwestmeant in

WSS -_ 2‘?3 —_— 27‘3
Unallocaind aats 81,548
Todal asssls 17,791,363
Sogment habilites {5,592.911) {10,549,605) 10515 {16.541,301)
Unallocatad liabilites LEL W]
Tolsl lipbadtias {165 rﬁ.m
Cradil commibments R TE 1,082,307 - 1,483,714
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Conbinued)
County Area and Urban Area segments (Conltinued)

For the year ended 31 December 2074

County Area Urtran Area
banking banking Consolidated
business business Eliminations total

Extermal inferest indoms 166,526 532,763 - o, 280
Exterial irterest epense {53,707 {175,851} - [P, 308)
Intar-seqgmant nbenest income

{pende) 52,083 (92,083) - -
Mt intarsst income 166,502 62 480 — 439 861
Fea 3 Cormmission income 31,348 56,535 - £7.883
Fea and commiss ion axpire (3.152) 8, B0 - (7. 7e0
Wt e aryd Cormission income 28,196 Lneer - 13
Het trading gain 12 1,686 - 1.5808
Hé gaini on Enanaad

ingirumenis dessnated: at fair

walue through peofit or boss J9 1,466 - 1,505
M gaim on invesiment

SECUfites - 335 - 335
Other operatng incoma 2. 718 1845 - 10, 354
Ciperating ncome 198,078 326,048 - 524116
Oparating expénies (52018} {130.380) — (223,308
trpairrrent koises on assels (28240} (38,731) - {6797 1)
Prioit befione ta ThE20 155,437 - 232257
Incore tax axpenge {52, 74T}
Profit for the yaar 178,510
Depreciatson ard arortation

included m opetating

s 2,865 10,463 - 19,328
Capital expandilure 8210 17,650 - 25,850
At 31 December 2014
Sagment asets 5841613 10,136,681 (B2, 791} 15,865,512
Unallocated aiseis 18,640
Tailat assets 15,974,152
Tegment kbilnes 15,509,147 (9,473, 78T) £2,752 (14,900,158
Unaflocated liabilities {41,381}
Total Habalitiers {14.941,533)
Credit cornmilrments 313296 1,159,429 - 1,582,715
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{1) The Group and the MOF
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As at 31 Decernber 2015, the MOF directly owned 359.21% (31 December 2014: 3921 %) of

the ordinary shares of the Bank.

Thee MOF s a Chinese government ministry, primarily responsible tor managing state fiscal
fevenue and exponditures, and establishing and enforcing taxation policles. It repoits to the

C hinese State Council

The Group had the following bakances and framsactions with the MOF incits ordinary course of

business under normal commercial terms:

As at 31 December

2015 2014

Assals
Treasuny bonds and special government bond 656,427 734,578
Recotvable from the BOF (Note IV 22) 272023 278,114
Interest receivable

— Ureasury bonds and special government bond 1,131 &, 66

— pecetvable from the MOF 25 26
Accounts receivable and temporary payments 1665 212
Liablithes
Amouwnt payable to the MOF (Mote IV 36} 7.330 3,215
Customer deposits 10, 309 10,613
Interest payable 12 {1
Cithar Rability

— redemption of treasury bones on behalf of the bOF 103 105

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
TN el ncome A1,987 V]
Interest expense (126} (22
Foe and commission incoms 7,948 1430
Interest rate ranges for tramsactions with the MOF during the year are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Y %o
Treasury bands and reconvalle T1om the GCT T od-5.00 185000
Custoaner deporits 0.01=-3.06 001-3.25

The Group's redemption commitment for treasury bonds  undereaiting B disclosed in

Mote B 47 Contimgent Liakilities and Commitments.
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{2) The Group and Huijin

Central Huijim Ivestment Ltd. ("Huifin®} is a wholly-owmed subsidiary of China Investment
Corparation Limited, which s incorporated i Beijing, PRC. Huijin was established to hold
certain edquity mterests in state-owned financial institutions as authonized by the Chinese State
Council and does not engage in other commercial activities, Huijin exercises its legal rights and
assuimes obligaticns felated to the Bank on behall of the PRC Gevernment,

As at 31 Decemnbeer 2015, Hujin directly ovmed 40.03% (31 Decernber 2014 40.28%) of the
ordinary shares of the Bank

Transactions with Heljire

The Group had the follknwing balances and transactions with Huijin in its ordinary course of
bustness under normal commerceal Lerms:

As at 31 Decembar

2015 2014
Assels
Imvestrnent in debt securitios 12,137 11,244
Interest recevable 145 134
Liabdlities
Principal quaranteed wealth managernent
products ssued by the Bank 20,500 --
Customer deposits 5,001 3,829
Interest payable 537 —
Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Intarest incame 91 4249
Imferest expense (956) (7

Interest rate ranges for tramsactions with Huijin dunng the year are as lollows;

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
b Y%
Imvestrnent in debt securities 3.16-4.20 3.14-4.20
Principal quaranteed vealth management
products ssued by the Bank 4.35-5.00
Customer deposits 0.72-2.80 0.72-3.30
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuaed)
{2) The Group and Huifin (Continuad)

Transacitions with companies under Huifin

Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the direction
of the Chinese government, The Graup enters into lransactions with these banks and financial
wistituteons in the ordinary course of business under nommal commercial tesms. Corresponding
balances with these banks and financial institutions were as follows:

A3 at 31 December

2015 2014

Aisols
Imeestmaent securitios 817,653 769,490
Dspasits with banks and other financial mstitutions J6,061 A0, 060
Placements wath and loans to banks and

other financial nstilutions 62,752 92,797
Drermvative financial assets 1,11 451
Financial assets held under resale agreements 33,134 35,363
Loams and advances to customers 20,358 4,219
Liabdlities
Depaosits frem banks and other financial institutions 63,087 30,342
Placements from banks and other financiall institutions 713,087 44,965
Derivative financial liabilities 1,444 465
Fimancial assets sobd under repurchase agreements 83,000 140,300
Custommer deposits — 1,000
Ecyuity
Preference shares 2,000 200
CHt-balanece sheel items
Mon-principal guaranteed wveealth management

products ksued by the Bank 15,100 300

(3) The Group and other government related entities

Cther than disclosed abowe, a significant portion of the Group’s banking framsactions are
entered inlo with government authorities, agencies, alfiliates and other State controfied
emtitios; These transactions Me entered info under nommal comwmercial terms and conditions
andd maindy inchede provision of credil and guarantes, deposits, loreign exchange ransactions,
derivative transactions, agency services, underwriting and distribution of bomds issued by
government agencies, purchase, sales and redemption of investment securities Bsued by
governimenl agencies,

Management considers thal these transactions are activities conducted n the ordinary course
of business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been signilicantly or unduly affectad
by the fact that the Group and those entities are government related. The Group has ako
astablished pricing policies for products and services amnd such pricing policies do it depend
on whether or not the customers are government authodities, agencies, affiliates and other
State controfled entities.
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Far e el enhdiad 31 Datarnber 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{4) The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank entered into banking transactons with its subsidiagies at arm’s lengthoin the ordinary
course of business,

Management considers that ransactions between the Bank and its subsidianes are not
significant.

{5) The Group and its associate

The Group entered into banking transactions with its associate at arm's length in the ordinary
course of business

Management considers that Wansactions between the Group aned ifs associate are nol
sigraficant,

(6) Key management personnel

Key managemment personmel afe those persons who have the authosity and responsbility 1o
plan, direct and controd the activities of the Group

The Group enters into banking wansactions with key management personngl in the normal
course o business. During the years ended 21 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the
Group had no material ransactions with key management parsonnal.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management duting the years was i

folbows:
Year ended 31 Decamber
2015 7014
{Restated)
Salafies, Donuses and siall wellare E00 9.5

According to the requlations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key management
personnel's final emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015 have not been finallzed,
Management of the Group believes that difference between the final emoluments and that
disclosed abowve will not have significant impact on the consolidated financial  stalements
ol the Group, The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate announcement when
dhetarminad.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2014
veas not decided at the lime when the Group®s 2014 consolidated financial statements were
redeasad and the amount of remuneration of directors and other members of key management
recoqnized in the consolidated ncome staterment for the year of 2014 was RMBT1.73 million,
Supplementary announcement on final compensation of RMBTS.2% million was released by the
Bank on 27 August 2015, The comparative figures lor the year ol 2014 have been restated

accordingly
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ther yisar ik 31 D

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

Thie Group had the following balances and transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up by the
Bank apart lrom the obligation for defined contribution 1o the Annuity Scheme

Az at 21 Decamber

2015 018
[Crepasits Tiom ARnully Scheme B, 050 8,050
Interest payable 15 15

Year ended 31 December
2015 2014
Inlerest expense A5 490

Interost rate range for ransactions with the Annuity Schame during the year is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
% %
[repaosits Trom Annulty Schemme S5-620 S 5600
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 STRUCTURED ENTITIES

{1) Unconsolidated structured entities managed by the Group

The unconsolidated structured entities managed by the Group consist primarlly of collective
imvestrment vehicles ("WRP Vehicles™) formed 1o issue and distribute wealth managament
products (“WRAPSY), which are mot subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principal
imvested of interest 1o be paid, The WP Vehicles invest in a range of primarily fixed-rate
assely, most typically money markel instruments, debt sacufities and boan assets. As the
manager of WP, the Group inwests, on behalf of its customers, the funds raised in the assels
as described in the investment plan related 1o each WP and receives Fee and Commission
Income, The varlable return that the Group has in relation to the WP s not significant,
therefore, the WIMP Vehicles are not comsolidated by the Group.

Asoat 31 Decemnber 2015, the cutstanding WP ssued by WP Vehicles {excluding those
with the principal guaranteed ssued by the Group) amounted to RMET, 102,201 million (31
December 2014; RMBGT 2 583 milllon). During the year ended 31 Decernber 2015, the Group's
intagest in the WHIP Vehiches included Met Fee and Commission Income of RMBE, 721 million
{2014 RMB5, 070 million) and Met Intetest Income of RMBA2T million (2014: RME499 million),
which related to placements transactions by the Group with these WMP Vahicles.

The Geoup has entered into placements transactions al market Interest rates with the WP
Vahicles, The average balance during 2015 and the outstanding balance as at 31 Decembser
2015 of these transactions were RMB1E 742 million (weighted average outstanding pericod
of 440 days) and RMBYB, 000 milllon, respectively. The average balance during the year
of 2014 and the outstanding balance as at 31 December 2014 of these transactions weare
RMB TS, 788 million (weighted average oulstanding perod of 3.72 daysy and RWMBET, 300
millon, respectively, The Group was under no obligation 1o enter into these fransactions. As
al 21 December 2005 and 31 December 2014, the outstanding balance of these transactions
was presented in placements with and loans to banks -and other financial institutions and
represented the Group®s maimum exposure to the WRP Vehicles.

There were no contractual liguidity arangemaents, guarantees of othor commitments among
ol between the Group, WP Vehicles or any third parties that could increase the level of the
Group's risk from or reduce its interest in WP Vehicles disclosed above during the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, The Group is not required o absorb any
tosses incurted by WMPs before other parties. in 2015 and 2014, no boss was incuried by the
WP Vehickes relating o the Group's interests in the WP Vehicles, and the WP Vehicles did
fiol experience dilficully in financing their activities,

Annual Report 2015 279

347/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuead)
46 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
{2) Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in olher unconsolidated structured entities which are sporsored and
managed by other entities for mwestment return, and records frading gains or losses and
Interest  Income  therefrom. Unconsolidated structured entities are  primarity  unsderlying
mvestments made by WhPs managed by the Group, and for which the Group has provided
ivestors of the WP with a principal guarantes, As at 31 Decomber 2015, the Group's
maximum exposure o these other uncorsolidated structured entities & summarized in the table

Enlones.
As at 31 Decembar 2015
Financial
assets
designated
at fair valua Dabt
through  Awailable- Held-to-  instruments
profits for-sale maturity classified as
orlosses  investments  investment  receivables Total
Interest in trust prodocts 201583 - - - 207.583
Other debt mstruments 47,7114 — - — 47,714
Asgat ranagemsnt products
msued by other entities (1) 100 1460 - 16,812 19,372
ked securities 575 4,253 - FL 2557
Fund investments — 6,586 = e 6,586
Maortgage dackad wacurities - 41 16 - 7
Total 250,072 11,340 36 16,838 Z78, 284
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continwed)

{2) Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group (Continuad)
As at 31 December 2014

Financial
assels

designated

at fair value Debt
through  Awailable- Hald-te-  instruments
profits for-sale maturity classified as

of losses  Investments  [nvestment  receivables Total
Interast in trust products 248,794 - — — 248, T4
Other debt instruments 59876 = = == SET6
Aszal managament products
issuid by other entities (i) — — = 10,613 1613
Agzat-baked tecurities - £ 054 - - 5054
Fund invesiments - 3358 = - 3,358
Martgage-tacked securities - ag A - i3
Total 308,670 £450 40 10,613 337,782
(i The atief mansgemant prodlucts cud By othed entifies pomanly conset of WP st manuapemend plans sad

ool snvestment plang

The information of tatal size of the unconsclidated structured entities listed above is not readily
available teom the public domain,

{3) Consolidated structured entities
The Group's consolidated structured entities consist principally of WMP Vehicles that Bsue
and distribute WhPs with respect (o which the Group has guarantecd the investor's principal
imvestrment, regardless of its actual performance; and a special purpose trust founded by a thid
party frust company 1o ssuing asset backed securnities by the Group. During the years ended
3 December 2015 and 31 Decernber 2014, the Group did not provide financial support for
any of these VWP Vehicles and the special purpose trust.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 ®

47

CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Legal proceedings

The Bank and its subsidiaries are involved as detendants in certain lawsiits arsing from their normal
Business oparations. Management of the Group beleves that the final result of these lawsuits waill
not have a matedal impact on the financial position or operations of the Group

Prowiskon fof tisk incidents and legal procesdings were made by the Group Based on court judgments
of advice of internal and external legal coumsel, and inchuded in Note IV 36 Other Liabilities.

Capital commitments

As at 31 Decombar
2015 2014
Contracted but not provided for 4,836 5,302

In addition, as at 31 December 201% the Group did not have outstanding equity investment
cammitments for is investee companies (31 December 2014 the Group had cutstanding equity
investment commitmeants for its investes®s companies to the capital payment of RME 206 million),

Credit commitments

As at 21 December

2015 2014
Loan compnitmments
— With an criginal malurity of less than | year 14,351 15,664
— \With an ofiginal maturity of 1 year or above 436,082 425, 304
Subtotal 450,433 441,058
Bank acceptance 387,255 FYEER
Cradit card commitments 258,745 294,227
Guarantes and latters of guaranlea 233376 241,11
Letters of credit 158905 237,337
Total 1,483,714 1,562,125

Credit commitments represent credit cards and general credit facility Bmits granted 1o customers
under pon-cancellabile sgroements. Thoese geperal aredit facilities may bo diawn in the foem of loans
of throwgh the issuance of lettors of credit, quarantee and letters of guarantee or bank acceptance.

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments represents the counterparty cradit risk
associaled with credit commitments and s calcudated in accordance with the “Capital Rules for
Commercial Banks (Frovisional)” issued by the CBRC which was effective 1 January 2013 and is
deperlont on, among other actors, creditwoithiness of coumterparties and maturily characlosstics
of each type of contract. As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, credit risk weighted
amount for credit commitments was measured under the Internal Ratings — Based approach

o R
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Conlinued)

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments (Continued)
As at 31 December

2015 2014
Credit commitments 774,935 B, 383

Operating lease commitments

Al the end of each reporting penod, the Group, as-a lessee, had commitments for future minamum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Within 1 year 4,107 4,206
| to 2 years 3,169 3153
2 1o 3 years 2473 2,525
3 1o 5 years 2,969 3,193
Above 5 years 1,627 1,969
Total 14,345 15.046

During the year of 2015, operating lease expernse recognized as operating expense by the Group
wias RMBS, 115 million (2014: RMBA, 743 million), and 5 included in Note WV 6 Operating Expenses.

Finance lease commitments

As 3t 31 December 201% and 31 Decemnber 2014, the Group, a5 a lessor, had no: mon-cancellable
finance keasa commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the qross amount of finance lease receivables included in the Group's
loams and advances were RMBI3,051 milbon (31 Decembsr 2074; RMB35, 507 million), with the
rermaining maturity a5 foflows:

As at 31 Decembor

2015 2014

(vercdue 3,794 1,991
Within 1 year B.010 11,511

1 1a 5 yoars 14,534 17,829
Above 5 years 6,713 4171
“Total 33,051 35,502
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (Continuad)
47 CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (U ontinued)
Collateral

Aszols plodged

AL the end of each reporting period, the carrging amodints of assets pledged as collatesal undeg
repurchase agreements are as folloves

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Dbt secumritios 20,651 131,828
Bill 473 -
Total 90,124 131,828

The carrying vabue of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group a5 at 31
December 2015 was RMBRE 204 million (31 December 2014: RMB1 21,021 million) a5 set oul
in Mote IV 33 Financial Assets Sold under Repurchase Agreements. Repurchase agreements are
due vithin 12 months from the effective dates of these agreements,

Financial assets sold under repurchase agresments incheded certain transactions under which,
tithe of the pledged secunities has been transterned to counterpartios. These tramsaclions have
been drclosed in Note IV 428 Transferred Financial Assets.

In addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pladoed
i accordance with regulatory requiremaents o as collateral for derwative transactions by the
Group as al 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB114.458 million in total (31 December 2014:
RMB102, 364 million).

Coffateral accepted

The Group recefved debt securities and bilks as collateral in connection with the purchase of
assely under resale agreemsents as seb oul in Note V18 Financial Assets Held Under Resale
Agresments. The Group did not hold any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at
31 December 2015, As at 31 December 2014, the Group has accepted collateral that can be
resold of re-pladped with a canying amount of RMB3,05% million and the Group did not resell
of re-pledge any of these collateral accepted,

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group is entrusted by the MOF 1o undengrite certain reasury bonds. The investors of these
treasury bonds have a right 1o redeem the bonds at par at any time prior to matwrity and the Group
s committed 1o honor such redemption requests. The redemplion price & calculated as the pae
valee of the bond plus unpaid interest in accordance with the terms of the related early redemption
atrangement.

284 @-trnmtlﬁ'

352/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Conlinued)

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds (Continued)

As at 31 Decernber 2015, the nominal valse of Wreasury bonds the Group was obligated to redeem
priof o matugity was RMBS3.657 million (31 December 2014: RMB44 879 million). The original
maturitbes of these bonds vary from 3 o S years, Management of the Group expects the: amount of
redemption before the matwity dates of these bonds will not be material,

Tha MOF will not provide funding for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back hasis,
but will setthe the principal and interest upon maturity

48 TRAMNSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters into transections in the notmal course of business whereby it transters recognized
financial assets to third parties o to structured vehicles, In some cases these transters may give
fise o full of pamial dedecognition ol the financial assets condetned. 0 other cases wheie the
transferred assets donol qualify for de-recognition as the Group netains substantially all the risks and
revearchs of these assets, the Group continues to recognize the transterred assets,

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

A disclosed under Note Il 8.8 Repurchise Agreements and Agreaments to Resell, the Group did naot
derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral o connection with repurchase agreements. As
atl 31 December 2015, of these collateral pledged disclosed i Note IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and
Commitments — Collateral, RMVES 986 million (31 December 2014: RMB915T million) ropresented
debt securities whereby legal ftitle has been transterred to counterparties,

Securitization transactions

The Group enters into securitization Wransactions in the nomal course of business by which it
transfors credit assets to structursd entities which issue asset-backed socurities to imvestors,

The Group may retain interests in the loem ol subordinated tranches which may give rise to the
Group’s coantinuing imvalvernent in the transterred assets. The Group determined whether or not 1o
derecognize the ramnsfernmed asseis by evaluating the extent to wehich it refains the risks and rewards
of the assets. For the part of continuing invelvement, those financial assets are recoqnized on the
consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
The extent of the Group’s continuing ivolvement fs the extent 1o which the Group B exposed 1o
changes in the value of the transferred assets,

As al 31 December 2015, the cumulative canying amounts of |oans under the Group's
outstanding secwmitization transactions where the Group had continuing rvolvements totabed
RIAB10,125 million (31 December 2014: RMB10, 125 million). As at 31 December 201%, the Group
continued o recognize assets of RMBEAA million (31 December 2014: RMBOGT million) under loans
and advances to customers with the corresponding assets and liabilities under other assets and
fabilitios of the same amoeunt arsing from such continuing mvolvements.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview

The Group's primary (isk management objective is o maintain risk within acceptable parameters
tor meet the reguirements of regulators, depositors and other stakeholders, s well a5 to maximize
return for imvestors within an acceptable level of risk.

The Group has designed sk management policies, which addiess, among other things, the
establishment of risk limits and controls to dentify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Relevant and
tirmely information used to conduct these risk management activities is provided through information
systenns maintained by the Group and intended to address the Group's information needs in this
area. The Group regularly revievs its risk management policies: and systems o address changes in
markets, products and emerging best practices.

The most significant types of risk o which the Group s exposed are credit risk, market 1isk and
ficguecity risk. Market risk includes foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price nsk.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group and
revieving and approving its risk management objectives and strategies.

Within this framewsork, the Group's senion management has overall responsibility for managing all
aspects of sk, including implementing risk management sirateqees, initkatives and credit policies
and approvindg internal rwles, measures and procedures refated 1o sk management. The Risk
Management Department of the Group mplements procedures for managing the significant risks Lo
which the Group s exposed.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk

Credit risk rmanagement

Credit risk reprosonts the patential kess that may anise froamn a cistomer of counlerpaity’s failure
to meet its obligations when due. Credil risk can also arise from opetational failures. that resull
in an unauthorized of inappropriate advance, commitment of mvestment. The Group's major
credit risks arise from loans and receivables, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related
credit risk exposures.

Thie Group's cedit risk management system is composed of the Board of Directors and its
Risk Management Committes, Senior Management and its Risk Management Committes,
Credit Approval Committee and Assel Disposal Committes, as well as the Risk Management
Department, Credit Management Department, Credit Approval Department and  related
frontl-office customer dopaitinents. The Group's credit risk management function operates
under centralized management and authorization under a range of specified limits,

The Group pedorms standardized credit management  procedures, including  credit due
diligence and proposal submission, credit underwriting review, loan disbursement, post-londing
monitaring and non-performing: lan management. The Group enhances its credit risk
management by strictly complying with its credit management procedures; strengthening
customer investigation, credit rating, lending approval and pest-lending monitaring measures,
enhancing sk mitigation effect of loans through collateral; accelerating disposal process of
nan-performing foans and continuously upgrading the aedit management system,

For the year 2015, the Group strictly followsed the strategy of macro-economic and related
policies implemented by the government, continuowsly improved cedit sk management
andl comsclentiously adjusted and refined credit struciure taking into consideration risk
charactenistics of the ditferent industries and loan portfolics. The Group formudated risk
rnithgation policies on a timely basis and strengthened risk prevention of focused areas. The
Group alko accelerated the disposal of non-performing loans while controlling the level of
nan-performing loan increass.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, deposits and placernents wath: and
[oans 1o banks and other financial institutions, the credit risk arising from treasury business is
managed by selecting counterpartios with acceplable credit quality, balancing credit resk and
return, referencing to both infernal and external credit rating information where available and
by applying appropriate limits subject to different level of management autharity, and by timehy
roviewing and adjusting thoso limit in credit system. In addition, the Group ako provides loan
commitments and financial guarantee services to customers which may require the Group o
rmake payments on behalf of customers upon thelr falure to perform under the teims of the
related contract. Risks arising from Ioan cormnmitments and financial guarantoes ae similar 1o
those awsociated with loans and advances. These transactions: are, therefore, subject to the
same sk management polickes and procedunes.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment assessment

Key factors related to the Group's impairment assessment

In accordance with the "Guideline for Loan Credit Rk Classification” issued by the
CEBRC, the Group has established a loan credit nisk classification system and parforms
credit risk management based on loan classilication in one of five categories. The Group
classifies loans into the folbowing five categories; nommnal, special-mention, substandard,
doubtiul and loss, Loams classified as substandard, doubtful and boss are regarded as
non-performing leans. The primary factors considerad in loan impairment assessment
include probability of loan repayment and recoverability of principal and interest,
which reflect Bormowers' repayment ability, repayiment record and intention, projected
profitability, bank guarantees or collateral and legal responsibility of repayment. The
allowrance for impairment losses is assessed collectively or individually, as appropriate

The five categodies of loan classification into which the Group classifies its oans and
alvances o oustomers are set out below:

MNormal Borrowrers can honor the terms of their loans, There s no freason 1o
doulbit their ability 1o repay principal and interest in full on a timely
hasis.

Special-mention Borrowrers are able 1o service their loans currently,  although

repayment may be adversely aftected by specific factors

Substandard Bomrowveers” ability to service their loans is i question and they
cannot rely entirely on nommal operating reverues o repay principal
and interest. Losses may ensue even when collateral or guarantees
are invoked,

Doubstiul Boorowers cannot repay principal and mterest in full and sigralicant
loses will need 1o be recogmized even when collateral or
quarantees are imvokied,

Lexss Only a small portion or pone of the principal and mterest can be
recovered altar taking all possible measures and exhausting all legal
rermedes.

With respect to investments in debt securities other than held for trading or designated
at fair value throwgh profit o koss, the Group assesses for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period based on objective evidence and performs impairment
assessment individually or collectively, as appropriate. For the impaired available-for-sale
investments, the amount of the impaimment allovsance for avallable-for-sale investmenis
is eqqual to the existing unrealized loss, which 15 recorded a5 a charge in the comsolidated
income statement,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Maximum oxposure to credit risk before taking into account any colfateral heid
or ather credit enhancements

The maximum: exposure o credit risk represents the oedit risk. exposure 1o the Group at the
end of each reparting pericd, without taking inte account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, The exposure to credit risk at the end of each reporting period primarily
arises from credit-and treasury operations; as well a5 off-balance sheet items such as loan
caormmitments, credit card commitments, bank acceptance, quarantes and letters of guarantes
and letters of oedit, as cedit rsks arksing from these items are similar to those associated with
loames and receivables,

Asumimary of the maximum exposure o credit sk is a5 follows.

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Balances with central banks 2,4?7"0,6»6? 2631103
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions Bar i3 572,805
Macaments with and loans to banks amd
other financial institutions S04, 252 407,062
Financial assets held for trading 18, 762 BE, 404
Financial assets dosignated at Lair value throwgh pralit or loss 355 530 354,763
Desrivative finarcial assets 16,038 7,195
Financial assets held under resale agreements 471,808 L4118
Loans and sivances lo cuslomers 85066715 7,730,996
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,202 597 922,017
Held-to-maturity investments 2,300,824 1,710,950
[rebi imstruments classified as receivables LT A0 522117
Other financial assels 176,352 128,188
Subtotal 17,339,845 15,504,018
Credit commitments 1,483,714 1,582,125
Total 18,823,563 17,146,743

The Group has implemented specific policies and credil enhancement practices to mitigate
credit risk exposure 1o an acceptable level. The most typscal practice is oblaining guaranies
deposits, collateral and guarantees, The amount and type of acceptable collateral are
doterrnimed by credit sk evaluations of bomowers or counterparties. The Group implements
guidedinees an the acceplability of spacific cladses of collataral and evaluation parameteds.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (Continuad)
49 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (L antinued)
491 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any colfateral held
af ather credit enhancements (Continued)

Thee- main types of collateral oblained are as foliows:

—  Morlgage loans o relall customers are generally collateralized by mofgages over
residential propertios;

—  Other personal lemding and corporate loans and advances are primarily collateralized by
charges aver land and properties or othar assets of the borrowers, and

—  Financial assets held under resale agreamants transactions are primarily collateralized by
debt securities amd bills,

The Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accordance wath the underlying agreement when naecessary.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Loans and advances o customers

The following tables set out the concentiation of ik fod loans and advances to cistomers by
geographical area and industry

{1} The composition of leans and advances o customers by geographical area is analyzed as
foallewers

As at 31 December
2015 2014
Amount % of total Amount % of total

Cofporate loans and advancos

Head Office 215,317 a5 147614 26
Yangtse River Della 1,355,458 220 1,312497 23.0
Pearl River Difa T24,651 11.7 669,532 11.8
Bohiai Rim 1,067,323 172 1,036,523 182
Central China Ta.559 12.5 684,153 12.0
Waostern China 1,246,434 218 1236514 21.7
Northeastern China 256 614 4.2 217976 18
Cwerseas and Others 439,905 i1 392,324 6.9
Subiotal 6,175,301 10000 5697083 100.0

Persanal boans amd advances
Head Office 101 = a7 —
Yanalze River Delta BHZ2 935 254 606,026 52
Pearl River Delia 53R, 353 19.7 440,572 18.3
Bohai Rim 401,251 14.7 345, 547 14.4
Ceantial China 357,957 131 335,059 14:0
Waestern China 629,495 23.0 573,220 239
MNortheastarm China 107, 708 39 95,112 4.0
Oveseas and Others 6,727 0.2 4,345 0.2
Subtotal 273617 1000 2,400,984 100.0

Gross loans and advances
o customers 8,909,918 8,008,067
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
491 Credit risk (Continuad)
Loans and advances to custormers (Continued)

() The composition of loans and advances to customers by industry is
analyzed as follows

As at 31 Decombar
2015 2014
Amount % of total Amount % of total

Cotporate loans and advancos

Manufactiring 1,481,883 240 1,459 857 256
Transportation, logistics and

postal services 924,356 15.0 779,230 13.7
Retail and wholesale G50.670 105 620 609 11.1
Production and supply of

perwvier, heal, gas and wealer G, 313 4.8 551,929 9.7
Real estate AR IRE B9 537916 10.3
Leasing and commercial services 461,772 15 399 910 10
Finance 457,823 £ FRE . 38
Mining 260,558 4.2 261,932 46
Construchon 216,636 35 212,961 3.7
Water, environment and public

ubilithes management 206,797 3.3 208,769 37
Others 363,105 5.0 285, 680 6.8
Sublodal 6,175,301 1000 5,697,083 100.0

Personal loans and advances
Residential morlgage 1,927,049 J05 1,550,702 66
Personal busimess 230,424 B4 FB5.913 111
Personal consumpticn 185,531 6.8 204,102 85
Cradit cards 232 206 B 222 865 9.3
Others 160,407 .2 156,402 6.5
Subfolal 2,734,617 1000 2,400,584 100.0
Gross loans and advances

to customers 8,909.918 8,098,067
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (€ ontinued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuwed)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Loans and advances (o custormers (Cantinued)

(3} The composition of loans and advances to customers. by contractual
maturity and security type Is analyzed as follows

31 December 2015

Less than 1t Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Unsecured loans O16,905 340,169 8307631 2096927
Guaranteed loans 692193 263,559 393 338 1,349,190
Loans secured by collateral 1127445 649,224 2480132 4265801
Medgad keans 623,149 PA 503,719 1. 198,000
Total 3,359,882 1,324,084 4,225,952 8,909.918

31 December 2014

Less than 1to Ower
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Linsecured loans g ARE 285 993 FOL 80 1,796,261
Guraranteasd boans 785,858 285,079 37,351 1.3BRJER
Loans secured by collateral 1,164,594 66E884 2105571 3.930.049
Pledged loans 476,414 52,620 445,426 974,469
“Total 3,221,354 1,302,585 3,574,128 8,098.067
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueed)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Loans and advances to custormers (Continued)

(4} Fast due loans

31 December 2015
Up to 91=360 361 days Over
90 days days to 3 years 3 years Total
Lirsecured loans 1311 8522 2,150 21 18,2594
Guarantesd loans 21408 26,103 18,134 4,143 G0 A58
Loans secured by collateral 67,076 63271 37,878 6,716 174,04
Pledged loans 2600 1,202 5 040 1568 16419
Total 98,465 105,098 63,251 12,698 279,512

31 December 2014

Upte  91-360 361 days Over
90 days days to 3 years 3 years Total

Unisacured lnans 9.447 4,744 616 £ | 15,172
Guaranteed loans 19,103 14,380 7639 4,555 45,681
Loams secured by collateral A0, 740 32,202 13,845 F Q4 462
Pledged loans 3,854 5,041 121 1,688 11,304
Total 73,139 56,457 22,811 14,202 166,620

When either foan principal or interest i past due by one day in any period, the whole loan
15 classified as past due loan.

(5) Credit quality of loans and advances o customers

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Medther past due nor impaired (i} B623.179 10923816
Past due but not impaired i) 3,872 49, 281
Impaired {Eii}y 212,867 124,970
sulitetal 2900918 8,098,067
Allevvance tor impairment losses of loans
amd advances to customers (403,24 3) {358,071)
Leans and advances to customaers, net 8,506,675 7.739,99

204 @)*I*!Iﬁ

362/424



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
Far 1k El a0 1E

(Armaunts i millians of B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (L ontinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances o custornens (Continued)
{5} Credit gquality of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i} Loans and advances neither past due nar impaired

31 December 2015

Spacial-
MNormal mention Total
Corporate loans and advances LR48 447 303,383 5.951,830
Personal loans and advances 2,669,491 1,858 2,671,349
“Total 8,317,938 305281 8,613,179

31 December 2014

Special-
Mormal  mention Total
Corpotate loamns and advances 5,303,893 265,154 55649 047
Personal loans and advances 2,352 828 1941 2,3%4, 760
Total 7,656,721 267,095 7,923,816
(i} Loans and advances past due bul not impained
31 Dacembar 2015
Up ta ETET] B1-30 $i-360 Fair value
30 days days days days Total of collateral
Cofpotate boans and
advanes 214914 11599 T.581 = 2454 32567
Forsonal bans aad
ahantes 18,080 LTE £ 587 - 31378 M58
Total 40,534 18,315 13,563 - 13,872 58,626
31 December 2078
Upto 360 B30 §1-360 Fair value

30 days days days days Tetad of callateral

Loepotile kang and

shvancis 15; 150 1478 3875 1200 a1 it
Personal koans aed

atiances 15, 652 L L] L1083 3 2 158 41785
Total 20,942 9418 1,628 1.203 40031 [TE1]]
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.7 Credit risk (Continuad)
Loans and advances to custormers (Continued)
(5} Credit guality of loans and advances to customers ([Continued)

{il)  Impaired lcans and advances

31 December 2015

Allowance

far
impalrment  Mat book
Book value losses. valug
Individually assessed 1ROSTE (133,500} AT 078
Codlectnaly assested 31,3-5‘9 I:! ]'.'J'{‘.-:l_:l 9_3-4()
Total 212,867 (155,949} 56,918

31 December 2014

Allowance

far
impairment  Net book
Baok value lasses. vallie
Inckviduaily assecsed 103,507 [73,09:4) 30”13
Collectively assessed 11,063 (14,591) 6472
Total 124,570 {E:I',EEIE} 37,285

Inechucing;

Az at 31 Decembear

015 014
Individwally assessed and impaired 180,978 102,907
Individually assessed and impaired
4% a percentage of gross loans and
atvances of the Group Z.03% 1.28%
Fair value of collateral 29,319 14,6407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (€ ontinued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuwed)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Loans and advances (o custormers (Cantinued)
{5} Credit gquality of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(i) Impaired kans and advances (Continued)

The compesition of impared koans and advances 1o customers by geographical area
s analyzed as follows:

21 Decembar 2015 31 December 2014
Amount % of total  Amount % of total
Head Oflice ¥} — ! -
Yangtze River Dolta A1, 684 196 26,242 2.0
Pearl River Della 29600 13:9 16,790 134
Bohai Rim 40,005 188 26,727 214
Contral China 28,084 13.2 18,656 14.0
Western China 63921 30.0 30,332 24.3
Mortheastern China 6,036 28 5,368 4.3
Cwvorseas and Others 3,530 1.7 242 0.7
“Total 212,867 100.0 124,970 100.0

{6} Rescheduled bbans and advances

Rescheduled loars and advances arise from renegotiating terms of contract, amd such
loans and advances fegquire conlinuous monitofing. Rescheduled boans and advances af
the Group as at 31 December 2015 amounted to RBABZ 7,919 million (31 Decembar 2014:
RMB26,403 million}

{7} Assets foreclosed under credit enhancement arrangemsnit
Suech assels are duchosed as toreclosed asvets in Mote IV 27 Other Assels
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
491 Credit risk (Continuad)
Dbl instrumearnts

Credit guality of debt instruments

The tahle Below represents the carrying value and accumulated impairment charges of
heebed-ter-mmatunily mvestments and debt instruments classified as receables:

Az at 31 Decomber

2015 2014

Meither past due nor impatred (1) 2,858,931 2,233.960

Impaired 12 3178 1.191

Subtetal 2,862,100 2,235,151

Inchividually assessod {1.470) {178)

Collectively assessed 12,395) {1.606)

Allevvance for impainment losses {3,865} (2,084)

“Total held-to-maturity investments

and debt instruments classified

as receivables, net 2,858,244 2,233,067
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (L ontinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Dbt instruments (Continued)
Credit quality of debt instruments {Continued)

{1} Debt instruments neither past due nor impaired
31 December 2015

Financial

assetsat  Available: Debt

falr walus for-sale Held-te-  Instriments
though  financal  maturity classified as

profit or loss apats  investments  redeivables Tatal
Db secunitied
Esmed by
— QoI ments 71,45 333537 B52.367 42841 1,250,240
= Pabl
and -
QUvEImEnLs 18,853 465,580 1,061,581 B Ry 1,645,809
— Finaniial
Instibutions 43 856 176,073 22T 57335 A4 S
— Lorpates m 226,552 185367 3,80 466,595
Speal govimment
bend - - - 93300 93,300
Fecanable fiom
{he WO - - - FiLAITE! FIRAIE
Colitcaie freanmy
bomds and savngs
Leaartiiny b5 - - - 2509 P
Interests in
trust products 201,522 — — — 201583
(Rher debl milruments AT T4 = - 16,048 B3E1E
Total 410,580 1,202,081 1,301,644 556267 4481501
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueed)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Dbt instrurments (Continuaed)
Credit gquality of debt instruments (Continued)

{1} Debt instruments neither past due nor impaired (Continued)
11 December 2014

Financial
assats at Available- Debt
fair walua for-1ale Hold-1a-  [nstrumants
through financial maturity  dassified as
prafit or loss assats  investments  redeivables Tatal

[ebi secunties Bsued by
— Gomrnments 14,780 147,513 545330 ~ T10623
— Public st
Afd Lesi-

(R nmen s &3 269,183 36374 G141 1,450,321
= Fitamial
si@utions 4,011 137,730 &7 878 45,334 254453
— Comoeates 19, 385 185,574 154,344 34 475 304,787
Spescadl gomwarnmend
boeed - - — 93,300 43,300
Recenable from
i MOF — - ~ 278,314 278,304
Cerlficate braasuny
Dl and S
tesarsury Bands — — — 3580 3 Ry
InLesfasts in
Leisst prrocducts 248,794 243,754
Ciliver diehd. irelrumsenils Lo a6 - - 10,675 70851
Total 395573 921,000 1711831 522128 3550533
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements
Far ks yi& anciicd 31 Dacarnibar 2015
pAmGumts ah rmallions of f—'!u,-r.r'. nipi, unless otherwase stateds

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (L ontinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Dbt instruments (Continued)
Credit quality of debt instruments {Continued)

(2} Impaired debt instruments

31 Dacember 2015
Debt
Held-to-  Instruments
maturity classified as

investments  receivables Total

Corporate bonds = 543 543

Oiihers - 2635 2,635

Cuibtatal - 3,178 3178

Allowance for impaierment fosses - {1L.AT0) {14700
Irmgrateed hebd-to-matunty mvestments and

debt Instruments classified a5 recahmibbes, net - 1,708 1,708

31 December 2014
Debt

Held-to-  instruments
maturity  classified as

investments  receivables Total

Corporate bonds S CAC [

Others - (.1 546

“wiatal = 1,191 1191

Allowrance Tor impairmment lossas - {478} (478)
Irnprained hetd-1o-maturity mvesimenis and

dabt matmments classifed &5 recennalies, net - FRE] FAK]

The Group™s availabbe-for-sale debl instruments weere individually “assossed  for
impairment, As at 31 December 20195, the canying amount of the impaied
avallable-for-sale  debt  Imstruments of the Group was RMBS516  million
{31 Dacember 2014: RMB1,017 milion), among which the lotal impairment losses
recogrized lor these impaired available or-sale debt mstruments by the Group as at
31 December 2015 was RMB312 million (31 Decernber 2014; RMB295 million)
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Motes to the Consofidated Fimancial Statements
Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instrumeants (Continuaed)
Credit gquality of debt instruments (Continued)

{3} Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating

The Group adopts. 4 cradit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the dett

securities portiolio eld, The ratings are obtained from magoer rating agencies whwere
the issuers of the securities ane located, The carrying amounts of debl securitios
investiments analyzed by rating as at the ond of the reporting period Me a5 follows:

31 December 2015
Unted i)  AAA Al A BoowA  Tol
Db sacurition Erued by
— Gowemmests Qa0 urs X074 7607 1% ¥ 13187
— PutWic 4ector and
(uEHENTERT 195085  T43007 417 4N — 155400
— Financal mslitutsng H4T3  HW0ES 4517 301 14803 4E4463
- Lol ] 53654 353%ER 1183 B 123 EERE
Special goweinment bond 83,300 - — — — 9330
Recenatka from the MOE FIEIE = = = = 10
Certifict i teasun bonds
andg s treatury bondy FE] - - = o A
Irterests in fnst paaduds (] 201583 - - - — 01583
(her debd instruegnls ] 65,036 - - - —  BOE
Total JBRNT EMaR WIS 6815 11,368 AABIAN
31 Ducember 2014
Unrated (i} AAR Al A BelowA Total
Brebt secunithes ksved by
— Dowemment 584,23 10257 B9 5IET —  TER
Pubdic sector and
G VR 1370008 1I0EH 3044 ima AR
= Financel mstilutions 10 A% B39 15,685 13535 B850 55140
~ Comorale il 1 R 11875 42033 4M1 BeER
Speaial goweinmesnt bond VR LI - - — - a3 3m
Foscusabibe froem th MOF 78314 - - - - 17834
Cerificale treasury bonds
and sy brasury bonds 1,500 - - - - 3590
Inferests In tnest peaduds (6] 248794 - - - - MET
Caher debd nstruments {1} 11074 - - - - Tom
Total 1983182 A6 31AW  BA3Y 11659 35WEST

302 @-trnmtlﬁ'

370/424



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ontinued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Credit gquality of debt instruments (Continued)
{(3)  Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating (Continued)

) Uarafed debt imestmaents hald by the Group am bong's foued pnmanty by pobcy banks, the Chiness
governmeal, municipsl government bonds and receavate fam the MOF

i Tha rtrigs af iper shot derm dommevtisd pape of the Group amounbed o BWEST 553 mdlan
(@1 Decanber 2014 RMBIT. 708 mullion], a5 included i conporste bonds above anr based on isstaer
rafrng S thes Crechl ek arlpan

(] Tha Frecl peocknile atd ofher debl imitfamenty s dlisirbed vwathin [eved 3 &f the fair valle
rosasuyement fdranch g the relifed creat ask o gescnbed in Noede VST Faw Value of Fraenca’
Ingiriameals

49.2 Liguidity risk

Liquiclity risk is the risk that funds will not be available 1o meet Babilities as they fall due. This
may arise from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assets and labilities

The Group's Assets and Liabilities Management Department manaces its liquidity risk through;
—  Optamizirg assel and liability stouchure;
—  Maintaining stabality of deposit base;

—  Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate Hguid asset
position;

—  Maintaining an efficient inteinal funds transfer mechanisim within the Group; amnd

—  Performing stress testing on a requlan basis.
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Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
{amaunts in milons of Renmimby, unbéss athenaase stated

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4% FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continuad)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabvilities

Th tables holowe summarize the matwity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining confractual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of each reporting

period
31 Decamber 105
On  Lewt fhun +3 [ET T3 Cremr
fastdue demand  Tmoath  mostu  meath pamp. Spean  Undabed Tod
Cards s bl with canied bk -  TmME 3L = AW - = ANMS IS
Depots wth burks sl e

trunsd mabttn —  Hn;E @ MR e 1260 - — R
Platesert wih i kafr 03 burks :

e o Branoall paiistong —_ — I o o wdid - — SGLNT
Tl st bald dor e - m am NI B IR 19 = W
Frunad i desgraled

by e okl o b - —  H®W Mds sl RS 3 LT T
Dermater runcul s - - 154 Iy a 1408 # - lep
Unmnod st held inda

restle kremTs - - W e a - - - ATEY
Eairer e adearvies 10 opsomen: Eibd = AM3E FEHL 1SS LN MmN 000 — - RRERN
Avabible borsale francul sroets - — M W5 MU EEES MEME 1SS (TWSE
ekt by ety - = BN M W3 LmE AT — 23000
Dkl rocomends dactfied

o I n 1537 di%E XM WIS X = ST
O il aezets 1% mam x mEm oM =7 a5 - R
Tl Inanéial p3et S0 B0 LSS (XN AN TeNND ISKATE  LRAM ATATRIR
Berpwinigz bom gl burk - G SR S ki ] - Sl L
Chepont bom Barks e
ot vl BSENBON = FHAT O BRl O (e GLee - = P
Flaipinerdy b By gl
oot bevancul i e = — fEGR WmBa mEd W) [ — [T
Frurd Lo bebd b adeg —  EN AES . EEW Gmd = - |
il i, eyt
il Lo b Batsngh o o lons - E 7 R 6 T R % 3 — e
Dierirates Arinscul habibtes - E 1 W 1 T T R T 20 — Oien
Pl izet i s
repuriae jpeesrmb - - S_i-lﬂ {255}, Lo {h1] — - — EEALD
e B0 Apdimeen — DRI EHwy NN QIERED R TR m — 15 )
Drebit seqarsties ecued - — Ty MW EROY NG [S4D = [un
[t Bl b S I T T T - g
Total bl by — EATLEE (EEND 057 GSIE, (1305 1K) = [IGATHAR)
Met pouition A0 RYSLINE UWSN RIS mOW L) AMESTT AN LeEn
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of fnancial assets and financial
Habilities (Continued)

I Db 2014
On  lLess Bun ¥ 341 15 v
Pavides  dewand  Vmeath  meathi meath yeuri Spaani Unduied Tamd

e aead bulieses e ceriral bunky - 12 am - - - = MW LHLNE
Dby, wrfy B s ol

Fruncul resistiong - apEsy Cob TR K L 230 - - N
Patrmearity wilh ae boums, by Basks

and oten fnumal inchostion; - - jees WA 1 Bl - - W
Eninul sses held Ror badeg - n LB LES iy TEAs 4934 - LA
sl igsety desgnated af

Fam wishoe Bhaungh peoht oo bo - - el ) N T ETAT2 0 141 EEne
Doarvaties e ey = - i 1419 EE -] 1364 5] - TS
Frrncal seseby held Lo

teidle pgtremens; - = CERED MEAT AT EE - - - Swmun
Reuee s adarnies. o idormen LS = CORTT  MIME LN TS lsal = LT
Aerplibis Ror- b Bl g et - - WER L1~ R [ k| T F] SERE WS
Fabi-kp 0 bty mwveiim iy - - R5TH [rd ] (L2 B B ) = B
Dt rarumerty datibed

iz tmpbie, 1 ] - L3 5 f L T — 5B
e Il inet 58 1 i Az MG 1y L] —- ImMNE
Totl Ao sset s IsEE LIRS 1MIAM deDnd  3aR o AT 2BEEeE TRERI NS
Bamweng ban cetvl bark - ] - s o] - - - EA
Beporsty b banks ard

o Eranal i butony - [RAMKE (URESER GROIT QERATY  OEEE) - - EN M1
Mt om hunks and

ot Brandof i rtony - T 1 N 2 (] (LT mim - [MH)
Frurerull Wafaktes bl 4 g - {10Es 078 B8 F3 S ] - - - .28}
Erunscul ki, desgriited

it lm vl g prold e ex - = (555 (40 k] (111} 4] - (dr s
ety frncal bbdse - = [0 n.5a s nn3 [E2]] = (3.0480
Fiarecdl amets ool e

1epur g L eeinn - - [AfEd o] (1 s | fen - = = e
Chse b sy = [T EMIET A MESALE RIERR (4180 L) = (353380
Dok pouribes sl = = Loy N s mue el - BB
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Motes to the Consofidated Fimancial Statements
Far thir yoar enced 31 Decambar 2015
(A maunts in milions of Renminbi, uniss athenease stated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuead)
4% FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continuad)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets avallable to mest obligations felated o the Group's kabilities and outstanding credit
commitments primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and
other linancial institutions, placermnents with and loams 1o banks and other financial institutions,
financial assets al fair value through profit o loss, and financial assets held under resale
agregments. In the normal course of business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on
demand or on maturity are expected o be refained. In addition, the Group is able to sell the
avallabbe-for-sale financial assets to repay matured liabdlities, if necessary
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Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C ontinued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.2 Liguidity risk (Continsed)

Analysis of the undEcounted contractual cash fows (Continued)

The tables below present the undiscounted cash Howes of non-derivative financial assets and
financial liabilitses by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period:

i Dactmber 075
Tuidor Ondemud  lmosth Limcatls  moeths  VSpan Spee  Uedewd Toud

Hea-dirivation Eancial sty
Lah wd balrae wely (arird buris = 1 Dk 1139 Lt su = — CLIMAL . LEEE\N
Begrts, melh bankz. ared ot

Ingnodl restusion = =R ] L L] 1mare A 1060 = = mrse
Patmmeri wils aned boart. 1 b

e o ol resibon - = el . TILEL L h ) - = SINE
Frunaul emak Feld b Badrg - H LL 1 141 e wm 1% - B
Fraad amat desgrabed ot [a wie

rough prolE on e - - iy L (e nm i LT
Frraeul B bk arader

sl iphemly - - W R e - - - ne
g e B Nl 168,750 = CHeE S BT ERE GRS = AR
el bor e Bruncisl et - - B ELS MM REN BUT LR EF
R By v el - - o SREN MR USE uem = T
et epmyments el

& irmtin L. n 19 %4 L] G 166108 dATRET — - eEs
(e hrawdl e — ik 118 Rl L% il 1 — HED
Toitd nox-esvintoe firuncul ie’s L R L R I T L N R U s R P
Mo-dasivativn i ascial lubiles
Berimerg: S cerandl bued - LT | =T R - ] L] = = e
Tty o bk, ared b

Wrarnial mestutors S 1 R v R R o R e R 1 - — DI
Iarmmaris o bk aned

it Trunddl et hion - = {lES s GEET a.xen [ab] R ]
Frurcial bl oekd fon mading — s ] 232 na - - - e
el Litwibs demaruted ot

o whoe g prakt o e - -  EEmE SN MmO OTEh w = WA
Frurcid sl ude
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuead)
4% FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continuad)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash fows (Continued)

T Datinbeie 24
st 3 =1 5 Ovur
Pacddes Oudemasd  Tmestd  monis mosihs plas Span Usded Total
Moa-deivativn nascial amets
s e buaarwoes wolf cemitl Bk - MnS min 1,414 - - e L, I F
Dreponis, it burdn sl et

fraroal erituone - 8.5 f- A EL SN 1 1 145 - - 595
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i oo beainal wtshorg - - A nMe ons Em - u LRI
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famaunts e mallions of Renminki, unless

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (L ontinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.2 Ligquidity risk (Continued)
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settlhed on a net basis

The fair values of the Group's derivatives that will be settled on a net basis are primarily interest
rates products. The tables below present the undscounted contractual cash flovws of the
Group’s net derivative positions. based on their remaining contractual maturities

31 December 2015
Less than 1-3 =12 1-5 Over
1month  months months years  5years Total

Intefest fatle

derivativis (18} 5 459 (28} {227) (2159)

31 Decomboer 2014

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Owver 5
1menth months  months yaars years Total
Interest rate
elestivatives [EN] 18 14 (541} {102 {132)
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ot 1k ar ehicksd 31 D 018

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cantinued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Derivative cash fows (Continued)

Denvatives settled on a gross basis

The fair values of the Group's derivativos that will be sottled on a gross basis are primarily
foreign exchange rales amd  precious metal products. The tables  below  present  the
undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross dervative positions based on their
rernaining contractual maturities!

31 December 2015
Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1 month months months years  5years Tatal

Crerivatives softhed
on a gross basis

— Cash inflow 220711 213739 BRI 746 50,007 815 1,362,103
o — Cash outflowy (229673} (213,507 (863,714) (49.962} (B15) (1,357 674)
Total 38 232 4,032 127 -_— 4,429

31 Dacombaer 2014
Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5  Over5
1 month  months months years years Total

Daerialives seltled
01 3 gross basis
— Cash inflow 270824 17400 400,347 62,974 2,050 910,205
— Cash outflow (271,642} (173,741) (399, 764) (62,679 (2,050} {(909.5876)
Total (B18) 269 583 295 — 329
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (Continued)
49.2 Ligquidity risk (Continued)

Credit Cormmritments
The tables bolows summatize the amounts of credit commitiments by remmaining matiity.

31 Decembar 2015

Less than Over
1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
Loan commitrmants 56,515 134,021 2549 807 4500433
Bank acceplance 382,255 = - 82,255
Criedit card commitments 258,745 - - 258 145
Guarantes and letters
of guarantes 102,829 97,027 33,520 233376
Letters of credit 151193 LA — 158,906
Total 951,537 238,760 293,417 1,483,714
31 December 2014
Less than Over
1 year 1=5 years 5 years Total
Loan commitments S7.799 135,864 247,395 441,058
Bank acceptance 418,937 418,937
Credil card commitments 254 233 - — 25 222
Guarantes and letters
of guarantes 102,668 104,440 34,063 241001
Letters of cradit 219,350 1578 - 227,337
Total 1,052,985 248,282 281,458 1,582,725
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

49.3 Market risk

Markel risk represents the potential loss arising from changes in markel rates of inierest
arwd foreign exchangs, a5 well as commodity and equity prices. Market risk arises from both
the Group's proprietary positions and customer driven transactions, n both cases refated to
on- and off-balance sheel activities,

The Group s primarily esposed to interest rate sisk through its lending, figed-income: and
lunding activities, Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Growp's businesses and this
situation & common among large banks. It fundamentally arises through mismatches: belvseen
tha maturity and re-pricing dates of mterest-eaning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. As
discussed further belows, interest rate risk 5 actvely managed.

Foreign exchange rate risk is the potential loss related 1o changes in foreign exchange rates
affecting the translation of foregn cumency denominated monetary assets and Nabilities. The
risk of boss results from movements in foreign curmency exchange rates

Thir Group & also exposed to commodity risk, primarily related to gold and other procious
metals, The risk of loss results from movements in commaodity price. The Group manages the
risk related to gold price together with foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group has determined that the kevels of market risk related to changes in equity prices
amd commodity prices other than godd, with respect 1o the related exposures in s trading and
investrment portlolios, are immaterial.

Seqregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To: enhance the effeciiveness ol market fisk management, as well as the accuracy of
determining  the leveds of regulatory capital required rolated to market risk, the Group
segregates all financial instruments and  commodities, both on- and  off-halance  sheet,
into @ither the wrading book or banking boak, The wading book 5 comprised of financial
instruments and commaodity positions held for trading, including all derivatives instruments.
Any other financial instrurnents. are included in the banking book.
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Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Contmued)

Markot Risk Managermeant for Trading Book

The Gioup manages markel ek in the trading book theeugh methodobogies that includs Value
al Risk (VaR), monitoring and managemen! of established limits, sensitivity analysis, duration
analysis, exposure analyses amd stress testing.

The Group has formulated policies, which are subject to review annually or as circumstances
otherwise dictate, (o manage market risk Further, in this regard, the Group's market risk
management is focused o movemnents in domestic and global financial markets, as well as
the composition of the rading book and management’s trading strategies, within approved
limits. Moseover, the Group has implemented more: specfic podicies for financal instruments,
closely monitoring the sxposure to specific Bsuers and counterparties, as well as the tenor
of individual positions and trading stiategies. The foundation of the Group's limit and risk
monitoring system is based on VaR, which 5 used consistently to monitar all classes of financial
instruments in the trading book,

The Bank has adopted an historical simulation method, with 3 confidence loval of 09% based
on holdirg period of 1 day and historical data tor 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading
baoks, which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and overseas branches. Based
on the differences between domestic and overseas markets, the Bank selectad applicable
parameters for model and risk factors in order to reflect the actual market sk bevels. The Bank
verified the accuracy and reliability of market risk measurernents through data analysis, paraliel
rmodeling and back-testing of the markel risk measuiemants,
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(A meants in milicns of Renrmnbi, o
IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

49.2 Market risk (Continuod)
Market Risk Managoment for Trading Book (Continuad)

VaR Analysis tor the Trading Book

Bank
2015
At the end
of the year Average Maximum Minimum
Interest rale risk 5 76 102 50
Exchange rate risk (1) B2 I 151 EF
Commodity risk 14 29 53 2
Owerall Valt B2 119 183 G
2014
At the end
of the year Average Maximum Minimum
Interest rate risk FE] (5] 98 50
Exchange rate risk (1) 32 a2 247 31
Commodity risk 36 1 E )
Overall VaR B8 135 780 57

fErciucing RME foreqn curvency setiemel comnitracts with CLstomens unger
traching bopk qratedy. The specific amad mibyect to this

The Bank calcadates Vall for il frachneg bood
> Haiti
sarch ag bands, mberedl fabe demaivies fonem exchange demvatves sod

citadhe Ehe mapor aneas of exposian,
stinss teghing et a rangw of enanog, o assess the podential impact on peafit ang iss

WaR related to gold i recognined &G @ component of formgn exchangs rale mek
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Contmued)

Markot Risk Management for Banking Book

The Gioup manages matket fsk related to the banking book by condistently applying
techniques across the Group that include exposure limit management, stress esting, scenario
anahysis and gap analysis.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The interest rate gisk existing in the banking book broadly relates to the mismatch of the
ratwrity or re-pricing dates of interest rate-sensitive financial assets amd financial Kabilities, as
well as incomsistencies in the change of the benchimark interest rates on which most domestic
integest rate-sensitive financial assets and financial labilities are based.

The Group cosely manitors changes in the macro-economic environment and the monetary
poficies of the PROC, enabling it 1o timely and floxibly adjusts its pricing strateqgy. The
Group establishes comprehensive interast rate sk management policies and protooots and
has mproved the comsistency of interest rate risk measwement, monitosing, anabysis and
management of interest rate risk across the Group.

The Group reqularly measures and analyzes the Group’s interest rate risk by conducting gap
analysis, sensitivity analysis, scenario analysis and stress testing to manage interest rate risk
within established lirnits

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign exchange rate risk relatos to the mismatch of foreign cutrency denominated monetany
assets and liabilities, and the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates, which
largely arses throwgh operational activities,

The Group performs mondtoring and sensitivity analysis of loreign exchange rale risk exposure,
manages the masmatch of toreign curency denominated assets and labilities 1o effectively
manage foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits,

Market Risk Exposure Lirmit Managerment

harket sk exposure limits are classihied as either divective limits or indicative Brits, based
on the character of the underlying instruments o transactions, Including exposure limit
monitating, enforcement of stop-loss limit, VaR limits, and stress testing limits

The Group & committed o continuous improvemend of #s market sk exposure limit
management. The Group establishes exposure limits reflecting its risk appetite ard continuously

refines the categonzation of market rsk exposure limits, Further, it regularly momtors, repodts,
refines, and implements improvements to the market risk exposure limit process
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (Continuad)
49 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (L antinued)
49.2 Market risk (Continuod)

Foveign exchange rate risk

Thie Group primaily comducts (5 business  setivithes i RMB, with cortain  Wansactions
denominated in LSO, HKD and, to a lesser exten), other cumencies

The composition of all financial assets and labilities ai the end of each repodiing period
analyzad by cumrency is as folkoews:

31 December 2015
_ TP T
usp RME  HKD (RME (RAME

RME_ equivalent] equivalent) equivalent) Tatal

Tish and Balahees wilh central Banks 7532407 47,748 1.500 T T R - 5

Depossts with banks ard other
financla] wgutions BAT 108 35 844 2805 10,168 (=r b
Phcemants with 2nd koans 10 hanks
5 othes Nnanclal insBlubons -ﬂ?,l!:f E?,'ITI 2 )4 3,3:5 W,EH
Financial assats held fod Trading 8,782 - = —. e
Findecia| assott designated
&t {air value thcugh pro®it or ks EERR 10,216 14,134 3,183 o0 AT
Dernatve financial assets 2952 12399 19 608 6,038
Finamcial azsets hald unds

tesabe agreemant 41180 - - - 471,509
Loans and advancss 1o customeds 2058472 336,548 47008 73,787 8506575
Availabie-los-mke financial dnsets 1124517 BRE05 1,667 18,753 1214542
Held-io-matudtiby imsestments Hm 24410 — M3 2,300,824
et instrumrsents classified a5 receables 557418 - 1 1 557420
(rthar finanoial awsets 146,862 ey 1,250 243 175,352
Touad Tinamglal amsets 1681 5501 tad, 188 76, To0 BIL.OTE 10402150

“Beerawinen fioem cential bank [EEHETY — (L] [CAE]] T

Deposits from banks and
athel financial imstiron (1. 1a5.9u) (69,293 {566T) @I (L3901
Placemants from banks and
athet financial instiulions (oEAOE) (158,588 HEET) (14622 315755
Finascial liabdigies hald for trading (24.036) - - - (24036
Fnancial llbdties dosnmaied
31 Tair value thiough proft or boss (403328} {3,044) - (355 {406,407
Detovative firdanclal fabties {10,0004) & _1l3;} (1,208 (13,193
Financial assats soid unds

tepesichase agreements {B3.4M) {5.433) - = [88204)
Dius 1o Dastomers 113253507} Q058 31161} (32,763} (13,538,360
Db secunithes ksyed 306500 {127,703} {18267} 16, 102 (385140
e Sinancial liabilites (384, 809) 3190 {1.580) (1.401) {415, 5500

Toaf finapcial Ksbities {15, 660,934) {548 576 [103.735) [':T.LI.I]_H I:'I&-l-']'-ﬂ,i:q_m_.
Net an-balance sheet position 1,014,567 4512 {27 545) 10.M3  10METE
Wat nobosal smount of deivaties 22174 [T ETRT TR [Z7.050) 11535
Credil commitments 1307939 158487 4312 12,575 1483714
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Contmued)

Forelgn exchange rate risk (Cantinuod)

1 Decembrer 1014
Orther
CURTRIC e
USD{RMB  HED (RMEB {EMB
RME  equivalent)  equivalent]  equivalent) Tatal
Cash and balances with central banks 1.702, Fel 38,745 B2 (=] 2,743,065
Deposts with banks and othes
fmancial sstitutions 53230 17458 BT80N 5,207 572505
Plicemants with god boars ta hanks
and othes inancial s ulions 346,830 59,933 - ki) 407 062
Financial sasets hekd foe \rathng BB 435 —_ - — tg 435
Financial assets designated
41 Tair value theousgh profit oo bess 303,565 2208 10,481 - 305,395
[eeravatove finarciad avsels 1810 4203 Fal 161 7185
Firanelsl soser hald unded
resale agresments S00.818 - — - A
Leasy and achantes 1o cubbomns 1335 801 343,855 A0546 a3 773099
Freailabla-fns-sals financial asets &78428 43910 1,247 4,318 aF7.e03
Held-tormustisrity invesiments 10058 9428 - 463 1,710,950
Dbt mstrumens classified a3 receiables 522,054 73 - | AT
Jther fmanclal aset 120,380 5373 1464 1| 128,188
Total financis) e 'rS,l’.I-'i!.B-ﬂ sS4l Ee a1 411 FRLT 15,583, 350
Beoerowrings Trom cential Bank. [ETRF] = - - [ETRFN]
[epasts (rom banks and othar
Tinanci edtilutons (G030 {135,707} [703) {708} (B31,54%)
Macemeants from banks and athar
financial Bstizutions {57,575} 1118523 [36,431) {11,924} 224523
Financizi liabihites held for vading 125211) - - - [25.211)
Finangial habiites designated
a1 fair value theoingh profit oo loss (37012} 17 - {21} {347 288
Dierivative financial Eabifities 2524} (2,278} 5] f1.803) {7240
Financisl assets sobd undee
teparchase agresmants (122532} (8.388) - - 31021
[Due 1o customars 112,296 462} { 15w, BBT) (26,645} {15,403} (12,533,397
Dbt sacuritien issuad (205,846} B, Bl 3) [15.720) (5658, {325,167)
Qither nancal Rabilties (312235} (9,353) {2,660 2.9’*? {336,201)
Taml finandisl lybditss (14,144,041} [ERE [84,304) EE761)  [14.831,704)
et on balarcs shast position 505,500 (25EEN)  (20093)  (11570]  ES1.65%
Het nalional amaunt o1 defvalet T103.652] 60,035 FEETT] {RTE] (1850
Credit commitments 1412973 153,012 1,568 o174 1,562 725
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

49.2 Market risk (Continuod)

Foveign exchange rate risk (Continusd)

Thie tabde below indicates the potential offect on profit before tax and other comprehensive
income arising from a 5% appreciation or depreciation of RME spol and fonward foneign
exchangs rates against a basket of all other currencies on the net positions of fareign currency
monetary assets and labilities and derivative instruments in the comsolidated statement of

financial position,

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

Other Other

Profit comprehensive Prafit comprahensive

before tax income before tax income

3% approciation 1,733 22} 12,1500 (31
B% depreciation (1,753 22 2,150 £

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income is* caloulated based on
the assumplion that the Group™s foregn currency sensitive exposures and foreign: currency
derivative instruments net position at the end of each reporting peried remain unchanged,
The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through active management of its foreign
curency exposutes and the appropriate e of dervative instruments, based on managemant
expectation of futwe foreign currency exchange rate movemnents. Such analysis does ot
take into account the correlation effect of changes in different foreign currencies, nor any
fuither sctions that could be taken by management to mitigate the effect of foregn eacharge
ditferences. Tharefore, the sensitivity: anabysis above may differ from actual results ocourning

through changes in Torelgn exchange rates,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Contmued)

Interost rate risk

The Growp's intefest fate fsk anses fiom the midmatches botween contiactual matuirithes
of re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing labilities. The Group's
interest-genarating assets and interest-bearing Babilities ate primarily denominated in RME. The
PROC established RMBE benchmark interest rates for loams whereby financial institutions are in
a paosition to price their leans based on credit risk; commearcial and market factors. The deposit
interest rate floating ceiling was removed by the FBOC with effect from 24 October 2015 tor
commeer cial banks

The Group manages its Interest rate risk by;

—  Regulatly moniteding the macio-economic factors that potentially impact the PEBOC
benchmark interest rates;

—  Optimizing the management over the differences in timing between contraciual
maturitios of re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing Eabilitias,
andd

—  Enhancing the interest rate margin on interest-generating assets and interast-bearing
liabilities, wath reference to the prevailing PBOC  benchmark. interest rates where
approgriate,
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IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuad)
49 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (L antinued)
49.2 Market risk (Continuod)

Inrterest rate risk (Continued)

Thiie tables belows summarize the contiactisal rmatunity of fe-pricing date, whichever is earlies, of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period,

31 Dexembar 2015
Noi-
Lo thin iei il 1125 Owver  inferest
imonth  meths  months year Syears  bearing. Teial

ity and Balarsces with ontrat bueiy PR FEL - 3147 - — e RSN
Ehephorsty ety bankcs and othe

il mesiutiom BEI  WREE AER% 1060 = 118 BORSE
Flacements with and lnare to basls

ind nihés Frundal imsiuton 129208 G100 MRS 140 - - N
Financid awets hedd bar tradeg 797 1ros2 685 133 3576 i Ta.182
Financial amets desigrted at-lis ke

thesghs prodit of fom Lo ST13 174531 57050 ErLi g 8
Eerpeativt inanaal aviets = - = = = 1608 16038
Financial st had under : - - :

reiake aieemant FET A FIA L) a7 - - - dm
Laare, s achvites b cuslienars e T L 1 R e L s AT ™ | R 1) L — ESMEN
Auadabie-dor e fnanad amers 5958 AR 20 Ml M= LR R
Hiddae bty iwistmenty EiLA BB N lmﬂ 1 - !'.m.ﬂ-l
Drebit imetruments clsified s tecevables 1154 5164 76 BT 40404 - 554N
{Orher financial aat — — — — — 1635 176,35
Total finarclal sosets GIDLERE  JQNLOMS SDAGARD  1OEONE 1A 0038 1747150
Borrowangs from cerikal bark fasn (450 s (T2} - ool s
Depreritts froem bz and cther

fenarcid insibiathans [Me (108 165 005 = Lo (1s)
Plactrmints deom banks and oher

firuescid meinuticm (Mosds B3SO {13 (531 - = 57
Fanancia kit o fraeing [T I 7 A - S
Fonancial Ratdinee: denignated of fan vahee

throegh predit o des ke L o U1 R R [36) = [a06.ADT)
Petrwaine il habdte - —_ - - - ﬂt. 143 11'2.1”‘!
Financid ety wid undar

repurdhase agmemints i (v B 111 - - - [Ea)
D 1 cntarmess BOILET (LA R55LTA (U635 (M essen (1255360
Dbt secimiti Hamd WIS GLEN GREN (3N (re = [
Dot nanvial hublines — — — — — (HERE  RI0SE
Toitl frvesdal bt BSLOIY (LASSGN) (IS0 (LEIR0AN  (AS0) 332561 (BATIAR)
Intterest rate gap (2887135 5B IATRSRE AT ANTEN (1325 LD
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinued)
49 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Contmued)

Interost rate risk (Continued)

31 Decomber 200

Ne.
Luss fan Twi Imi2 1105 Ower  intenest
bearing

Tmerth  mosths monthd yeas 5 years Teasd

{Cashy and balancess with erarl banks TAT56T2 = = = - I T MIS
Doty ety hanks and othes

[nancial initution 106,337 115,347 Mo LI00 - 15T STLE05
Piscementy with and loars o Banky

and o firancal institutors 14417 el (E3 ] T3y - - &1 067
Fineaal amats held bor tradeg 5791 10,548 pER k] 13631 493 ] 2435
Finamal ety desgrated of Lo vilue

Hheatgh peofi ¢ o 41511 TI5E 162 0485 G180 10,765 14an #6135
Dermiative Sinancial sty - —- - - - 1.5 1195
Finareial iseas held unded

feale ety 355,513 106457 A7 408 - - - EGALE
Lo and advances 1o antomers LEET 1ARWE 34T 133099 133480 = J139.99%
Aualabdedor-mle fnanod aumt 47047 5,58 st A1 16753 550 271503
Held-0-maturity imvestments i L] 1,195 182417 o et B 350 — 11055
it iremrummenss drahed i reoemoddes 1 - 15064 TEEI &05,16 & ST
Dther Snancial anets - - - - — 178,158 13 1EE
Feal forncial avpets RETE. 1S5RS 4AS13ESE  1SSLIM B A0 1SEELES
ertmowingzs drpm cenival bank - fa011) e - - 3 B
Depesits from harks and other

firuncil et (09,021 (ooE (8158 [@R34TD - 145 B3N
Pacements from banks ard other

Fruancal At 1B6.851) FE | R R @030 - — S
Financial Rabives bald for mading [6,074) 16,749 2263 - - [RaEs) @52
Fnarsctal lahitsen chesiruted it it wabon

Hrrpugh profit of bos {13550  [ES4W] WL DE1EH (€] — [MLEY
Dertistwe Enancial kbl - - - - - {72400} (7240
Finaeaial ety sold under

epurdhane aeemens ARER v R 50 - - - (13U
e 10 e (TATLEOSE [LIOSEI3) QXETH (1212630 1B MG (253830
Dot secimities i Q56880  WITH O [RATT GRAM (1SR ]
(e Erunill hobine - - - — — @) (e
Tt firancial kakebioes IR (LART00R) Q7660910 (LMTERN (15038 (020 [MR3LT0
Inferest rate gap (EIMTES) 472000 LMDESS (195N 123758 (0583 BSAESE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS (Continuad)
49 FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (L antinued)
49.2 Market risk (Continuod)

Inrterest rate risk (Continued)

Thie follenying tabde illustrates the potential pre-tax inpact, of 4 patallel wpward of dewrmwiard
shaft of 100 hasis points in relevant interest rate curves on the Group's net interest Incomse and
ofher comprohensive income 1o the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the
Group's positions of interest-caming assets and Interest-bearing liabifities at the end of each
reporting period, This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same
amount, and doas not reflect the potential impact of unparalieled yield curve movements.

The sensitivity analysis on nel interest income s based on reasonably possible changes in
interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial habilities
held at the pl?lil;)d end remains unchanged, and does not lake changes in customer behavios,
baiis fisk of any prepayment options on debt securities inlo consideration.

The semsitvity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in
fair value of those linancial instruments classified as avallable-log-sale finamcial assets held,
whose fair value changos are recorded as an eloment of other comprehensive income.,

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Other Other
Nat intorast :unpnhlﬁlhri Nat interest comprahensive
income income incoma income
100 basis points {16, T80} {38,943 117,600 {23,485}
=100 basis points 16,780 13949 11,600 23,485

The assumptions do not reflect actons that might be taken under the Group's capital and
interest rate risk: management policy 1o mitigate changes to the Group’s interast rate risk.
Theretore the above analysis may differ from the actual situation

In addition, the presentation of inferast rate semsitivity above is for illustration purposes only,
showving the potential impact on net inteqest income and other comprehensive income of the
Group umder dillerent par.‘-dlel yiekd curve movemnents, relative 1o their position at period-encd,
excluding the detivative positions.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

49.4 Insurance risk

The Group engages i its insurande business primarity in Maindand China, nsurance risk refers
to the financial impact resulting from the unexpected occurrence of insured events. These risks
are actively managed by the Group through effective sales managensent; undepeaiting control,
réinsurance manacgement and claim management Thlwgh affective sales management, the
fisk of mis-selling could be redisced and the accuracy of information used for undenyiiting
is improved. Through underariting control, risk of adverse selection could be reduced and
morecver diffetential pricing policy based on the lavel of each kinad of risk could be utilized,
Through reinsurance, the Group's insurance capacify could be enhanced and tasgeted risks
could be mitigated, Effective claims management i designed to ensure that insurance
payments are controdled according to established criteria,

Lincertainty in the estimation of future bensfit payments and premiom recaipts for long-term
life insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall bvels of
mortality. The Group conducts expenience analysis of mortality rate and surrender rate, in order
o impiove 15 rsk assessment and as a basis Tod feasonable oslimatos.

50 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Thie Group's capital managemen! objectives are as follows:

I

maintain an adequate capital base (o support the development of its busmess;
—  support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

— alkocate capital through an efficient and sk based approach to optimize risk-adjusted return 1o
shareholders; and

—  Safeguard the long-tenm sustainability of the Group's lranchise so that it can confinue o
prowvide sufficient shareholder returns and benefits Tor other stakeholders.

In 2012, the CBRC issued the "Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” which took effect
from 1 knuary 2013, Upon the effectiveness of this new requlation, the then existing “Measures

for the Management of Capital Adequacy Ratio of Commercial Banks”, issued by the CRRC, was
supersedad in full,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 CAPITAL MANAGEMEMNT (Continued)

The “Capital Rubes for Commercial Banks (Provisional)”™ includes, among other things, requitements
for minimum capital, capital conservation buller, additional capital surcharge for systemically
impartant banks, countercyclical butfer and Fiilar | capital as follovs:

—  minimum requlatory requirements for Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio, Tier-
one Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%, respectively,

—  capital conservation buffer requires additional 2 5% of Common Equity. Tier-one  Capital
Aebecuacy Ratio;

— additional capital surcharge for systemically impodtant banks requires additional 1% of
Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Rateo;

— shotild the regulators require countercyclical butfer under particular arcumstances of requlators
impose additional Fillar 1| capital requirements for specific banks, these requirements shall be
el within the specified time lemits.

In April 2014, the CBRC has offically approved the Group to adopt the Internal Ratings — Based
approach to measufe (s Credit Risk-weighted Assets for both retall and nob-retal misk expostiies
and the Standardized appraach to measuie its Operational Risk-wieighted Assets, respectively. Before
that, the Group has been wsing the Weighted approach and the Basic Indicator approach to measure
its Credit Risk-welghted Assets and Operational Risk-weighted Assets, respectively, for the purpose
of calcudating its Capital Adequacy Ratics. The CBRC will determine the parallel run period for the
Group, which should last for at least three years. During the parallel run period, the Group shoulkd
calculate its Capital Adequacy Ratios under the above wo approsches, and should conform to the
capital floor requirements as stipulated in the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks {Provisional)™.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group adopled the Standardized approach for
Markel Rek-weighted Assels measurement,

Capital adequacy and the utifization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Commitiee and refevant
requlations promulgated by the CBRC . Required intormation related to capital levels and utilization is
fileed cyuarterly with the CBRC.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Confinued)

The table bebow summarizes the Capital Adequacy Ratios and capital composition as at 31 Decembser
2015 calculated pursaant o the *Capital Rules for Commercial Banks {Provisional)” and under the
Infernal Ratings — Based approach for Credit Risk-weighted Asset and the Standardized approach
for Market Risk-weeighted Assets amd Operational Risk-weighted Assets, respoctively, as approved by
the CBRC in April 2014,

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

Common Equaty Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio (1} 10.24% 9.09%
Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratic {1 10.96% 9.46%
Capital Adequacy Ratic {1} 1340% 12.82%
Comrmon Equity Tier-one Capital {2} 1,130,285 991,429
Deductible lems from Common Equily Tier-one Capital {3 {5,595) {5,223
et Common Equity Tier-one Capital 1,124,690 QRh, 206
Adiditional Tier-one Capital () 79902 39,946
Nt Tier-ane Capital 1,204,592 1,026,152
Tier-bwo Capital (5) 267,028 365,407
Mat Capital 1,471,620 1,391 554
Risk=veeighited Assots 15} 10,986,302 10,852,619
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Fursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional) ™

(1} The scope of comolidation related to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adecuacy Ratics
inclucles Domestic Institutions, Overseas Institutions and atfiliated financial subsidiaries specified
in the Regulation.

The Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is calcwlated as Met Common Equity
Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio s
calcillated a5 Mot Tief-one Capltal divided by Risk-wielghted Assets. The Capital Adeguacy Ratio
B calculated a5 Met Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets

{2} The Group's Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital
reserve (subject to regulatory limitations), surpius reserve, general reserve, refained aarmings,
non-contralling mnterests (o the extent permitted in the Common Equity Ter-one Capital under
the Regulation), and the foreign currency translation reserve

{3} The Group's Deductible ltems frome Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: other intangible
assets (excluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Tier-one Capital investments made
i financial institutions over which the Gioup has contiod but are outsade the pequlatory
consodidation scope for the Capital Adequacy Ratios calculation.

@} The Group’s Additional Tier-one Capital incudes: preference shares issued and non-controlling
interasts (to the extent permitled in the Additional Tier-ope Capital definition onder the

Fequlation),

(5} The Group’s Tier-two Capital includes: Tier-two capital instruments and related promium (1o
the extent allowsed umder the Requlation), excessive allewance fos loan losses, and minority
mterests {to the extent permitted in the Trier-two Capatal definition under the Regulation).

(B} Risk-weighted Assels include Credit Risk-vaeighted Assets, Market Risk-woighled Assets and
Operational Risk-weighted Assets.

51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The mapotity of the Group's assets and flabilies in the consolidated statement of financial
position are financial assets and financial Kabilites. Fair value measuement of non-financial assets
and non-tinancial labilities do not have a material impact on the Group's financial position and
opetations, taken as a whaole.

The Group does not have any financial assets or financial labilities subject to non-recurring fair value
measuremants for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contimnued)

5§1.1 Valuation technigue, input and process

The fair value of the Group’s financal asets and financial liabilities are determined as folbows:

— I traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liahilities with
standard terms and conditions are determined with reference to guoted market bid prices
amel ask prices, respectively;

— Il mot traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial habilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepled pricing models o disconinted cash love
analyss using prices from ohservable current market tramsactions for similar instruments,
It there were no available cbservable current market Uransactions prices for similar
instrurments, quoted prices from counterparty s used for the vafuation, and management
performes analysis on these prices, Discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments is used for derivatives other than oplions, and
opton pricing models are wsed for option derivatives

The Group has estabhished an independent valuation process tor financal assets and financial
liabilitios. The Finance Market Department is responsible for the valuation of financial asets
and financial abilitios, amd the Risk Management Department performs an independent roviewr
of the valuation methodologies, Inputs, assumptions and valuation results. The Operations
[repartment records the accounting for these items and prepares the disclosure of the financial
assets and financial kabilities, based on the independently revieveed valuation,

The Group's valuation policies and procedures for different types of financial instruments are
approved by the Risk Management Committee. Any change o the valuation policies, or the
refated procedures, must be repofted to the Risk Management Committes for approval before
they are implemented

Far the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no significant change in the vabuation
technicques of inpuls used 1o determing Lar value measurements.

51.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following three levels
based on the extent to which inputs to valuation technigues used (o measure fair value of the
financial assets and financial labilities are abservable.

Lesel 1: fair value meastrements are those derved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active
market for identical assets or liabilites;

Levil 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included wathin Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly {that is, as
prices) of inditectly (that is, derived from prices), and

Leval 3: fair value measurements are nol based on observable market data (that &,
unobservable inputs),
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

£1.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on
the consolidated statement of financial position

The tahles balow summarize the canying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and
financial Babilities not measured in the consolidated statemment of financial position at thede
fadr value, Financial assets and financial liabilities for which the carrying amounts approximate
fadr value, such a5 Balances with Central Banks, Deposits wath Banks and Other Firancial
Institutions, Placements with and Loans to Banks and Crther Financial Imstitutions, Financial
Assets Held under Resale Agieements, Loams and Advances to Custormers, Recetvalile from
the MOF, Special Government Bond, Bormowings from Central Bank, Deposits and Placemants
from Banks and Other Financial Institutions, Due o Customers, Financial Asseds Sobd under
Fepurchase Agreements and Certificates of Deposit Issued, Iinterbank Certificate of Deposits
Bsued and Commercial Papers Issued are not included in the tables below

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value ameount  Fair value
Financial assets
Hald-to-maturity
investments {1 2,300,824 2 3RISIE 1,710950 1,725220
Dbt nstruments
classified a5 recepables  (2) 192,007 196,287 150,503 150,690
“Total 2,492,921 2,583,800 1,861,453 1,875,917
Financial liabilities
Bonds issued {3 198,476 194,289 191,004 193,453

Other than these stated below, financial assets and finandial labilities as sel oul above wre
classifiad within Level 2 of the fair value measurement hierarchy.

{1 As at 31 December 2015, included in the Group's held-to-maturity investments,
RMB2,048 millen were classified within Level 1 of the fair value measuremsent herarchy.

{2} As at 31 December 2015, incloded in the Group's debt instrements classified as
receivables, RMBGRB54 million weere classified within Level 3 of the falr value
maasurement hierarchy (21 Decamber 2014 RMB11,204 millkon)

{3} As at 31 Decemnber 2015, included in the Group’s bonds issued RMBD, 724 million were

classified within Lovel 1 of the fair value messurement hierarchy (31 December 2014:
RMEB 055 million)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuedy
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contimnued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position

The tables belows summarize the fair valses of the financial ssets and financial |abilities
rmeasured in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.

31 December 2015 =
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets hedd for trading
— [relit securithes — 65,050 — 65,050
— Procious metal contracts — 14,732 — 14,732
Subtotal - 9,782 - 79,782

Firancial assets designated at Lair
value thaough profit or loss
— Debt securities — 105,584 B9 106,233
— Interest in brust products — — 201,583 201,583

— Other debt instaments — - 47,714 47,714
— Equity instruments 1,019 100 230 3,940
Subtatal 1019 106,284 252,176 359,475
Derivative inancial assets
— Exchange rate derivatives — 13,833 38 13,871
Irberest rate derivaiives -— 00 20 G20
Precious metal contracts == 1,247 - 1247
sublotal — 15,980 55 16,033
Avatlable-for-sabe inancial assets
— Dbt securitios 15,138 1,187,375 Al 1,202 5497
— Eaquaity instruments 1,498 — 3,547 05
— Fumd irvestments 6,586 — — 6,586
Subtotal FENET] 1,187,375 3,631 1,214,228
Total assets 24241 1,389,421 255,865 1,669,527
Firancial liabilities held foa trading
Financial liabdities related
to precious maetaks -~ {74,036) — {24, 0136)
Firancial lizbilities designated at
fair value through prodit or loss
— Principal quarantesd wealth
rmanagement products - —_ (405, 407) (406, 07
Derpeative financial kabilities
— Exchange rate derivatives — (11,129) (B5) (11, 194)
— Interest rate derivatives — {535} (26} (961)
— Pricious metal conliacts - (37} — 37
Sublotal — 112,101} (a1} {12,193
“Total liabilities — (36,937)  (406,498)  (442,635)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

514 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position (Contmued)

31 December 2014

Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financid assets held for trading
[reat secuities 40,810 A0 E10
— Precious meetal contracls — 172615 - 17,615
Subtotal — 58425 = 58,425
Financial assets designated at fair
value thronsgh prafil or loss
Drelot secumities 122 45,971 46,003
— Interest in trust products — = 248,794 248,794
— Other debl instiuments - 59876 59,876
— Equity instmments 3 633 236 1,472
Subtotal 125 46 ik 309, 506 356,435
Defnvative financial assets
— Exchange rate derfvatives - 5,654 164 5818
— Interest rate denvatives - 57 g+ a5
Precious metal contracts &1 S
— Citheas — — 21 21
Subtotal — 6.O7 123 7,195
Availabla-for-sabe financial assets
— Dabit secunities 19,008 R R ] 115 Q207
Eqpuaty instaurmnents 919 1,325 2,444
— Fund investments 1,358 - - 1,358
Subtotal 23,375 G2 B0 1,440 927,619
Total assets 23,500 1,014,805 311,169 1,349.474

Financial liabilities held for rading
Finanaial liabdlities related
lo precious matals = 25,211) — (25,211)
Financeal liabdlities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
— Prancipal guadantesd vaeslth

management products — — (347 282} (347, 282)
Dervative financial Rabilties

— Exchange rate derivatives - R, 0200 (226) (6,205

— [ntersst rate dervatves - {BEG) {1 {30

— Precious metal contracts _ (58] — {58)

Subtotal {6,944) (2560 17,240

Total Habilities —_ {32,155} {347,578} {379,733)

330 @ﬂru*tlﬁ

398/424



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Motes to the Consofidated Financial Statements

Far e el endied 31 Daamibar 2015
tamaunts in rmillians of Renminkl, unless sthenwise stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contimnued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

Substantially all financial instruments dassified within Level 2 of the fair valoe hierarchy are
chebt Investments, curmency forwards, currency swaps, interest gate swaps, cuttency options and
precious metal contracts, Fair value of debt investments denominated in RMB i determined
based upan the valiation publshed by the Ching Central Depository & Clearing Co,, Ltd,
Fair value of debl imesiments: denominated in foreign currencies s determined based upon
the valuation results published by Bloomberg. The fair value of currency forerards, currency
swaps, interes! rate swaps and currency options are caloulated by applying discounted cash
flowr analysis or the Black Scholes Pricing Model, The fair valus of precious metal contracts is
determined waith reference to the closing spot price of geld of the Shanghai Gold Exchange. All
significant inputs are observable in the market.

Substantially all financial assets and financial labilities classified within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are trust products and other financial assets and financial Liabilities Designated at
Fair Value through Profit of Loss, Generally, these assets are the investments into which wealth
management products. have imvested, and for which the Group has provided imvestars with a
principal. The related liability, the wealth management product itself, i alo designated at fair
value throwgh profit of loss. These designations offset the accounting mismatch

The nature of the assets classified within Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy is
primnarily investment products issued by domestic trust companies o other financial institutions,
underlying assets of which include credit assets, deposits with financial institutions and debt
securities. The counterpartees of the underlying deposits are primarnly commercial banks in
Mainland China, The credit assets and debt securities are loans and advances 10 corposate
custorers and, plain vanills bonds of notes fsued by corporates of financial instititicns
in Mainland China. As not all of the inpuls needed o estimate the fair value of deposits,
credit assets and debt securities in the iwestment products are observable, the Group
classified the invesiment product as a whole within Level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy. The significant unobservable inputs related 1o the cedil assets are those arournd
credit risk and liquidity risk. This largely telates to the lack of historical detault and hguidity
information through one of more economic cycles, which Mainkand China has not experienced,
hanagement hias made assumptions, based on obsenved indicators of impairment o significant
changes:in yield, but the actual value realized from these underlying assets In a current arm's
length sale cowld differ from those disclosed,

There wore no significant transfers: between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the years
ended 31 December 2015 amdd 31 December 2004
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

514 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position {Contmued)

The reconciliation of Level 2 classified financial assels and financial Nabilities presented at fair
value on the consolidated statement of financial position s as follows:

2015
Financial Finanial
assels liabilities
designated Avallable-  designated

atfalr value  Derivative for-sale atfair value  Dervative
thiaugh financial financial thraugh finanzial

profit or loss assels asets profit or boss liabdlities

i lanuary 7015 208,506 prk] 1,440 (347.283) (256
Pt s 184,354 - 2585 = =
- - —  {3007.978) =

mantsdispadals {458, 126) (131} [40E) 2,563 544 T4

Tedal QNG Iosses) reCogmged In

— Profit o loss 15,437 ) 3 (14741 1
= T CofnDra N inag Moo - - {3 — —

31 December 2015 152,176 58 3,631 {405,407) LR

Change in nrealized gainaflosses)
pded & prodil

for assetcliabafities heid

a1 the end ol tha ywear 67 (17N - 8 190

1014
Fimancial Fimancial
assels [iabilities

Available-  designated
at fair value  Derivative forsale atfairvalue  Derivative
through financial financial through firamcial

profit or loss assels assets profit or loss labilities
1 lanuary 2014 1.0 347 225 (345, ACd) (K]
Pt o 267,322 21 1325 - -
fecuies — — — (3,084, 325) =
{785, 313) {17 1o 3,035,734 36
— Proit of 165,485 (125 i {14 237 350
— Other oorprahensase Btome - - Pl - -
31 Decenber 2014 309,506 FFE] T80 (347,284) f296)
Chandge in nnaaliped (lodse Vigain
."r-'-. yea ineCluded sr';--l
o boss for assataliabalities hesd
a1 thi end af the year \TET) (128 - 438 360
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (£ antinuedy
51 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantimued)
51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the

consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

Im Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, total gains or ksses included in prodit o loss for the year
are presented in Net Gain on Financial Instruments Designated at fair value through profit or
loss of the consolidated income statement

52 EWVEMTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

52.1 Profit appropriation

Pursiant to the meeting of Board of Directors on 21 lanuwary 2006, a cash dividend at
the dividend rate of 55% per annum related to the second tranche of preference shares
amounting to RMB2Z, 200 million in total was approved and the dividend was distributed on 11
March 2016

Pursiant to the meeting of the Board of Directors on 31 March 2016, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set torth as folloes:

{  Anappropriation of RMB12.072 million 1o the statutary surplus ressve;

{iiy  An appropoiation of RMBEZ2 464 million o the general reserve;

(i A cash dividensd of RMBO1G6E per ordinary share in respect of the vear ended
31 December 2015 based on the number of ordinary shares issued as at 31 December
2015 totaling RMBSS, 176 millicn (Mote IV 10 Dividencds).

Asoat 31 Decenber 2015, the statutory surplus reserve had been recognized as appropiation,

The other two items will be recognized on the Growp®s financial statements after approval by
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
52 EVEMTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

£2.2 Capital injection

The Board of Directors approved capital injection to ABC International I'I|:|||:Ii|1:_|s Limited of
HED4, 250 million on 21 January 2016 As 3t 31 March 2016, the capital injection was still
subject to approval of the CBRC

52.3 Business Taxes to Value Added Taxes Reform

Pursuant to the “Circuly regarding the Filot Program on Comprehensive implementation o
Value Added Taxes (rom Business Taxes Retorm”™(Cai Shal [2016] No. 36} Bsued by the MOF
amd the SAT on 23 March 2016, effective 1 May 2016 tagpayers across the country in the
financial industries will be required o pay value added taes nstead of business taes, Value
added tax and related undedying value of the invoice tor value added taxable income and
SEPETSES shall be stated and accounted for separabely, Such changes will have impacts on both
the Group®s consalidated fimancial statements and related financial indicatons.

53 COMPARATIVES

Certain compatative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
54 STATEMEMNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

As at 31 December

2015 2014
Assats
Cash amd balances with cential banks 2 586 843 2,142,197
Drspeosits weith Banks and other financial institutions 690, 230 562,792
Precious metaks 40,909 20,188
Macements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 511,969 412,825
Financial assets held for trading a1l 58425
Financial assets designated at fair value thicugh profit of loss 355 550 355, 763
Derivative financial assefs 15,803 6,950
Financial assets held under resale agresments 470,182 S09.412
Leans and advances (o customers 2473314 1,700,348
Auailable-for-sale financial assets 1,195,554 917,381
Held-to-maturity investments 2,293 5945 1,703,508
Dabt instruments classified & mcevables 541,252 511,174
Investment i subsidianies 10,560 10,564
Inwestiments in assoclates 273 i
Property and equipment 153,184 152,374
Deferred Lax assets 81,213 78,368
Other assats 185.5?5 148.2'3'0
“Total assets 17,686,237 15,891,159
Liabilities
Borrowings from central bank 60,4805 80,030
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1,226,703 834,765
Macements from banks and other Tinancial institutions 290, 389 197,803
Financial Habilities held for trading 24,036 2521
Financial hiabilities desgnated at fair valee through
prodit o0 lorss 406,414 37,286
Dorivative financial liabilities 11,972 1072
Financial assots sold under repurchase agresments 88 B0 126,9%0
Duse 1o customens 13535613 12,530,169
Dbt securities issuwed 3T, 728 323,336
Other labilities 453 468 380,088
Total liabilities 16,477,706 14,861,710
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

54 STATEMEMNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK (Continued)
As at 31 December

Hotes IV 2015 2014

Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preferance shares 38 74,899 39,944
Capital reserve 39 98,574 8,574
Investment revaluation resere 22,258 3,043
Surplus reserve 41 96,567 78,445
General reserve 42 175,021 156,145
Retained sarnings 417,401 329,133
Foreign currency translation resemve 17 (629)
Tatal equity 1,208,531 1,029,449
“Total equity and liabilities 17,686,237 15,801,159

Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors an 31 March 2016

Executive Director
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (L ontinuedy
55 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK
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1.
3
2015 3 31 2015 6 30 2015 9 30 2015 12 31
140.0% 134.9% 125.4% 127.5%
CBRC C )
GAAP
2.
2015 12 31
651,473 76,506 67,668 795,647
(647,679)  (103,726) (56,023)  (807,428)
( ) 640,006 48,691 62,503 751,200
« ) (644,902) (16,954) (99,559)  (761,415)
1,470 5 (182) 1,293
368 4,522 (25,593) (20,703)
3,424 5,445 1,445 10,314
2014 12 31
545,824 61,698 27,918 635,440
(564,420) (82,159) (36,768)  (683,347)
( ) 432,294 34,327 41,240 507,861
« ) (368,809) (8,499) (25,214)  (402,522)
(1,330) 6 (398) (1,722)
43,559 5,373 6,778 55,710
3,403 5,302 723 9,428
3.
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76,289 16,791 84,691 177,771
- 19,010 13,888 67,530 100,428
24,437 1,478 18,989 44,904
117,738 46,497 173,856 338,091
396 213 609
218,860 64,766 277,749 561,375
( )
2014 12 31
27,564 12,158 68,101 107,823
- 14,685 11,565 50,961 77,211
18,009 209 5,259 23,477
87,638 37,638 205,896 331,172
62 215 277
133,273 50,005 279,471 462,749
4.
1
( ) 12 31
2015 2014
98,465 73,139
6 38,809 27,840
12 66,289 28,617
12 75,949 37,024
279,512 166,620
1.11% 0.90%
6 0.44% 0.35%
12 0.74% 0.35%
12 0.85% 0.46%
3.14% 2.06%
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13.05 13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37
11.94 12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55
12.34 12.65 15.79 17.18 19.40
12.33 13.69 17.31 19.47 18.56
100
2015 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016
12 1 2 3 4 5
19.26 18.52 18.48 17.52 17.42 16.86
18.55 17.81 17.15 17.18 16.69 16.42
18.87 18.01 17.61 17.35 16.94 16.67
100
16.86 2016 5 31
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Agricultura Bank of ChinaLimited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith Limited Liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 182 to 337, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other Matters
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This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do

not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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